
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 855 W. BASE LINE ROAD, RIALTO, CA 92376 

PH: (909) 875-1804   FAX: (909) 875-1849 
  
 
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 AGENDA 

  
 

THURSDAY, MAY 4, 2023 
CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 P.M. ● OPEN SESSION – 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Gregory Young, President 
Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

Angela Garcia, Director 
Kelvin Moore, Director 

Channing Hawkins, Director 
 
 
 

"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed 
with the Board Secretary's office by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following 
Thursday meeting, not requiring departmental investigation, will be considered by the 
Board of Directors." 

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at 855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, 
CA 92376, or you may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public comment may be submitted via Zoom, by 
telephone by calling the following number and access code: Dial: (888) 475-4499, Access 
Code: 840-293-7790, or via email to administration@wvwd.org. 
 
If you require additional assistance, please contact administration@wvwd.org. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:administration@wvwd.org
mailto:administration@wvwd.org


OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Opening Prayer 
Roll Call of Board Members 

CLOSED SESSION 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - 

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of  Subdivision (D) of  Section 

54956.9(B): Number of  Cases: Five (5).   

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - pursuant to 

Paragraph one (1) of  Subdivision (d) of  the Government Code Section 54956.9 Case Name: 

Patricia Romero vs. West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVDS2024402.   

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION - Pursuant to 

Paragraph One (1) of  Subdivision (d) of  the Government Code Section 54956.9 Case Name: 

Nadia Loukeh. vs West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVSB2116242  

• PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 Titles: Board Secretary.  

• PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PURSUANT TO 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 Titles: Acting General Manager.  

ADOPT AGENDA 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the agenda, within its 
jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the Board Secretary, if you are attending in person. 
For anyone joining on Zoom, please wait for the Board President’s instruction to indicate that you would like to 
speak. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of Directors 
is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. Comments related to noticed 
Public Hearing(s) and Business Matters will be heard during the occurrence of the item. 
 

Public communication is the time for anyone to address the Board on any agenda item or 
anything under the jurisdiction of the District. Also, please remember that no disruptions 
from the crowd will be tolerated. If someone disrupts the meeting, they will be removed. 

PRESENTATIONS 

None. 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one vote.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Board of Directors, Staff Member, or any member of the 
public request a specific item(s) be removed for separate action.  

Consideration of: 

1. April 15, 2023 - Special Board Meeting Minutes.

2. April 20, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes.

3. Purchase Order Report - March 2023.

4. Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - March 2023.

5. Cash Disbursements Reports - March 2023.

6. Funds Transfer Report - March 2023.

7. Treasurer's Report - March 2023.

8. Change Order No. 1 for PCL Construction, Inc  for $29,466.45 for Design-Build of the 
Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project.

9. Baseline Feeder South Well Rehabilitation Quote in the amount of $154,205.93 with 
General Pump Company.

10. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC 
for Ventana.

11. Recordation of Water Easement with LS-Fontana, LLC for Tract No. 20070 for Narra 
Hills.

12. Joint Community Facilities Agreement and Acquisition and Funding Agreement for the 
Gardens Village at the Arboretum and Adopt Resolution Approving Agreements.

13. Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Kyle Groundwater for
$157,315.00 for Professional Hydrogeological Services.

14. Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Hunt Ortmann for March 2023 Invoice 98732 
for$1,277.50.



15. Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Hunt Ortmann for February 2023 Invoice 
98234 for $328.50.

16. Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore for March 2023, 
Invoice #238550 for $4,170.50, Invoice #238584 for $42.50, and Invoice #238371 for
$1,491.50.

BUSINESS MATTERS 

Consideration of:  

17. Consider a 90-day contract extension with Communications Consultant Chamberlayne
PR.

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Members

2. General Manager

3. Legal Counsel

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

• May 8, 2023 - Human Resources Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 9, 2023 - Safety & Technology Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 10, 2023 - Executive Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 16, 2023 - Engineering, Operations, and Planning Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 18, 2023 - Board of  Directors Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 22, 2023 - External Affairs Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 23, 2023 - Policy Review & Oversight Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• May 24, 2023 - Executive Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

• June 1, 2023 - Board of  Directors Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.



UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENTS 

• April 26, 2023 - Rialto Chamber Mixer 4:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

• April 29, 2023 - Special Needs Resource and Family Fun Fair 10 a.m. - 2 p.m.  

• May 9, 2023 - Rialto Chamber Breakfast - 7:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m. 

• May 11, 2023 - Fontana Chamber Luncheon  

• May 19-21 - Inland Solar Challenge (Yucaipa Regional Park)   

• June 1 - 4 - Fontana Days Carnival (Fontana City Hall)   

• June 8 - Fontana Chamber Luncheon  

• June 24 - Fontana Chamber Installation Gala 

UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

• May 16 - 17, 2023: CSDA Special Districts Legislative Days - Sacramento, CA 

• August 18 - August 31, 2023 - CSDA Annual Conference, Monterey  

• October 22 - October 25, 2023 - CSDA Special District Leadership Academy, Santa Rosa 

• November 28 - November 30, 2023 - ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells 

ADJOURN 

DECLARATION OF POSTING:  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and posted 
the foregoing Agenda at the District Offices on April 27, 2023. 

 
 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary  
 



Please Note: 
 
Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 855 W. 
Baseline, Rialto, during normal business hours.  Also, such documents are available on the 
District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before 
the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or 
participate in the above-agendized public meeting should be directed to the Board 
Secretary, Elvia Dominguez, at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.  Ms. Dominguez may be contacted 
by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 703, or in writing at the West Valley Water District, P.O. 
Box 920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920. 

http://www.wvwd.org/


WVWD 

Minutes: 4/15/23 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

April 15, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

President Gregory Young called the Special Board Meeting of the West Valley Water District to order at 
8:10 a.m..  Director Garcia arrived at 8:15 a.m., and Director Hawkins arrived at 8:28 a.m. 

Board of Directors Present Excused Absent 

Gregory Young        

Daniel Jenkins     

Channing Hawkins       

Angela Garcia    

Kelvin Moore    

Staff    

Elvia Dominguez    

Legal Counsel    

Vincent C. Ewing     
 

DISCUSSION 

1. Conduct Mandatory Sexual Harassment, Ethics, and Brown Act Training to the Board 
of Directors 

Sexual Harassment Training was conducted by Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Attorney Nicholas M. 
Grether. And AB1234 Ethics and Brown Act Training was conducted by Interim Legal Counsel 
Vincent Ewing. 

Director Garcia left at 11:00 and indicated she would complete the remainder of the training 
from the recorded meeting. 

ADJOURN 

President Gregory Young adjourned the meeting at 11:35 p.m. 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 7



WVWD 

Minutes: 4/20/23 

MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

April 20, 2023 

 

Call to Order - President Gregory Young called the Special Board Meeting of the West Valley Water 
District to order at 6:05 p.m. with Board members Angela Garcia and Channing Hawkins present 
and Vice President Daniel Jenkins and Board member Kelvin Moore absent.  

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board entered into Closed Session at 6:05 p.m. to discuss the following items listed on the 
agenda: 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - Significant 

Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of  Subdivision (D) of  Section 54956.9(B): 

Number of  Cases: Five (5). 

• CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.6  
Agency designated representatives: Van Jew Acting General Manager, Haydee Sainz, Human 
Resources Manager, Oliver Yee, Special Counsel,  
Employee Groups: International Union of  Operating Engineers, Local 12 

 

• CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957 
Appointment /employment of a public employee - Board Secretary. 

 

The Board adjourned the closed session at 7:11 p.m. to conduct the business portion of  the 

meeting. 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order - President Gregory Young called the Special Board Meeting of the West 
Valley Water District to order at 6:05 p.m. with Board members Angela Garcia and 
Channing Hawkins present and Vice President Daniel Jenkins and Board member Kelvin 
Moore absent.  
 

Board of Directors Present Excused Absent 

Gregory Young        

Daniel Jenkins     

Channing Hawkins       

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 8



WVWD 

Minutes: 4/20/23 

Angela Garcia    

Kelvin Moore    

Staff    

Van Jew    

William Fox    

Haydee Sainz    

Elvia Dominguez    

Linda Jadeski       

Jon Stephenson    

Joanne Chan    

Albert Clinger    

Jose Velasquez     

Socorro Pantaleon     

Legal Counsel    

Vincent C. Ewing     
 
Pledge of Allegiance - The pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Channing Hawkins. 
Opening Prayer - Opening Prayer was given by Pastor Jackson of Loveland Church. 

ADOPT AGENDA 

 MOTION TO ADOPT AGENDA 

Director Angela Garcia motioned to adopt the agenda as amended and Director Channing 

Hawkins seconded the motion.  The following vote was taken: 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Channing Hawkins, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Angela Garcia, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
President Gregory Young inquired if anyone from the public would like to speak. Board Secretary 
Elvia Dominguez stated that no requests were received to speak via email, zoom or in person, 
therefore President Young closed the public comment period. 

PRESENTATIONS 

There were no presentations. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 MOTION TO APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS #1 - #10 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 9



WVWD 

Minutes: 4/20/23 

Director Channing Hawkins motioned to adopt consent calendar items #1 - #10 and Director 

Angela Garcia seconded the motion.  The following vote was taken: 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Channing Hawkins, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Angela Garcia, Gregory Young  

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins 

1. April 6, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2. March 16, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

3. Purchase Order Report - February 2023 

4. Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - February 2023 

5. Cash Disbursements Reports - February 2023 

6. Treasurer's Report - February 2023 

7. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement, Temporary Construction 
Easement, and Property Appraisal for IDIL West Valley Logistics Center, LP. 

8. PS4-1, Well 8A and 3A-1 Booster Fencing Project Fund Transfer, document execution, and 
award of Contract for fencing to Westbrook Fence, Inc for $66,434.75 

9. Approve Legal Payment to Law Offices of Julia Sylva through November 30, 2022 for Invoice 
23-03 for $3,225.00 

10. Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Law Offices of Willie Williams for August 2022 to 
February 2023 for $5,510.00 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

There were no business matters.  

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Members 

Board members Angela Garcia, Channing Hawkins, and President Gregory Young spoke about the 
upcoming Earth Day event, and wished everyone a happy Earth Day. 

2. General Manager 

Acting General Manager Van Jew gave an update on appropriations requested by Congressmen 
Aguilar on WVWD capital improvement projects. 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 10



WVWD 

Minutes: 4/20/23 

 
Acting Government Affairs and Legislative Manager Pantaleon gave an Earth Day event update and 
invited the public to participate. 

3. Legal Counsel 

Interim Counsel Vincent Ewing then reported the following:  Multiple items were considered, 
direction was given, and no reportable action was taken. 

ADJOURN 

President Gregory Young adjourned the meeting at 7:12 p.m. 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 11



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) generated thirty-eight (38) Purchase Orders (“PO”) in 
the month of March 2023 to various vendors that provide supplies and services to the District.  The 
total amount issued to PO’s for the month of March 2023 was $843,256.15.  A table listing all PO’s 
for March 2023 is shown in Exhibit A. 
 
There were no Change Orders (“CO”) approved at the General Manager’s approval level during the 
month of March 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the March 2023 Purchase Order Report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the March 2023 Purchase Order 
Report. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ;ar 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE ORDER REPORT - MARCH 2023 

6.3

Packet Pg. 12



 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - March 2023 PO Report 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/19/23 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

6.3

Packet Pg. 13



Exhibit A 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 14



4/3/2023 3:52:23 PM Page 1 of 3

Purchase Order Summary Report
West Valley Water District, CA Purchase Order Detail

Issued Date Range 03/01/2023 - 03/31/2023

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

HACh DR 3900 Repair 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District00114 - HACH COMPANY

1,474.5023-0302 0.00

Painting of Lytle Creek Pumps 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District02464 - HARRIS & RUTH PAINTING CONTRACTING

5,850.0023-0303 0.00

Replace mechanical seal on Influent pump 2 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District01124 - GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC

9,042.7823-0304 0.00

2" Ball Valve 03/02/23 3/2/2023Completed

3/2/2023West Valley Water District01657 - CORE & MAIN LP

1,013.7023-0305 0.00

Brass Parts 03/02/23 3/2/2023Completed

3/2/2023West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

1,285.0023-0306 0.00

Plug Vales for Roemer 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677

4,040.6323-0307 0.00

Brass Adapters 03/02/23 3/2/2023Completed

3/2/2023West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

388.0023-0308 0.00

Painting of Electrical cabinet and 3 ext doors 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District02581 - CRAMER PAINTING INC

2,440.0023-0309 0.00

Blue White M3 Peristaltic Pump 3/2/2023Completed

3/16/2023West Valley Water District01288 - BLUE - WHITE INDUSTRIES LTD

6,285.9723-0310 0.00

Major service for 2 air compressors at Roemer 3/9/2023Outstanding

3/23/2023West Valley Water District02530 - MAQPOWER COMPRESSORS CORP

4,732.6923-0311 0.00

Major PM service on air compressors 3/9/2023Outstanding

3/23/2023West Valley Water District02530 - MAQPOWER COMPRESSORS CORP

4,872.6923-0312 0.00

24in Transmis Main on Pepper Ave & I-10Fwy Railway 3/10/2023Partially Received

3/24/2023West Valley Water District00582 - TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES

28,500.0023-0313 0.00

24" BF Valve and actuator for influent UV train 1 3/10/2023Outstanding

3/24/2023West Valley Water District00729 - SOUTHWEST VALVE & EQUIPMENT

16,062.3523-0314 0.00

SB 88 Meter compliance teting 3/10/2023Outstanding

3/24/2023West Valley Water District00492 - MCCALLS METERS INC

980.0023-0315 0.00

Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 3/9/2023Completed

3/23/2023West Valley Water District01742 - CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS

8,961.7223-0316 0.00

Sludge Discharge Pump 3/14/2023Outstanding

3/28/2023West Valley Water District02394 - BRAX COMPANY INC

11,397.6923-0317 0.00

ArcGIS Enterprise Portal Installation Configuratio 3/15/2023Outstanding

3/29/2023West Valley Water District01032 - DCSE INC

9,800.0023-0318 0.00

Fire Flow Test and Water Sampling Applications Con 3/15/2023Outstanding

3/29/2023West Valley Water District01032 - DCSE INC

8,960.0023-0319 0.00

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 15



Purchase Order Summary Report Issued Date Range 03/01/2023 - 03/31/2023

4/3/2023 3:52:23 PM Page 2 of 3

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

Construction Managem Lord Ranch Facilities Project 3/17/2023Outstanding

3/31/2023West Valley Water District01561 - MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC

519,402.0023-0320 0.00

2- 16"Automated Butterfly Valve with Actuators 3/17/2023Outstanding

3/31/2023West Valley Water District02584 - SANTA FE SPRINGS WATER SYSTEMS CO

21,984.6023-0321 0.00

Repair with service to UV unit #2 Wiper System 3/17/2023Outstanding

3/31/2023West Valley Water District00743 - TROJAN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

3,078.4923-0322 0.00

Amazon Computer Supplies March 2023 3/17/2023Outstanding

3/31/2023West Valley Water District02325 - AMAZON.COM SALES INC

4,242.4723-0323 0.00

Loma Vista Water Main Break Street Restoration 3/21/2023Outstanding

4/4/2023West Valley Water District01321 - MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC.

69,304.2023-0324 0.00

3/4" and 1" Ally Meter 3/22/2023Outstanding

4/5/2023West Valley Water District00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

20,868.7623-0325 0.00

3/4/ Short SRII Sensus Meter 3/22/2023Outstanding

4/5/2023West Valley Water District00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

17,318.4423-0326 0.00

New Tires for New Holland Backhoe 3/22/2023Completed

4/5/2023West Valley Water District02252 - INLAND ROAD SERVICE & TIRE

1,933.6823-0327 0.00

DLT autocad renwal 2023 3/22/2023Outstanding

4/5/2023West Valley Water District00642 - DLT SOLUTIONS LLC

1,784.8023-0328 0.00

cdwg Vmware renewal 2023 3/22/2023Outstanding

4/5/2023West Valley Water District00326 - CDW GOVERNMENT INC

1,150.0023-0329 0.00

September Newsletter 3/2/2023Outstanding

3/16/2023West Valley Water District01052 - INFOSEND INC

2,236.7623-0331 0.00

Meter Order 03/27/23 3/27/2023Outstanding

3/27/2023West Valley Water District00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

14,576.9023-0332 0.00

Leak Detection Equipment 3/28/2023Outstanding

4/11/2023West Valley Water District00360 - USA BLUEBOOK

6,827.6423-0333 0.00

Ball Valves 03/29/23 3/29/2023Outstanding

3/29/2023West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

5,152.0023-0334 0.00

Gasoline Pump Repair 3/29/2023Outstanding

4/12/2023West Valley Water District02336 - ORANGE COAST PETROLEUM EQUIPMENT INC

1,785.4223-0335 0.00

Cable Pulling Grips for Copper 3/30/2023Outstanding

4/13/2023West Valley Water District00016 - CED CREDIT OFFICE

2,746.2123-0336 0.00

Sensus handheld readers 3/30/2023Outstanding

4/13/2023West Valley Water District00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

2,223.9623-0337 0.00

Replacement Cutter Heads for Copper Service 3/30/2023Outstanding

4/13/2023West Valley Water District00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677

5,781.6423-0338 0.00

Ball Valves 033023 3/30/2023Outstanding

3/30/2023West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

11,200.0023-0339 0.00

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 16



Purchase Order Summary Report Issued Date Range 03/01/2023 - 03/31/2023

4/3/2023 3:52:23 PM Page 3 of 3

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

DIONEX EGC III KOH Cartridge 3/31/2023Outstanding

4/14/2023West Valley Water District01221 - THERMO ELECTRON NORTH AMERICA LLC

3,570.4623-0340 0.00

843,256.150.00Purchase Order Count: (38) Total:Total Trade Discount:

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 17



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Financial Status Report to be presented to the 
Finance Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of 
Directors. The reports are being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) 
and will be presented on a monthly basis. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Monthly Financial Status Report (Exhibit A) summarizes the District’s revenue categories as 
well as expenditures for all Departments. The original total budget includes the adopted budget. 
Current total budget includes the adopted budget plus any budget amendments or adjustments made 
during the year. Period activity column represents activity for the reporting periods. Fiscal activity 
column represents the year-to-date activity or transactions that have been recorded in the general 
ledger from the beginning of the fiscal year July 1 through March 31. The encumbrance column 
represents funds encumbered with a purchase order that’s not spent but committed. The percent 
column represents the percentage of the current budget that has been received (Revenue) or utilized 
(Expenditure). Every quarter-end, a quarterly report (Exhibit B) is presented to compare the 
current fiscal year quarter vs the previous year’s quarter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the March 2023 Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the March 2023 Monthly Revenue 
& Expenditure Report. 
 
 
 
 

 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY REVENUE & EXPENDITURES REPORT - MARCH 2023 

6.4

Packet Pg. 18



Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - 2023 March Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report 
2. Exhibit B - 2023 March Quarter End Report 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/19/23 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

6.4

Packet Pg. 19



EXHIBIT A 

6.4.a

Packet Pg. 20



4/12/2023 9:09:49 AM Page 1 of 3

Budget Report
West Valley Water District, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2022-2023 Period Ending: 03/31/2023

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

UsedDepartmen…

Revenue

13,335,262.401,057,431.7819,701,888.00 19,701,888.00 0.00 -6,366,625.604000 - Water consumption sales 67.69 %

6,196,384.91696,138.078,168,023.00 8,168,023.00 0.00 -1,971,638.094010 - Water service charges 75.86 %

2,519,955.72533,494.083,967,920.00 3,967,920.00 0.00 -1,447,964.284020 - Other operating revenue 63.51 %

2,289,453.72173,600.863,069,566.00 3,069,566.00 0.00 -780,112.284030 - Property Taxes 74.59 %

2,030,573.97679,481.29350,000.00 350,000.00 0.00 1,680,573.974040 - Interest & Investment Earnings 580.16 %

31,905.056,552.4136,303.00 36,303.00 0.00 -4,397.954050 - Rental Revenue 87.89 %

265,573.19259,002.10127,892.00 127,892.00 0.00 137,681.194060 - Grants and Reimbursements 207.65 %

735,493.680.000.00 0.00 0.00 735,493.684070 - Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 0.00 %

10,410,294.683,008.1115,783.00 15,783.00 0.00 10,394,511.684080 - Other Non-Operating Revenue 65,958.91 %

37,814,897.323,408,708.7035,437,375.00 35,437,375.00 0.00 2,377,522.32Revenue Total: 106.71 %

6.4.a

Packet Pg. 21



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2022-2023 Period Ending: 03/31/2023

4/12/2023 9:09:49 AM Page 2 of 3

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

UsedDepartmen…

Expense

1,339,073.7640,326.592,530,789.00 2,475,485.00 37,300.00 1,099,111.245110 - Source Of Supply 55.60 %

3,050,458.03236,231.664,403,550.00 4,975,550.00 103,969.21 1,821,122.765210 - Production 63.40 %

397,749.6941,554.49772,375.00 702,375.00 13,450.00 291,175.315310 - Water Quality 58.54 %

174,538.6814,409.60550,000.00 320,000.00 17,512.16 127,949.165320 - Water Treatment - Perchlorate 60.02 %

1,394,961.86150,962.692,204,600.00 2,091,600.00 339,920.44 356,717.705350 - Water Treatment - FBR/FXB 82.95 %

1,244,055.46154,305.241,944,210.00 1,993,210.00 247,736.12 501,418.425390 - Water Treatment - Roemer/Arsenic 74.84 %

1,758,700.62284,606.172,545,250.00 2,695,250.00 250,841.25 685,708.135410 - Maintenance - T & D 74.56 %

875,619.7486,481.721,323,600.00 1,371,600.00 0.00 495,980.265510 - Customer Service 63.84 %

714,454.34117,727.691,154,500.00 1,154,500.00 44,280.93 395,764.735520 - Meter Reading 65.72 %

374,222.8942,737.21537,700.00 551,200.00 48,051.94 128,925.175530 - Billing 76.61 %

1,112,243.60187,030.582,512,301.00 2,375,291.00 76,629.26 1,186,418.145610 - Administration 50.05 %

2,371,081.5897,326.263,378,372.00 3,375,372.00 169,249.36 835,041.065615 - General Operations 75.26 %

608,199.0772,193.74974,443.00 960,943.00 31,000.00 321,743.935620 - Accounting 66.52 %

1,201,603.49112,638.471,793,120.00 1,785,120.00 24,459.81 559,056.705630 - Engineering 68.68 %

834,098.1270,205.171,369,630.00 1,396,630.00 37,812.37 524,719.515640 - Business Systems 62.43 %

161,778.4012,177.34285,830.00 259,050.00 25,260.00 72,011.605645 - GIS 72.20 %

187,649.2323,351.34304,900.00 304,900.00 8,174.99 109,075.785650 - Board Of Directors 64.23 %

468,840.2767,689.32964,580.00 937,950.00 119,330.00 349,779.735660 - Human Resources/Risk Management 62.71 %

388,150.7844,955.91667,300.00 667,300.00 0.00 279,149.225680 - Purchasing 58.17 %

551,554.1454,298.911,362,912.00 1,236,636.00 189,634.86 495,447.005710 - Public Affairs 59.94 %

20,759.464,303.0080,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 9,240.545720 - Grants & Rebates 69.20 %

640,577.04428,170.54888,300.00 888,300.00 0.00 247,722.966200 - Interest Expense 72.11 %

0.000.006,615.00 6,615.00 0.00 6,615.006300 - Debt Administration Service 0.00 %

712,500.00350,000.000.00 0.00 0.00 -712,500.006800 - Other Non-Operating Expense 0.00 %

20,582,870.252,693,683.6432,554,877.00 32,554,877.00 1,784,612.70 10,187,394.05Expense Total: 68.71 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): 715,025.06 17,232,027.072,882,498.00 2,882,498.00 -1,784,612.70 12,564,916.37 535.90 %

6.4.a

Packet Pg. 22



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2022-2023 Period Ending: 03/31/2023

4/12/2023 9:09:49 AM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - Water Operations Fund 17,232,027.07715,025.062,882,498.00 2,882,498.00 -1,784,612.70 12,564,916.37

Report Surplus (Deficit): 715,025.06 17,232,027.072,882,498.00 2,882,498.00 -1,784,612.70 12,564,916.37

6.4.a

Packet Pg. 23



Exhibit B 

6.4.b

Packet Pg. 24



THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT
THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

FY21-22 FY22-23 Amount %
3/31/2022 3/31/2023 Change Change

Operating revenues:
Water consumption sales 3,911,623$   3,091,407$   (820,216)$     -20.97%
Water service charges 2,050,773     2,037,966     (12,807)$       -0.62%
Other operating income 616,705        1,084,709     468,004$      75.89%

Total operating revenues 6,579,101     6,214,082     (365,019)       -5.55%

Non-operating revenues:
Property taxes 116,750        261,963        145,213$      124.38%
Grants and reimbursements -                    259,002        259,002$      0.00%
Interest and investment earnings (357,083)       1,105,835     1,462,918$   -409.69%
Rental income- cellular anntenas 9,041            12,891          3,849$          42.58%
Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets 750,956        -                    (750,956)$     0.00%
Other non-operating revenues 3,381            3,456            75$               2.22%

Total non-operating revenues 523,046        1,643,148     1,120,102     214.15%

Operating expenses:
Pubic affairs 277,926        211,173        (66,753)$       -24.02%
Grants 3,326            10,668          7,342$          220.75%
Source of supply 183,481        307,976        124,495$      67.85%
Pumping 1,438,184     1,144,440     (293,745)$     -20.42%
Water treatment 1,074,034     1,140,016     65,982$        6.14%
Transmission and distribution 523,686        793,126        269,440$      51.45%
Customer accounts 588,386        700,670        112,284$      19.08%
General and administrative 2,025,495     2,230,607     205,112$      10.13%

Total operating expenses 6,114,519     6,538,676     424,157        6.94%

Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense 434,950        428,171        (6,779)$         -1.56%
Litigation loss 5,000            712,500        707,500$      100.00%

Total non-operating expenses 439,950        1,140,671     700,721        159.27%
  

Capital contributions:
Developer contributions -                    -                    -$                  100.00%
Capacity charges 11,123,951   1,690,505     (9,433,446)$  -84.80%

Total capital contributions 11,123,951   1,690,505     (9,433,446)    -84.80%

Total revenues 18,226,098   9,547,735     (8,678,363)$  -47.62%
Total expenditures 6,554,469     7,679,347     1,124,878$   17.16%

Net Change 11,671,629   1,868,388     (9,803,241)    -83.99%

3rd Quarter Actuals

6.4.b

Packet Pg. 25



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Cash Disbursements Report to be presented to the 
Finance Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of 
Directors. The reports are being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) 
and will be presented to the Finance Committee on a monthly basis. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Each month, the Accounting Department provides a complete listing of all disbursements for the 
previous month in an effort to promote fiscal responsibility and accountability over the expenditure 
of public funds.  This process includes providing the Finance Committee, Board of Directors, and 
ratepayers the opportunity to review expenses for supplies, materials, services, (Exhibit A) and 
payroll Disbursements (Exhibit B).  Payroll is processed bi-weekly and accounts payable is 
processed weekly. Information to justify each payment is available through the Accounting 
Department. For reference, Customer Refunds are credits due as a result of closing a water account. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the March 2023 Cash Disbursement Reports. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the March 2023 Cash 
Disbursement Reports. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: CASH DISBURSEMENTS REPORTS - MARCH 2023 

6.5

Packet Pg. 26



 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Board Report 
2. Exhibit B - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Payroll Board Report 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/19/23 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

6.5

Packet Pg. 27



EXHIBIT A 

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 28



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6808 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC WIFIA and SRF Loan Application - Roemer Expansion 1,900.50$           

6809 CDW GOVERNMENT INC SCADA Laptops 2022 15,480.93$            

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 45.75$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 33.25$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 25.75$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 45.75$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 42.50$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 128.25$                 

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 15.75$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 15.75$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 169.25$                 

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 88.50$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                    

6810 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 15.00$                    

6811 DAVID N M TURCH Federal Lobbyist Services-11/09/22-12/08/22 12,500.00$            

6811 DAVID N M TURCH Federal Lobbyist Services-12/9/22-1/8/23 12,500.00$            

6812 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-10272 CEDAR 129.95$                 

6812 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-18451 VINEYARD 129.95$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 483.92$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 437.85$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 218.93$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 451.66$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 392.40$                 

6813 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 264.30$                 

6814 GUTIERREZ, ROSA EAL TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 5,000.00$              

6815 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-ROEMER 6,018.72$              

6816 LEASE PLAN USA INC Mechanic Repairs for Fleet 8,685.58$              

6817 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 451.84$                 

6817 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 123.18$                 

6817 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 429.59$                 

6817 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 353.42$                 

6817 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 435.78$                 

6818 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC MAINTENANCE SHOP SUPPLIES 140.42$                 

6818 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC MAINTENANCE SHOP SUPPLIES 139.45$                 

6818 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC DISPOSAL FEES 390.00$                 

6818 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC DISPOSAL FEES 720.00$                 

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.93$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.83$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.49$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.61$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 8.46$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.86$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.70$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 6.86$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.95$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.93$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION LAB FEES-FBR 6.71$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION LAB FEES-FBR 7.04$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION LAB FEES-FBR 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION LAB FEES-FBR 6.82$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-ROEMER 148.80$                 

Page 1 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 29



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.55$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.94$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.04$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.05$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.59$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.94$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.98$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.02$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.84$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.49$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.47$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.30$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 12.56$                    

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.56$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 7.32$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.94$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.96$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.59$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 246.46$                 

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.05$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.87$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 9.75$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 8.38$                      

6819 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.72$                      

6821 CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT FEB 2023 SERVICES 2,476.19$              

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 36.75$                    

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 13.50$                    

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 182.25$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 128.25$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 211.50$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 36.00$                    

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 169.25$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 113.25$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                    

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 113.25$                 

6822 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 15.00$                    

6823 COMPUTERIZED EMBROIDERY COMPANY INC HR SHIRTS 254.61$                 

6823 COMPUTERIZED EMBROIDERY COMPANY INC HR SHIRTS 123.91$                 

6824 DOMINGUEZ, ELVIA CSDA 2023 LEADERSHIP ACADEMY 2/26-3/01 213.19$                 

6825 HARTLEY, MARY JO GOUNDBREAKING-REFRESHMENTS 180.00$                 

6825 HARTLEY, MARY JO LANDSCAPE WORKSHOP-2/25/23 32.95$                    

6826 HAWKINS, CHANNING CSDA 2023-MEALS/LODGING 1,112.75$              

6826 HAWKINS, CHANNING WATER ED FOR LATINO LEADERS-MILEAGE 275.10$                 

6827 HILLTOP GEOTECHNICAL, INC. Compaction Services and Testing 4,800.00$              

6827 HILLTOP GEOTECHNICAL, INC. Compaction Services and Testing 4,800.00$              

6827 HILLTOP GEOTECHNICAL, INC. Compaction Services and Testing 480.00$                 

6828 INFOSEND INC NEWSLETTERS-SEPT 2022 2,236.76$              

6828 INFOSEND INC NEWSLETTERS-JAN 2023 2,357.57$              

Page 2 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 30



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6829 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 4,569.50$              

6829 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 1,634.00$              

6830 LONG, MARVALINE MEDICARE PART B OCT-DEC 2022 510.30$                 

6831 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT SAFETY BOOTS-DIMITRIUS GLASS 225.00$                 

6831 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT SAFETY SHOES-RICARDO MAEEOQUIN 200.00$                 

6832 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MTG 2/14/23 225.00$                 

6832 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY OFFICE SAFETY MTG 2/14/23 200.00$                 

6833 SAMBA HOLDINGS INC HR SERVICES 121.27$                 

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.83$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.61$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.93$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.49$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.70$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.86$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 8.46$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.93$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 5.95$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 6.86$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.71$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 7.04$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.82$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-ROEMER 157.42$                 

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.04$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.94$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.55$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.05$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.98$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.94$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.84$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.59$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.49$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.47$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 12.56$                    

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.02$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.30$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.72$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 8.38$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.56$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.59$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.94$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.96$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 7.32$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 246.46$                 

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.87$                      

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                      

Page 3 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 31



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6834 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.05$                      

6836 BOOT BARN INC SAFETY BOOTS-JESSE BECERRA 200.00$                 

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 54.00$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 182.25$                 

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 54.00$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 87.75$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 40.50$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 40.50$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                    

6837 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 6.75$                      

6838 DAVID N M TURCH Federal Lobbyist Services-1/9/23-2/8/23 12,500.00$            

6839 PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC PLANTS MAINTENANCE-JAN 2023 424.00$                 

6839 PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC PLANTS MAINTENANCE-FEB 2023 424.00$                 

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.93$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.86$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.61$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 8.46$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.83$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.49$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.70$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 6.86$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.95$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.93$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 7.04$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.82$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.71$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SVCS-ROEMER 157.42$                 

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.04$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.94$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.55$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.05$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.30$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.84$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.59$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.49$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.47$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.04$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.98$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 7.02$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 107.77$                 

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 12.56$                    

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE 6.94$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.59$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.56$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.96$                      

Page 4 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 32



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 7.32$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.94$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SVCS-HQ 246.46$                 

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.87$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.05$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 8.38$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 24.09$                    

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 9.75$                      

6840 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.72$                      

6842 ABF PRINTS INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 126.07$                 

6842 ABF PRINTS INC RETURN ENVELOPES-BILLING DEPT 425.61$                 

6843 ACWA /JPIA COBRA - Mesa & Farooqi (February) 2,690.27$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 725.06$                 

6843 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 8,668.41$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA VISION 105.90$                 

6843 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL HMO 791.10$                 

6843 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 8,186.20$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 188.48$                 

6843 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 121,918.62$          

6843 ACWA /JPIA VISION 1,609.68$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA EE Adjustments 1,872.23$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA Retiree - Health Benefits for February 2023 16,613.17$            

6843 ACWA /JPIA Retiree - Health Benefits for February 2023 2,025.74$              

6843 ACWA /JPIA Retiree - Health Benefits for February 2023 635.40$                 

6844 AIR & HOSE SOURCE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 53.88$                    

6845 ARROWHEAD UNITED WAY Gina Bertoline 5.00$                      

6845 ARROWHEAD UNITED WAY Gina Bertoline 5.00$                      

6846 BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC Acetic Acid for FBR 34,609.22$            

6847 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC. Landscape Maintenance Services 5,833.00$              

6847 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC. Landscape Maintenance Services 1,667.00$              

6848 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC WIFIA and SRF Loan Application - Roemer Expansion 1,021.50$           

6849 CED CREDIT OFFICE PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 236.86$                 

6849 CED CREDIT OFFICE PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 6.85$                      

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 36.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 31.50$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 13.50$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 13.50$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 575.25$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 706.75$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 25.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 42.50$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 45.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 45.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 15.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 15.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 15.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 182.25$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 7.50$                      

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 18.75$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 167.50$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 295.25$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 11 165.75$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 6 165.75$                 

Page 5 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 33



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 169.25$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 106.50$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 15.00$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 113.25$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 497.75$                 

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 15.00$                    

6850 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 80.00$                    

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS ROEMER REP/MAINT 691.28$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 69.00$                    

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 69.00$                    

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 135.00$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 172.50$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 204.50$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 209.00$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 448.50$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 34.50$                    

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 827.50$                 

6851 CRB SECURITY SOLUTIONS Security Alarms Monitoring & Repair 34.50$                    

6852 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM --10272 CEDAR 129.95$                 

6852 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LLC PORTABLE RESTROOM-18451 VINEYARD 129.95$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 369.87$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 486.89$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 291.23$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 434.08$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 257.39$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY SHOP SUPPLIES 336.35$                 

6853 FASTENAL COMPANY SHOP SUPPLIES 301.62$                 

6854 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 960.74$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-BLF 1,444.49$              

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 361.12$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 144.45$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 361.12$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 577.80$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 144.45$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 553.72$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#8 288.90$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#30 156.49$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#15 156.49$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#1 180.57$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 168.52$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#54 481.50$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELL#24 120.37$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE 361.12$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-FBR 949.65$                 

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-FBR 4,320.81$              

6855 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-ROEMER 5,401.02$              

6856 HAZZARD BACKFLOW INC ANNUAL BACKFLOW TEST 100.00$                 

6857 LEASE PLAN USA INC Mechanic Repairs for Fleet 5,698.38$              

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 122.83$                 

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 131.03$                 

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 416.26$                 

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 366.37$                 

Page 6 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 34



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 366.37$                 

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 466.42$                 

6858 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 48.18$                    

6859 PANTALEON, SOCORRO ACWA DC 2023 EXPENSES 1,495.98$              

6860 RAMIREZ, YOLANDA BILLS RETIREMENT RENTALS 266.65$                 

6861 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC MAINTENANCE SHOP SUPPLIES 126.25$                 

6861 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC DISPOSAL FEES 130.00$                 

6861 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC DISPOSAL FEES 215.00$                 

6862 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MEETING 2/28/23 225.00$                 

6863 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES 24in Transmis Main on Pepper Ave & I-10Fwy Railway 1,577.50$           

6864 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY Temporary Asphalt 917.49$                 

6865 YOUNG, GREGORY A ACWA LEGISLATIVE CONFERENCE-MEALS/LODGING/TRANSPOR1,040.42$              

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 128.25$                 

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 218.25$                 

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 13.50$                    

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 13.50$                    

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 33.75$                    

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 35.00$                    

6866 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 197.50$                 

6867 ERS INDUSTRIAL SERVICES INC. Filter backwash valve installation 14,850.00$            

6868 HARTLEY, MARY JO ROEMER GROUNDBREAKING REFRESHMENTS 180.00$                 

6869 INFOSEND INC Postage/Printing for Customer Bills 3,786.59$              

6869 INFOSEND INC Postage/Printing for Customer Bills 12,406.16$            

6870 INLAND ROAD SERVICE & TIRE New Tires for New Holland Backhoe 1,933.68$              

6871 OFFICE SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PRODUCTS & SERVICESOFFICE SUPPLIES 509.39$                 

6872 RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC MAINTENANCE SHOP SUPPLIES 55.70$                    

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.83$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 8.46$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.49$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.70$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.86$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.61$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.93$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.61$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.93$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.70$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.86$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 8.46$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.83$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.49$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 6.86$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.95$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.93$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.93$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 5.95$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 6.86$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-WATER QUALITY 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 7.04$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.82$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.71$                      

Page 7 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 35



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.71$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 6.82$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 7.04$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-ROEMER 140.18$                 

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-ROEMER 157.42$                 

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.04$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.94$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.55$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.05$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.94$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.05$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.55$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.04$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.56$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 7.32$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.96$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.94$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.59$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.56$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.94$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.96$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 7.32$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.59$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ 246.46$                 

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ 246.46$                 

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.05$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.87$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.87$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.05$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 128.78$                 

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 9.75$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 8.38$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.72$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.72$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.61$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 8.38$                      

6873 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 9.75$                      

6876 VELASQUEZ, JOSE CS TEAM BUILDING BUDGET FOCUS GROUP 145.61$                 

83688 SALAZAR, MARIBEL Customer Refund 59.95$                    

83689 RY, JANDAR Customer Refund 57.98$                    

83690 LOPEZ-PEREZ, ANNA Customer Refund 4.25$                      

83691 DUARTE, MARTA CUEVAS, Customer Refund 24.31$                    

83692 LLC., BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 Customer Refund 42.01$                    

83693 INCHAURREGUI, FRANCISCO Customer Refund 42.24$                    

83694 LENNAR HOMES Customer Refund 3.58$                      

83695 LENNAR HOMES Customer Refund 12.02$                    

83696 PLANT, DARLENE Customer Refund 11.77$                    

Page 8 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 36



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83697 KATHERINE, NG Customer Refund 109.74$                 

83698 RM Dalton Corporation Customer Refund 1,699.23$              

83699 AJALAT & AJALAT LLP SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT-JULIANA ZAVALA 62,500.00$            

83700 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Janitorial Services for District 280.00$                 

83700 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Janitorial Services for District 3,591.92$              

83700 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Bathroom Paper Goods Blanket FY 22-23 1,049.41$              

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 234.48$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 438.54$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 454.30$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 778.07$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 58.69$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 29.50$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 274.83$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 653.52$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES-CREDIT (130.30)$                

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 82.35$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 259.71$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 52.74$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 21.32$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 43.08$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 9.37$                      

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 366.33$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 387.89$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 456.86$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 1,034.34$              

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 120.51$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 48.38$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 150.74$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 180.98$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 135.74$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 60.32$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 66.59$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 107.70$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 107.75$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 114.17$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 116.18$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 25.85$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 40.28$                    

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 261.25$                 

83701 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 215.45$                 

83703 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO METERS SHOP SUPPLIES 431.09$                 

83704 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES INC GATE MAINTENANCE-ROEMER 261.00$                 

83704 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES INC GATE MAINTENANCE 250.00$                 

83705 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC. UCMR 5 Laboratory Services 770.00$                 

83705 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC. UCMR 5 Laboratory Services 1,440.00$              

83705 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC. UCMR 5 Laboratory Services 1,820.00$              

83705 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC. UCMR 5 Laboratory Services 1,540.00$              

83706 BRAX COMPANY INC FBR SUPPLIES 499.26$                 

83707 CAL-DUCT INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 21.55$                    

83708 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNI FINANCE OFFICER INLAND EMPIRE CHAPTER MTG 45.00$                    

83708 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNI FINANCE OFFICER INLAND EMPIRE CHAPTER MTG 45.00$                    

83708 CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNI FINANCE OFFICER INLAND EMPIRE CHAPTER MTG 45.00$                    

83709 CHAMBERLAYNEPR Communcations Consultant Services-NOV 2022 7,500.00$              

83709 CHAMBERLAYNEPR Communcations Consultant Services-DEC 2022 7,500.00$              

Page 9 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 37



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83709 CHAMBERLAYNEPR Communcations Consultant Services-JAN 2023 7,500.00$              

83710 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY ROEMER SUPPLIES 270.00$                 

83710 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY ROEMER SUPPLIES 112.00$                 

83711 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN Treasurer Services JAN 2023 2,625.00$              

83712 CORE & MAIN LP CopperOrder 08/04/22 514.62$                 

83712 CORE & MAIN LP MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 79.46$                    

83713 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 165.47$                 

83713 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 878.01$                 

83713 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 78.72$                    

83713 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 8.51$                      

83714 FEDEX SHIPPING-ROEMER 32.94$                    

83715 FONTANA HERALD NEWS WVWD ADVERTISING 795.00$                 

83716 GRAINGER INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 696.13$                 

83716 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 918.69$                 

83716 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 70.26$                    

83717 HOME DEPOT ROEMER SUPPLIES 87.41$                    

83717 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 454.39$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 525.00$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 375.00$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 100.00$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 355.00$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 75.00$                    

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 300.00$                 

83718 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 850.00$                 

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 34.46$                    

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 105.11$                 

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 24.75$                    

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 148.60$                 

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 111.32$                 

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES (111.32)$                

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 111.32$                 

83719 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 18.45$                    

83720 LAW OFFICES OF JULIA SYLVA - A LAW CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 9,144.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 10% DISCOUNTON INV FROM MARCH20-APRIL22(8,076.54)$             

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 2,006.89$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 372.93$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 3,175.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 369.75$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 1,638.32$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 205.50$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 490.15$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 80.00$                    

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 5,135.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 2,265.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 20,389.00$            

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 336.05$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 12,782.20$            

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 975.00$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 4,102.50$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 1,397.50$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 552.50$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 5,015.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 34.61$                    

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 14,457.50$            

Page 10 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 38



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 4,985.00$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 4,777.50$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 6,657.75$              

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 422.50$                 

83721 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 3,827.50$              

83722 LOWES MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 369.73$                 

83723 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving Patching and Repairs 24,975.00$            

83723 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving Patching and Repairs 8,953.06$              

83723 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving Patching and Repairs 1,750.00$              

83724 MUNITEMPS STAFFING Staffing Services for Board Secretary 3,160.00$              

83724 MUNITEMPS STAFFING Staffing Services for Board Secretary 1,580.00$              

83725 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA, A MEDICALHR SERVICES 94.00$                    

83726 RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS INC Financial Plan and Water Rate Structure Study 2023 3,384.74$              

83727 RIALTO WATER SERVICES ROEMER SEWER SVC 67.17$                    

83728 ROBERT W KASCH PA SUPPLIES 226.28$                 

83729 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY ATC CONTROLLER DIVISIONSERVICE FOR FY 2022 135.00$                 

83730 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER LIEN RELEASE 20.00$                    

83731 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 50.00$                    

83732 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON BLF ELECTRICITY 122.95$                 

83732 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON WELL #36 ELECTRICITY 517.86$                 

83733 STEPHEN COMPANY LOBBYIST SERVICES 243.50$                 

83734 TROY ALARM INC DISTRICT MAINTENANCE 255.00$                 

83735 USA BLUEBOOK ROEMER CHEMICALS 482.46$                 

83735 USA BLUEBOOK ROEMER CHEMICALS 521.48$                 

83736 YO FIRE Brass Parts 01/12/23 1,508.50$              

83736 YO FIRE Air Vac Cover 02/27/23 576.46$                 

83736 YO FIRE ROEMER SUPPLIES 215.50$                 

83736 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 576.46$                 

83737 RUSICH, FRANK Customer Refund 92.50$                    

83738 RUSICH, FRANK Customer Refund 76.12$                    

83739 Vargas, Lori Avila & Magdalena Customer Refund 72.32$                    

83740 FATH, KENNETH C. Customer Refund 32.79$                    

83741 Alegria, Diana A. & Lucia P. Customer Refund 66.54$                    

83742 VALDEZ, ANDREW Customer Refund 30.69$                    

83743 Pugh, La Coya Customer Refund 31.81$                    

83744 AIRGAS USA LLC SHOP SUPPLIES 272.64$                 

83745 ALL PRO ENTERPRISES INC. Bathroom Paper Goods Blanket FY 22-23 1,352.89$              

83746 ALLIANCE 2020 INC HR SERVICES 161.38$                 

83747 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SAFETY SUPPLIES 877.16$                 

83747 AMAZON.COM SALES INC WELLNESS SUPPLIES 90.40$                    

83748 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES 262.86$                 

83748 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC HQ DISPOSAL FEES 911.94$                 

83749 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS TELEPHONE/INTERNET 690.00$                 

83749 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS CABLE/TELEPHONE 278.40$                 

83749 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS TELEPHONE/INTERNET 1,393.30$              

83749 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS CABLE/TELEPHONE 121.92$                 

83750 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 183.67$                 

83750 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 183.67$                 

83750 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 143.92$                 

83750 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 183.67$                 

83751 CITY OF RIALTO UTILITY USER TAX-FEB 2023 39,389.67$            

83751 CITY OF RIALTO UTILITY USER TAX-FEB 2023 (179.81)$                

83752 CITY OF RIALTO-ALARM PROGRAM FALSE ALARM FEES 542.20$                 

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments 421.80$                 

Page 11 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 39



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments 25.67$                    

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments 42.00$                    

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 1,297.36$              

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 567.75$                 

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 57.68$                    

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 88.94$                    

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 1,081.53$              

83753 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 661.62$                 

83754 COLTON PUBLIC UTILITIES WELL 18A ELECTRIC 491.78$                 

83755 CWIKLO LAW FIRM SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT-D GUNN 350,000.00$          

83756 FAST SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICES 204.00$                 

83757 GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES INC Executive Recruitment Services for General Manager 6,250.00$              

83758 GRAINGER INC PR SUPPLIES 974.94$                 

83759 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 401.02$                 

83759 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 173.00$                 

83760 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 1,380.00$              

83760 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 800.00$                 

83760 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 2,525.00$              

83760 IVIE MCNEILL & WYATT A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 3,682.50$              

83761 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 95.14$                    

83761 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 61.69$                    

83761 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 149.49$                 

83761 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 275.37$                 

83761 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC SHOP SUPPLIES 61.35$                    

83762 LOWES MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 218.02$                 

83763 LUDWIG, CODY BILLS RETIREMENT LAMP 49.39$                    

83764 MARTIN BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ADA Study 2,400.00$              

83765 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 4,800.00$              

83765 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 9,600.00$              

83765 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 10,507.00$            

83766 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA, A MEDICALHR SERVICES 599.00$                 

83767 PACK N MAIL CUSTOMER SERVICES 167.00$                 

83768 RIALTO WATER SERVICES FBR WELLHEAD DISCHARGE 1,645.11$              

83768 RIALTO WATER SERVICES WELL#16 WATER SVC 30.42$                    

83768 RIALTO WATER SERVICES HQ WATER SERVICE 123.96$                 

83769 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 225.00$                 

83770 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ROEMER ELECTRICITY 43,322.88$            

83771 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD D5 CERTIFICATE-VAN JEW 105.00$                 

83772 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT NEW TICKETS 582.25$                 

83772 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT NEW TICKETS 169.42$                 

83773 VAN JEW ACWA DC & LEGISLATIVE 1,948.87$              

83774 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/TABLETS 4,966.17$              

83774 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/TABLETS 340.95$                 

83774 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/TABLETS 1,458.93$              

83775 WHITE CAP CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 235.38$                 

83776 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 204.73$                 

83777 ACWA 2023 ACWA LEGISLATIVE SYMPOSIUM-HAWKINS 325.00$                 

83777 ACWA 2023 ACWA LEGISLATIVE SYMPOSIUM-JENKINS 325.00$                 

83777 ACWA 2023 ACWA LEGISLATIVE SYMPOSIUM-JEW 325.00$                 

83778 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 480.58$                 

83778 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 129.15$                 

83778 AMAZON.COM SALES INC ADA COMPLIANCE SIGNS 533.14$                 

83778 AMAZON.COM SALES INC ADA COMPLIANCE SIGNS 94.82$                    

83778 AMAZON.COM SALES INC DISTRICT MAINTENANCE 234.89$                 

Page 12 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 40



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83779 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO Advanced Metering Infrastructure-AMI Installation 29,925.00$        

83780 ASBCSD MEETING 3/15/23-MOORE/GARCIA/JENKINS 36.00$                    

83780 ASBCSD MEETING 3/15/23-MOORE/GARCIA/JENKINS 36.00$                    

83780 ASBCSD MEETING 3/15/23-MOORE/GARCIA/JENKINS 36.00$                    

83781 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES INC GATE MAINTENANCE 509.50$                 

83782 CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO LYTLE CREEK STREAMFLOW 18,457.38$            

83783 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN Treasurer Services-FEB 2023 2,625.00$              

83784 CORE & MAIN LP 2" Ball Valve 03/02/23 3.60$                      

83784 CORE & MAIN LP 2" Ball Valve 03/02/23 1,088.66$              

83785 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 200.33$                 

83785 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 2.23$                      

83786 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 106.61$                 

83786 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 93.71$                    

83786 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC METERS SUPPLIES 157.78$                 

83787 JUSTIN HUFT TURF REBATE 377.00$                 

83788 KIEWIT INFRASTRUCTURE WEST CO STIPEND FOR OLIVER P ROEMER PROJECT 60,000.00$            

83789 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS RETURNS CREDIT (160.31)$                

83789 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLES MAINTENANCE 214.63$                 

83790 PAPER CUTS INC ON SITE DESTRUCTION 2/23/23 619.00$                 

83791 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC Design and Construction of Roemer Upgrade 2,920,000.00$   

83791 PCL CONSTRUCTION INC RETENTION- W19041 (146,000.00)$     

83792 PG MECHANICAL TRACTOR MAINTENANCE 445.00$                 

83792 PG MECHANICAL BACKHOE MAINTENANCE 295.00$                 

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 40,196.96$            

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 60,993.85$            

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 9,196.78$              

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON S END SHOP 50.24$                    

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 13,182.37$            

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 2,115.01$              

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 20,001.40$            

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 252.01$                 

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 1,329.39$              

83793 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-VARIOUS SITES 3,335.41$              

83794 THE GAS COMPANY ROEMER GAS BILL 200.36$                 

83795 YO FIRE Brass Parts 03/02/23 724.08$                 

83795 YO FIRE Brass Parts 03/02/23 253.21$                 

83795 YO FIRE Brass Parts 03/02/23 407.30$                 

83795 YO FIRE Brass Adapters 03/02/23 30.17$                    

83795 YO FIRE Brass Adapters 03/02/23 387.90$                 

83795 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 474.10$                 

83796 NAJAR, DAVID Customer Refund 35.11$                    

83797 Haubruge, Alethea Customer Refund 72.54$                    

83798 DILLON, MATTHEW Customer Refund 89.49$                    

83799 GRISMORE, GREGORY Customer Refund 56.31$                    

83800 LENNAR Customer Refund 10.39$                    

83801 LENNAR HOMES Customer Refund 0.85$                      

83802 Li, Hailan Customer Refund 21.01$                    

83803 LENNAR HOMES Customer Refund 10.39$                    

83804 Clayton, Timothy Art Customer Refund 94.67$                    

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 78.00$                    

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 910.00$                 

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 1,650.00$              

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 633.76$                 

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 125.00$                 

Page 13 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 41



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 3,250.00$              

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 93.00$                    

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 134.69$                 

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 540.00$                 

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 360.00$                 

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 72.00$                    

83805 CLASS'E PARTY RENTALS Roemer Groundbreaking  - Rentals 1,115.27$              

83806 GAO, YUAN Customer Refund 67.61$                    

83807 CORONA, EDUARDO Customer Refund 32.01$                    

83808 DURAN, VICTOR / LIDIA Customer Refund 75.25$                    

83809 LENNAR HOMES Customer Refund 17.46$                    

83810 O'dor, Cari Customer Refund 29.01$                    

83811 ACWA 2023 ACWA LEGISLATIVE SYMPOSIUM-ANGELA GARCIA 325.00$                 

83812 AIRGAS USA LLC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 37.78$                    

83813 ALVAREZ-GLASMAN & COLVIN LEGAL FEES 6,609.70$              

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 689.20$                 

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 194.78$                 

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 34.45$                    

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC METERS SUPPLIES 39.03$                    

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 30.16$                    

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC COMPUTER SUPPLIES 405.42$                 

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC Amazon Computer supplies feb 2023 70.00$                    

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC COMPUTER SUPPLIES 240.00$                 

83814 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SAFETY SUPPLIES 116.23$                 

83815 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO Large Meters 11/22/22 5,700.90$              

83815 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO MXU Order 07/19/22 11,097.34$            

83815 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO FREIGHT TO SENSUS 423.65$                 

83816 AT&T TELEMETRY LINE 69.11$                    

83817 AT&T INTERNET INTERNER SERVICE 101.65$                 

83818 BLUE - WHITE INDUSTRIES LTD Blue White M3 Peristaltic Pump 6,157.99$              

83819 CEMEX INC MAINTENANCE SHOP SUPPLIES 99.12$                    

83819 CEMEX INC SHOP SUPPLIES 90.71$                    

83820 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY PROD SUPPLIES-BALANCE DUE TAX ONLY 52.92$                    

83820 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY PROD SUPPLIES-BALANCE DUE TAX ONLY 2.63$                      

83820 CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY PROD SUPPLIES-BALANCE DUE TAX ONLY 13.98$                    

83821 CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO BLF WATER 46.13$                    

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments (403.83)$                

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments (25.67)$                  

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments (66.88)$                  

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 57.68$                    

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 88.94$                    

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 1,625.96$              

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 864.30$                 

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 1,244.36$              

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE COLONIAL 717.28$                 

83822 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE EE Adjustments 42.00$                    

83823 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 2,639.71$              

83824 FISH WINDOW CLEANING JANITORIAL SERVICES 275.00$                 

83825 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD GARNISHMENT 110.00$                 

83825 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD GARNISHMENT 110.00$                 

83826 GARDA CL WEST INC ARMORED TRANSPORT-FEB 2023 5.62$                      

83827 GHD INC Professional Engineering Services Roemer Expansion 31,847.46$        

83828 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 223.26$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 52.69$                    

Page 14 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 42



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83828 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 92.14$                    

83828 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 591.65$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 106.99$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC FBR SUPPLIES 511.70$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC FBR SUPPLIES 933.93$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 304.91$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC ROEMER SUPPLIES 856.34$                 

83828 GRAINGER INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 907.48$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT FBR SUPPLIES 277.81$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT FBR SUPPLIES 234.90$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT FBR SUPPLIES 668.02$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT ROEMER SUPPLIES 160.29$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT ROEMER SUPPLIES 172.31$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT ROEMER SUPPLIES 37.07$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 84.11$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 94.93$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 90.45$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 330.25$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 50.25$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 96.96$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 172.44$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 55.48$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 311.40$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 724.14$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT MAINTENANCE SUPLIES 142.04$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT METERS SUPPLIES 106.67$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT METERS SUPPLIES 188.40$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT METERS SUPPLIES 75.36$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT SHOP SUPPLIES 157.05$                 

83829 HOME DEPOT SHOP SUPPLIES 23.23$                    

83829 HOME DEPOT SHOP SUPPLIES 86.91$                    

83830 HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES DARLING & MAH INCLEGAL FEES-DEC 2022 73.00$                

83830 HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES DARLING & MAH INCLEGAL FEES-JAN 2023 73.00$                

83831 I.U.O.E., LOCAL UNION NO. 12 I.U.O.E LOCAL 12 UNION DUES 352.00$                 

83831 I.U.O.E., LOCAL UNION NO. 12 I.U.O.E LOCAL 12 UNION DUES 352.00$                 

83832 IFLOW ENERGY SOLUTIONS INC Zenner Meter Order 07/19/22 3,643.56$              

83832 IFLOW ENERGY SOLUTIONS INC Zenner Meter Order 07/19/22 1,879.40$              

83833 INLAND DESERT SECURITY ANSWERING SERVICE 652.80$                 

83834 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY SERVICES DEC 2022 9,698.19$              

83834 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY SERVICES JANUARY 2023 6,085.51$              

83834 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY SERVICES FEB 2023 6,085.51$              

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 49.54$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 21.29$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 1.51$                      

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 24.76$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 6.45$                      

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 360.48$                 

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 59.20$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 28.61$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 16.11$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 42.37$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 77.56$                    

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC FBR SUPPLIES 123.82$                 

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 16.15$                    

Page 15 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 43



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 224.53$                 

83835 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 10.75$                    

83836 JON'S FLAGS & POLES PR SUPPLIES 241.43$                 

83837 LAW OFFICES OF JULIA SYLVA - A LAW CORPORATIONLEGAL FEES 4,951.50$              

83838 LEAL TREJO ATTORNEYS AT LAW LEGAL FEES 10,112.50$            

83839 LEGAL SHIELD LEGALSHIELD 214.29$                 

83839 LEGAL SHIELD LEGALSHIELD 214.26$                 

83840 LOWES FBR SUPPLIES 435.74$                 

83840 LOWES ROEMER SUPPLIES 10.23$                    

83840 LOWES ROEMER SUPPLIES 234.80$                 

83841 MACKAMUL, ROBERT SAFETY GLASSES 250.00$                 

83842 MCCALLS METERS INC Large Meter Test 3" to 8" 6,125.00$              

83843 MCCROMETER INC Meter Replacement 9,911.02$              

83844 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 7,200.00$              

83844 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 12,000.00$            

83844 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 8,843.60$              

83844 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 10,154.96$            

83844 MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC. Street Paving 13,138.02$            

83845 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA, A MEDICALHR SERVICES 59.00$                    

83846 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 24.77$                    

83846 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 50.62$                    

83847 PATTON SALES CORP MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 26.24$                    

83847 PATTON SALES CORP MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES (18.64)$                  

83847 PATTON SALES CORP MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 31.14$                    

83848 PG MECHANICAL BACKHOE MAINTENANCE 560.00$                 

83849 RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS INC Financial Plan and Water Rate Structure Study 2023 7,995.00$              

83850 RIALTO FIRE DEPARTMENT 2023 ANNUAL FIRE PERMIT FEE 433.60$                 

83851 RIALTO WATER SERVICES ROEMER SEWER SVC 67.17$                    

83852 ROBERT GALLEGOS INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 538.75$                 

83853 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 350.00$                 

83854 SHERIFFS COURT SERVICES GARNISHMENT 85.59$                    

83855 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY- 19920 COUNTRY CLUB/WELL#17 705.03$                 

83855 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY- 19920 COUNTRY CLUB/WELL#17 375.61$                 

83855 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-WELL# 6 26,541.52$            

83856 SOURCE GRAPHICS ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 521.92$                 

83857 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD WATER SYSTEM ANNUAL FEES 533.29$                 

83858 STERLING WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC Aluminum Chlorohydrate for Roemer 29,848.40$            

83859 THE GAS COMPANY HQ GAS BILL 905.14$                 

83860 THE STANDARD AD&D 31.50$                    

83860 THE STANDARD DEPENDENT LIFE 6.15$                      

83860 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 232.50$                 

83860 THE STANDARD LONG TERM DISABILITY 22.73$                    

83860 THE STANDARD AD&D 309.57$                 

83860 THE STANDARD DEPENDENT LIFE 93.48$                    

83860 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 2,209.09$              

83860 THE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE 57.36$                    

83860 THE STANDARD LONG TERM DISABILITY 2,097.54$              

83860 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 600.99$                 

83860 THE STANDARD EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX 565.31$                 

83860 THE STANDARD EE Adjustment and Pending 87.80$                    

83860 THE STANDARD EE Adjustment and Pending 45.79$                    

83860 THE STANDARD EE Adjustment - Perez, B (13.80)$                  

83861 ULINE SHOP SUPPLIES 520.83$                 

83862 USA BLUEBOOK FBR SUPPLIES 582.90$                 

Page 16 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 44



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

March 2023

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount

83862 USA BLUEBOOK FBR SUPPLIES 233.04$                 

83862 USA BLUEBOOK ROEMER SUPPLIES 397.00$                 

83863 VERIZON CONNECT NWF INC CONTRACTS/LICENSES 679.98$                 

83864 YO FIRE Brass Parts 01/12/23 387.90$                 

83864 YO FIRE Ford Stock Order 08/09/22 969.75$                 

83864 YO FIRE Ford Stock Order 08/09/22 4,525.50$              

83864 YO FIRE Brass Parts 01/12/23 6,034.00$              

83864 YO FIRE Brass Parts 01/12/23 1,012.85$              

83864 YO FIRE WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 1,185.25$              

83864 YO FIRE WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 700.38$                 

83864 YO FIRE WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 484.88$                 

83864 YO FIRE WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES-CREDIT (1,185.25)$             

83864 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 471.91$                 

83865 REYES, SHENE Customer Refund 227.39$                 

83866 ORELLANA, PABLO/ ROUCHEL Customer Refund 59.09$                    

83867 TSANG, SAMUEL Customer Refund 56.49$                    

83868 LIANG, CHENG Customer Refund 45.84$                    

83869 GUTIERREZ, JENNIFER / RAUL Customer Refund 58.62$                    

83870 AMAZON.COM SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 168.95$                 

83871 AT&T ROEMER FIRE SVC 541.06$                 

83872 CEMEX INC SHOP SUPPLIES 91.97$                    

83873 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 183.67$                 

83874 CITY OF FONTANA EXCAVATION  INSPECTION FEE 251.00$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83875 CITY OF RIALTO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 958.70$                 

83876 CPS HR CONSULTING HR SERVICES/SUPPLIES 784.30$                 

83876 CPS HR CONSULTING RETURNS CREDIT (35.00)$                  

83877 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 497.40$                 

83878 FIRST AMERICAN TITLE COMPANY REPORT FOR APN 0256-131-17 4,500.00$              

83879 GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES INC Executive Recruitment Services for General Manager 6,250.00$              

83880 GRAINGER INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 362.98$                 

83880 GRAINGER INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 544.49$                 

83881 HOME DEPOT PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 107.98$                 

83881 HOME DEPOT SHOP SUPPLIES 343.70$                 

83882 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 122.50$                 

83882 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 19.37$                    

83883 KAZALUNAS, KURT T SAFETY BOOTS 203.59$                 

83884 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER LIEN RELEASE 20.00$                    

83885 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 312.48$                 

83885 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 215.50$                 

DFT0002861 US BANK INTERESTS PAYMENT (179.46)$                

DFT0002861 US BANK INTERESTS PAYMENT 428,350.00$          

SUBTOTALS 2,117,866.82$      2,840,417.96$   

GRAND TOTAL 4,958,284.78$   

Page 17 of 17

6.5.a

Packet Pg. 45



Exhibit B 

6.5.b

Packet Pg. 46



Report Month       Description From To Gross Wages Paid

July 2022 Monthly Pay Period #7 06/01/22 06/30/22 7,113.22                      
July 2022 Pay Period #14 06/24/22 07/08/22 322,603.34                  
July 2022 Pay Period #15 07/08/22 07/22/22 295,540.63                  

Total for July 2022 625,257.19                  

August 2022 Monthly Pay Period #8 07/01/22 07/31/22 7,113.22                      
August 2022 Pay Period #16 07/22/22 08/05/22 302,888.25                  
August 2022 Pay Period #17 08/05/22 08/19/22 291,827.03                  

Total for August 2022 601,828.50                  

September 2022 Monthly Pay Period #9 08/01/22 08/30/22 7,487.60                      
September 2022 Pay Period #18 08/19/22 09/02/22 295,994.15                  
September 2022 Pay Period #19 09/02/22 09/16/22 281,560.23                  

Total for September 2022 585,041.98                  

October 2022 Monthly Pay Period #10 09/01/22 09/30/22 8,236.36                      
October 2022 Pay Period #20 09/16/22 09/30/22 290,932.18                  
October 2022 Pay Period #21 09/30/22 10/14/22 283,102.95                  

Total for October 2022 582,271.49                  

November 2022 Monthly Pay Period #11 10/01/22 10/31/22 9,621.58                      
November 2022 Pay Period #22 10/14/22 10/28/22 274,535.56                  
November 2022 Manual Checks
November 2022 Pay Period #23 10/28/22 11/11/22 359,504.87                  

Total for November 2022 643,662.01                  

December 2022 Monthly Pay Period #12 11/01/22 11/30/22 9,630.95                      
December 2022 Pay Period #24 11/11/22 11/25/22 297,401.31                  
December 2022 Pay Period #25 11/25/22 12/09/22 316,141.81                  
December 2022 Pay Period #26 12/09/22 12/23/22 292,536.16                  

Total for December 2022 915,710.23                  

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PAYROLL GROSS WAGES

FISCAL YEAR 2022 - 2023

EFT Payroll Items for Board Approval
Payroll Gross Wages

6.5.b

Packet Pg. 47



Report Month       Description From To Gross Wages Paid

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PAYROLL GROSS WAGES

FISCAL YEAR 2022 - 2023

January 2023 Pay Period #1 12/23/22 01/06/23 324,181.41                  
January 2023 Monthly Pay Period #1 12/01/22 12/31/22 7,075.80                      
January 2023 Manual Check (Settlement) 75,000.00                    
January 2023 Pay Period #2 01/06/23 01/20/23 313,404.24                  

Total for January 2023 719,661.45                  

 February 2023 Monthly Pay Period #2 01/01/23 01/31/23 7,665.45                      
 February 2023 Pay Period #3 01/20/23 02/03/23 323,462.81                  

 March 2023 Monthly Pay Period #3 02/01/23 02/28/23 9,827.50                      
 March 2023 Pay Period #5 02/17/23 03/03/23 314,055.41                  
 March 2023 Pay Period #6 03/03/23 03/17/23 343,837.94                  

Total for March 2023 667,720.85                  

EFT Payroll Items for Board Approval
Payroll Gross Wages

6.5.b

Packet Pg. 48



Date Item
Check No. or 

EFT
Amount

03/09/23 Monthly Pay Period #3 none 0.00
03/09/23 Pay Period #5 8896 - 8898 2,368.52
03/23/23 Pay Period #6 8899 - 8900 1,820.16

   Total Checks 4,188.68

03/09/23 Monthly Pay Period #3 Direct Deposits EFT 8,544.07
03/09/23 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 1,815.01
03/09/23 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 95.35

03/09/23 Pay Period #5 Direct Deposits EFT 204,895.44
03/09/23 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 82,072.33
03/09/23 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 16,155.80
03/09/23 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,868.05
03/09/23 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,625.00
03/09/23 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 4,202.30
03/09/23 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 775.00
03/09/23 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 28,259.54
03/09/23 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 18,206.54
03/09/23 California State Disbursement EFT 1,050.46

03/23/23 Pay Period #6 Direct Deposits EFT 233,620.48
03/23/23 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 85,402.43
03/23/23 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 15,936.69
03/23/23 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,948.46
03/23/23 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,625.00
03/23/23 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 4,202.30
03/23/23 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 775.00
03/23/23 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 28,445.88
03/23/23 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 18,405.34
03/23/23 California State Disbursement EFT 984.46

03/23/23 Sterling Administration (Pay Day 2/09/23) EFT 577.09
03/23/23 Sterling Administration (Pay Day 2/23/23) EFT 577.09
03/23/23 Sterling Administration (Pay Day 3/09/23) EFT 639.59

   Total EFT 792,704.70

Grand Total Payroll Cash 796,893.38

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
EFT AND PAYROLL ITEMS

MARCH 2023

EFT Payroll Items for Board Approval
Mar

6.5.b

Packet Pg. 49



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
At the August 20, 2020, Board of Directors meeting, the WVWD Board of Directors approved and 
authorized the Chief Financial Officer to transfer funds in/out of the District’s Chase account 
to/from the District’s investment accounts to take advantage of potential interest earnings. At this 
meeting, the WVWD Board also requested that the CFO provide a detailed report to the Board of 
all transfers on a monthly basis and include this report in the monthly financial reports presented to 
the Board. March’s Funds Transfer Report is attached as Exhibit A. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Potential interest earnings on funds invested/transferred. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the March 2023 Funds Transfer 
Report. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jv 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: FUNDS TRANSFER REPORT - MARCH 2023 

6.6

Packet Pg. 50



ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Exhibit A - 2023 March Funds Transfer Report 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/19/23 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

6.6

Packet Pg. 51



EXHIBIT A 

6.6.a

Packet Pg. 52



Date Amount
3/17/2023 74,749,895.83     
3/17/2023 4,462,537.75        
3/17/2023 US Bank-Chandler 30,546,433.44     

Date Amount
3/17/2023 50,000,000.00     
3/18/2023 50,000,000.00     

Date Amount
3/17/2023 24,749,895.83     
3/18/2023 4,761,068.84        
3/18/2023 US Bank-Chandler 80,546,433.44     

LAIF

**Ending balances may include other credits/deposits besides transfer amounts.

LAIF           Chase Gen Checking

Chase Gen Checking

Chase Gen Checking

Fund Transfer Detail March 2023

Beginning Balances
LAIF

Transfers

Chase Gen Checking           US Bank-Chandler

**Ending Balances (After Transfers)

6.6.a

Packet Pg. 53



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
West Valley Water District (“District”) contracts with the Clifton Larson Allen LLP to prepare West 
Valley Water District’s (WVWD) Investment report on a monthly basis. The District’s investment 
policy is in uniformity with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines 
(Government Code Section 53601(b)). The Treasurer Report for the Month of March 2023 
(Exhibit A) is presented to the Finance Committee for discussion.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Monthly Cost of $2,625 was included in the FY 2022-23 annual budget. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the March 2023 Treasurer’s 
Report. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jv 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: TREASURER'S REPORT - MARCH 2023 

6.7

Packet Pg. 54



1. Exhibit A - 2023 March Treasurer Report 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/19/23 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD   

6.7

Packet Pg. 55



EXHIBIT A 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 56



West Valley Water District
Cash, Investment & Reserve Balances - March 31, 2023

February 2023 March 2023 Minimum Target Maximum
Institution/Investment Type Balance Balance OPERATING CASH Balance Balance Balance
Funds Under Control of the District: Balance Available for Daily Operations 39,283,420.78$     30,241,285.09$     15,276,649.40$     

Total Operating Cash 39,283,420.78$     30,241,285.09$     15,276,649.40$     
District Cash Drawers 4,300.00$              4,300.00$              UNRESTRICTED RESERVES

4,300.00$              4,300.00$              CAPITAL RESERVES
Capital Project Account - 100% FY 22-23 7,334,500.00$       7,334,500.00$       10,000,000.00$     

Capital Project Account-80% FY 23-24 4,868,000.00$       4,868,000.00$       8,000,000.00$       
Checking and Savings: Administrative & General Account 1,582,998.10$       1,582,998.10$       1,582,998.10$       
   Chase - General Government Checking 3,558,450.30$       1,224,652.42$       13,785,498.10$     13,785,498.10$     19,582,998.10$     
   Chase - Special Rebate Checking -$                       -$                       LIQUIDITY FUNDS
   Chase - UTC Routine Checking 106,848.58$          5,000.56$              Rate Stabilization Account 985,094.40$          2,955,283.20$       4,925,472.00$       
   Chase - UTC Non-Routine Checking 48,636.50$            48,636.50$            Operating Reserve Account 5,276,660.33$       10,553,320.67$     15,829,981.00$     

3,713,935.38$       1,278,289.48$       Emergency Account 1,295,286.56$       2,590,573.11$       3,885,859.67$       
Water Banking Account 125,000.00$          625,000.00$          1,250,000.00$       

State of California, Local Agency Investment Fund* 74,749,895.83$     24,749,895.83$     7,682,041.29$       16,724,176.98$     25,891,312.67$     
US Bank - Chandler Asset Mgmt 30,546,433.44$     31,064,580.70$     OTHER OPERATING RESERVES
US Bank - Chandler Liquidity Fund -$                       50,087,652.57$     Self-Insurance Reserve 5,000,000.00$       5,000,000.00$       5,000,000.00$       
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Short Term 16,960,838.88$     17,034,277.34$     5,000,000.00$       5,000,000.00$       5,000,000.00$       
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Medium Term -$                       -$                       Total Unrestricted Reserves 26,467,539.39$     35,509,675.08$     50,474,310.77$     

Total OP Cash & UR Reserves 65,750,960.17$     65,750,960.17$     65,750,960.17$     
U. S. Treasury Bills RESTRICTED RESERVES
Government Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank) -$                       -$                       2016A Bond 428,350.56$          428,350.56$          428,350.56$          

Customer Deposit Accounts 5,650,629.95$       5,650,629.95$       5,650,629.95$       
Total 125,975,403.53$   124,218,995.92$   Capacity Charge Acct Balance 49,817,405.80$     49,817,405.80$     49,817,405.80$     
Funds Under Control of Fiscal Agents: CIP account in LAIF for capital purposes 3,000,000.00$       3,000,000.00$       3,000,000.00$       
US BANK Total Restricted Reserves 58,896,386.31$     58,896,386.31$     58,896,386.31$     
   2016A Bond - Principal & Payment Funds 179.46$                 428,350.56$          
   2016A Bond - Interest Fund -$                       -$                       
Total 179.46$                 428,350.56$          
Grand Total 125,975,582.99$   124,647,346.48$   Total Cash & Investments 124,647,346.48$   124,647,346.48$   124,647,346.48$   

I hereby certify that the investment activity for this reporting period conforms with the investment policy adopted by the West Valley Water District
Board of Directors and the California Government Code Section 53601 

 I also certify that there are adequate funds available to meet the District's Budget.

Chief Financial Officer

*Quarterly interest posted the month following the quarter end.

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 57



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

1

Note:

All significant assumptions, methodologies and analyzed amounts were discussed with and agreed to by 

the District’s accounting staff.  From this conversation, we believe the District’s accounting staff has the 

requisite knowledge and understanding of the processes/analyses prepared by CLA as not to impair our 

independence.  

Total Fund Balance

When comparing the District’s total fund balances month-over-month between March

($124,647,346.48) and February ($125,975,582.99), CLA found the $1,328,236.51 decreased fund 

balance between March and February.

U.S. Bank Chandler Custodial Account

Cash/Money Market - Per Section 9.11 of the District’s investment policy, “The company shall have met 

either one of the following criteria: 1) attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical 

rating provided by not less than two NRSROs “Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization” or 

2) retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission with not less than five years of experience managing money market mutual funds 

with assets under management in excess of five hundred million dollars.” Based on Chandler Asset 

Management’s reconciliation summary for the period ending March 31, 2023, CLA was able to confirm

the District’s cash and money-market securities were in accordance with the investment policy. CLA also 

conducted a review of the District’s cash and money-market securities and found that all the District’s 

holdings were in alignment with the requirements set forth in the investment policy.  

In addition to ensuring that the District’s money market funds attained the highest ranking provided by 

more than one NRSRO, the District also met the requirements outlined in Section 9.11 of the investment 

policy through its established relationship with Chandler Asset Management. With total assets under 

management of over $25 billion with over thirty years of experience in managing money market mutual 

funds, Chandler Asset Management exceeds the requirements of the District’s policy. 

Per the investment policy, the maximum percentage of District investments in money market funds is 

capped at 20%. Similarly, the allowable mutual fund and money market account instruments per 

California government code (Sections 53601(I) and 53601.6(b)) for local government entities are also 

capped at 20%. The District’s money market balance percentage as of March 31, 2023 is 0.04%. 

Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and California governmental code. 

United States Treasury Issues – Per Section 9.1 of the investment policy, “there’s no limitation as to the 

percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in this category.”

The District’s investment policy is in uniformity with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment 

Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(b)). These guidelines establish that maximum investment 

maturities for United States Treasury Obligations are limited to five years. However, the legislative body 

may grant express authority to make investments either specifically or as a part of an investment 

program approved by the legislative body that exceeds this five-year remaining maturity limit. Such 

approval must be issued no less than three months prior to the purchase of any security exceeding the 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 58



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

2

five-year maturity limit. These guidelines do not establish a maximum specified percentage of the 

District’s investment portfolio for United States Treasury Obligations. 

As of March 31, 2023, 37.48% of the District’s total portfolio is invested in United States Treasury Issues. 

With no maximum percentage established for United States Treasury Issues, the District is in conformity 

with the investment policy and the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit – Section 9.4 of the District’s investment policy states “purchases are 

limited to securities that have a long-term debt rating of at least the “A” category, or its equivalent, by a 

NRSRO.” All instruments categorized as negotiable certificates of deposit in the District’s portfolio follow 

Section 9.4 of the investment policy, as each security has a satisfactory long-term debt rating, and the 

investment matures within the five-year time frame as dictated in the policy. Based on CLA’s analysis, 

the purchase dates for all medium-term notes fall within the five-year framework established in the 

investment policy.

Per Section 9.4 of the investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in negotiable 

certificates of deposit is 30% of the portfolio. 

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency 

Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(i)) regarding negotiable certificates of deposit. 

These guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for 

certificates of deposit at 30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum 

investment maturities for medium-term notes are limited to five years.

Negotiable certificates of deposit constitute 0.0% of the District’s total investment balance as of March

31, 2023. Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s 

standards.

Medium-Term Notes – Section 9.10 of the District’s investment policy states “purchases are limited to 

securities that have a long-term debt rating of at least the “A” category, or its equivalent, by a NRSRO.” 

The investment policy also states that medium-term notes should have a “maximum remaining maturity 

of five years or less.” All instruments categorized as medium-term notes in the District’s portfolio follow

Section 9.10 of the investment policy, as each security has a satisfactory long-term debt rating, and the 

investment matures within the five-year time frame as dictated in the policy. Based on CLA’s analysis, 

the purchase dates for all medium-term notes fall within the five-year framework established in the 

investment policy.

Per Section 9.10 of the investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in medium short-

term notes is 30% of the portfolio. 

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency 

Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(k)) regarding medium-term notes. These 

guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for medium-

term notes at 30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment 

maturities for medium-term notes are limited to five years.

Medium-term notes constitute 6.49% of the District’s total investment balance as of March 31, 2023.  

Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s standards. 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 59



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

3

Federal Agency Obligations – Per Section 9.5 of the District’s investment policy, “there is no limitation 

as to the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in this category, however, purchases of 

callable Federal Agency obligations are limited to a maximum of 30 percent of the portfolio.” Although 

the policy does not explicitly list the bond rating requirements for federal agency obligations, all the 

District’s current federal agency holdings are rated AAA by multiple NRSRO’s as of March 31, 2023. 

While the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines have not established a maximum 

specified percentage for investments in federal agency obligations, these guidelines establish that 

maximum investment maturities for Federal Agency Obligations are limited to five years (Government 

Code Section 53601(f)). However, the legislative body may grant express authority to make investments 

either specifically or as a part of an investment program approved by the legislative body that exceeds 

this five year remaining maturity limit. Such approval must be issued no less than three months prior to 

the purchase of any security exceeding the five-year maturity limit.

Federal agency obligations represent 20.39% of the District’s total investment balance as of March 31, 

2023. Therefore, the District is in accordance with both its investment policy as well as the guidelines 

set-forth by the State of California. 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

The State of California, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) processes a same-day transaction if notified 

by 10:00 am. This ability satisfies the investment requirement of 24-hour liquidity as stipulated in the 

investment policy for the District.

Per Section 9.2 of the District’s investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in the State

of California, Local Agency Investment Fund is unlimited.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency 

Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 16429.1) concerning the Local Agency Investment 

Fund. These guidelines establish no maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio 

while also dictating no maximum maturity date for LAIF investments. 

Per the Standard and Poor’s rating system, California’s Current Credit Rating is AA-, identifying the credit 

quality of the fund’s portfolio performance as strong.

As of the period ending March 31, 2023, the District’s Local Agency Investment Fund balance represents 

19.86% of the District’s entire portfolio. Therefore, the District is following the investment policy as well 

as the standards of the Local Agency Investment Guidelines. 

Based on the LAIF performance report dated April 5, 2023, LAIF investments had a net-yield of 2.831%. 

Regarding portfolio composition, LAIF fund investments were split into the following categories

(percentages may not total 100% due to rounding):

 Treasuries- 64.81%

 Agencies- 21.68%

 Certificates of Deposit/Bank Notes- 6.21%

 Commercial Paper- 4.25%

 Time Deposits- 2.62%

 Loans- 0.19%

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 60



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

4

 Corporate Bonds- 0.24%

On March 20, 2019, the District received a $3 million dollar settlement as part of a larger association of 

local water districts and municipalities, from the San Gabriel Valley Water Company, Fontana Union 

Water Company, and the San Gabriel California Corporation. Per the settlement agreement, “West 

Valley and the non-settling plaintiffs separately asserted six claims alleging breach of contract and other 

claims arising from the 1961 Decree.” The 1961 Decree governs groundwater pumping from a portion of 

the Rialto-Colton Basin. The claims also concern the defendants (Fontana Parties) pumping from a 

portion of the Rialto-Colton Basin that is outside the Rialto Basin as defined by the 1961 Decree. The San 

Bernardino Basin Area and most but not all the Rialto-Colton Basin are located within the service area of 

the Valley District and this violation served as the basis of the settlement. 

The settlement check was received and deposited into the District’s General Government Checking bank 

account and the District’s board approved the transfer of the $3 million in settlement funds to the 

District’s LAIF account on April 4, 2019. While these funds have been earmarked for Capital 

Improvement Projects, the District has yet to allocate these funds to any specific project and the District 

will house all settlement funding in the LAIF account until board approval is received for the allocation of 

these funds. 

In March, the District moved $50 million from LAIF to the US Bank Chandler custodial account in order to 

diversify the District’s investment portfolio and enhance interest income.

The Investment Trust of California (Cal TRUST)

The District maintains investments in the CalTRUST Short-Term Fund. For the month ending March 31, 

2023 the Net Asset Value per share was $10.00 ($17,034,277.34 book value) for CalTRUST Short-Term 

Fund investments. Per the CalTRUST Month End Portfolio Statistics dated March 31, 2023, the credit 

rating for the Short-Term Fund is AAf, identifying the credit quality of the fund’s portfolio performance 

as very strong. 

Section 9.3 of the District’s investment policy states “no limit will be placed on the percentage total in 

this category.” The State of California also fails to establish a maximum percentage total for investment 

trusts per Government Code Section 16340.  As of the period ending March 31, 2023, the District’s 

CalTRUST investment balance represents 13.67% of the District’s entire portfolio.  Therefore, the District 

is following the investment policy and the standards set-forth by the State of California as it relates to 

CalTRUST securities. 

Bank Deposits

Based on the District’s investment policy, “Securities placed in a collateral pool must provide coverage 

for at least 100 percent of all deposits that are placed in that institution.” As of March 31, 2023, the 

District maintained balances within the FDIC limit of $250,000 for each of its bank accounts, except for

the Chase General Governmental Checking account and the US Bank 2016A Bond payment account. The 

Chase General Governmental Checking account maintains funds for operational purposes and normally 

carries a balance of at least $1.5 million dollars which represents funding for one payroll, and one 

accounts payable check run. In CLA’s comparison between the District’s general checking account 

balances for March 2023 ($1,224,652.42) and February 2023 ($3,558,450.30), CLA observed a decrease

of $2,333,797.88 was due to a few factors. The District collected $457k for two projects and transferred 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 61



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

5

$448k from the UTC Routine checking account. The District then made a payment of $2.7 million for the 

Expand Roemer Plant Capacity project and moved $428k to the US Bank 2016A Bond payment account.

During our review of the March 2023 Chase General Governmental Checking account bank statement, it 

was noted that there was 1 fraudulent activity the amount of $10,000. West Valley Water District 

(“WVWD”) has a procedure where the bank issues a check/ACH exception report for WVWD to review 

and reject fraudulent checks/ACHs as needed. Currently, WVWD has implemented check number and 

amount positive pay.

While the District reconciles its deposit accounts monthly, CLA found that the District has historically 

reported the month-ending bank statement balance on the Treasurer’s Report. Because the monthly 

bank statement does not take any outstanding checks or other withdrawals into account, the District 

may be overstating the General Government Checking balances on the Treasurer’s Report, which 

ultimately impacts its liquidity.

In March, the UTC Routine Checking account was $5,000.56, which represents a decrease of 

$101,848.02 from the February balance. The District received its quarterly deposit from Raytheon 

Technologies Corporation for $346,463.64 on March 1, 2023. The District then transferred $448,311.66 

to the Chase General Governmental Checking account, resulting in an ending account balance of 

$5,000.56. The UTC Non-Routine Checking account balance was $48,636.50, which remained unchanged 

between March 2023 and February 2023. The relatively low balances in both accounts (in comparison 

with the historical balances) is due to the CFO’s emphasis on transferring more of its unrestricted cash 

balances to the District’s investments accounts to take advantage of the increased rate of return.

In analyzing the accounting for the District’s cash drawers ($3,600) and petty cash ($700), per the 

District’s accounting staff, the District’s cash drawers are normally reconciled daily. Each drawer is 

counted by the customer service representative responsible for the drawer and a secondary count is 

performed by the customer service lead or supervisor prior to the funds being relinquished to the 

District’s armored security provider, Gaurda, for deposit daily. Cash deposits are reconciled daily by the 

District’s accounting department. Petty cash is normally reconciled by the accounting department 

monthly. The District’s accounting department provided CLA with a formalized reconciliation for the 

petty cash account and the cash drawers for March 2023, therefore CLA was able to agree the cash 

drawers and petty cash balance to the District Cash Drawers summary schedule.

Section 9.12 of the investment policy asserts that “there is no limit on the percentage of the portfolio 

that may be invested in bank deposits.” Similarly, the State of California’s Government Code for 

Allowable Investment Instruments fails to dictate any portfolio standards for general bank deposit 

accounts. Although no maximum has been established for amounts invested in bank deposits by the 

investment policy or the State of California, CLA can verify that as of March 31, 2023 the District had

1.37% of its portfolio invested in bank deposit accounts. 

Commercial Paper

Commercial paper is an unsecured, short-term debt instrument issued by a corporation, typically for the 

financing of accounts payable and inventories and meeting short-term liabilities. Commercial paper is 

usually issued at a discount from face value and typically reflects prevailing market interest rates. Per 

section 9.8 of the investment policy, the entity that issues the commercial paper should meet all the 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 62



West Valley Water District Investment Memo – March 2023

6

following conditions “(i) is organized and operating in the United States as a general corporation, (ii) has 

total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000), and (iii) has debt other than 

commercial paper, if any, that is rated at least the “A” category by a NRSRO. For a commercial paper 

investment to be eligible for the District, the commercial paper shall not have a maximum maturity of 

270 days or less and no more than 25% of the District’s portfolio may be invested in this category. 

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency 

Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601 (h)) regarding Commercial Paper. These 

guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for 

commercial paper at 25%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment 

maturities for commercial paper should be 270 days or less.

As of March 31, 2023, the District had 0.0% invested in commercial paper investment. Therefore, the 

District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s standards.

Supranational

Supranationals are explicitly defined in Section 9.14 of the investment policy as “US dollar-denominated 

senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank 

for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American 

Development Bank”. Securities listed as supranationals must be rated in the AA category or higher by a 

NRSRO and no more than 30% of the District’s portfolio may be invested in these securities with a 

maximum maturity of five years. 

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency 

Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(q)) regarding supranationals. These guidelines 

establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for supranationals at 

30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment maturities for 

supranationals should be five years or less.

As of March 31, 2023, the District’s investments in five securities categorized as supranationals was 

0.71% of the total portfolio and securities maintained a maturity date of less than five years from the

original purchase date. CLA can confirm that the District’s supranational investments meet the standards 

of both the investment policy and the State of California.

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 63



West Valley Water District Reserve Memo – March 2023

1

Note:

All significant assumptions, methodologies and analyzed amounts were discussed with and agreed to by

the District’s accounting staff. From this conversation, we believe the District’s accounting staff has the 

requisite knowledge and understanding of the processes/analyses prepared by CLA as not to 

impairment our independence.  

Restricted Funds

Bond Proceeds Fund(s) – Balances in the bond proceeds fund accounts represent monies derived from 

the proceeds of a bond issue. Per the requirements of the District’s reserve policy, the target level for 

the debt service reserve requirement is established at the time of the bond issue. Based on 

documentation provided to CLA, “no reserve fund has been established in connection with the issuance 

of the 2016A bonds.” Therefore, the March 31, 2023 ending balance of $428,350.56 satisfies the 

minimum balance requirements per the District’s reserve policy. 

Customer Deposit Accounts – Due to fluctuations in the number of utility customer deposits required 

and the number of development projects in process, no minimum or maximum levels have been 

established for customer deposit accounts. The customer deposit account balances presented on the 

treasurer’s report are based on the ending balance on the general ledger for the month. The customer 

deposit accounts are reconciled monthly. CLA was able to confirm that the customer deposit accounts 

balance presented on the March 2023 Treasurer’s Report reconciles with the District’s general ledger. 

The March 31, 2023 balance of $5,650,629.95 in customer deposit accounts satisfies the balance 

requirements of the District’s reserve policy. 

Capacity Charge Account – The District’s reserve policy does not explicitly address or specify any 

minimum or maximum funding levels for capacity charge accounts. However, based on the 

reconciliation schedule provided by the District, CLA can confirm that the balance of $49,817,405.80

presented on the March 2023 Treasurer’s Report for the Capacity Charge Account reconciles with the 

documentation provided to CLA with no variance.

CIP Account in LAIF for Capital Purposes – On March 20, 2019, the District received a $3 million dollar 

settlement as part of a larger association of local water districts and municipalities, from the San Gabriel 

Valley Water Company, Fontana Union Water Company and the San Gabriel California Corporation. The 

check was received and deposited into the District’s General Government Checking bank account and 

the District’s board approved the transfer of the $3 million dollars in settlement funds to the District’s 

LAIF account on April 4, 2019. While these settlement funds have been restricted for Capital 

Improvement Projects, currently there are no designations or allocations for District funding towards 

any Capital Improvement Projects.

Capital Reserve Funds

Capital Project Account – The capital project account is used for the funding of new capital assets or the 

rehabilitation, enhancement, or replacement of capital assets when they reach the end of their useful 

lives. Per the requirements of the District’s reserve policy, “the minimum target level WVWD will strive 

for is 100% of its then-current year fiscal year from the Capital Improvement Budgets plus 80% of the 

amount estimated to be needed the following fiscal year.” The District currently maintains a balance of 

$12,202,500.00 ($7,334,500.00 for fiscal year 2022-23 and $4,868,000.00 for fiscal year 2023-24) in its 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 64



West Valley Water District Reserve Memo – March 2023

2

capital project account, meeting the minimum target level required for both fiscal years. CLA was able to 

confirm that the District is in adherence with the minimum target level requirement as of March 31, 

2023 by comparing the board-approved Fiscal Year 2022-23 Mid-Year Capital Improvement Budget 

adjustments which indicates a total CIP (Operating Revenue + Capital Project Fund) for fiscal year 2022-

23 of $7,334,500.00. The reserve policy only requires the district to maintain 80% of the amount 

estimated to be needed the following fiscal year (2023-24) which amounts to $4,868,000.00, therefore, 

the District meets the requirement indicated in its reserve policy. 

Administrative & General Account – The administrative and general account is utilized to fund certain 

general, administration and overhead projects. While no specific target level has been earmarked for 

either project, the District hopes to maintain a minimum balance in the administrative and general 

account equal to 5% of its annual operating expenses. Per the FY 2022-23 board-approved budget, CLA 

can confirm the District has an operating expenses budget of $31,659,962.37.  As of March 31, 2023, the 

administrative and general account contains $1,582,998.10 which satisfies the 5% minimum 

requirement of the District’s reserve policy. 

Liquidity Funds

Rate Stabilization Fund – This fund is established to provide flexibility to the Board when settling rates 

to allow for absorbing fluctuations in water demand and smoothing out rate increases over time, 

temporarily defraying any unforeseen decreases in the sale of water. To remain in conjunction with the 

reserve policy, the District should aim to maintain a minimum level equal to 5% of water sales. Per the 

FY 2022-23 board-approved budget, the District anticipates water revenues of $19,701,887.62 for the 

current fiscal year. The District’s current balance of $985,094.40 in its rate stabilization account achieves 

the minimum target level for this account as indicated in the reserve policy. 

Operating Reserve Account – This fund may be routinely utilized by staff to cover temporary cash flow 

deficiencies caused by timing differences between revenue and expenses or decreases in revenues and 

unanticipated increases in expenses. Given the significance of this account, the District strives to 

maintain a minimum amount equal to 60 days of the District’s budgeted total operating expenses in this 

account. Per the FY 2022-23 board-approved budget, CLA can confirm the District has an operating 

expenses budget of $31,659,962.37. As of March 31, 2023, the operating reserve account maintains a 

balance of $5,276,660.33, which satisfies the requirements of the District’s reserve policy.

Emergency Account – The emergency account may be utilized to purchase water at any time or to begin 

repair of the water system after a catastrophic event. Therefore, a minimum target level equal to 1% of 

net capital assets of the District’s water system has been established to enable the district to manage 

emergency situations. Per March 31, 2023 general ledger detail reporting provided by the District’s 

accounting staff, CLA was able to confirm that the District’s net assets total $129,529,655.95. As of 

March 31, 2023, the emergency account represents a balance of $1,295,286.56 or 1% of total net assets, 

allowing the District to meet its requirements for the reserve policy.

Water Banking Account – The District’s reserve policy states “The District will strive to maintain a 

minimum level equal to the cost of 1,000 acre-feet of water and a maximum amount equal to the cost of 

10,000 acre-feet of water.” Per an invoice from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, CLA 

can confirm that the District currently pays $125 per acre-feet of water. By maintaining a balance of 

$125,000 in its Water Banking Account, the District is in adherence with its reserve policy. 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 65



West Valley Water District Reserve Memo – March 2023

3

Self-Insurance Reserve – As indicated in the minutes from the April 5, 2018 board meeting, the District’s 

board of directors approved $5,000,000 in funds for employee liability claims and this amount is 

considered adequate based on conversations with the District’s CFO. 

Balance Available for Daily Operations – This balance represents the District’s total cash balance less 

any fund requirements. For the month ending March 31, 2023, the District had a total of

$124,647,346.48 in various institutional accounts. The required reserve balances by type total 

$85,363,925.70 and are categorized as follows:

 Restricted Funds- $58,896,386.31

 Capital Reserve Funds- $13,785,498.10

 Liquidity Funds- $7,682,041.29

 Other Reserves- $5,000,000.00

Based on the District’s Treasurer’s Report, which indicates a total cash balance of $124,647,346.48 and 

fund requirements of $85,363,925.70, the fund balance available for daily operations reconciles to the 

March 2023 Treasurer’s report.

CLA reviewed the Treasurer’s report for clerical accuracy and recalculated the total Unrestricted 

Reserves balance and agreed the totals to the March 2023 Treasurer’s Report. The Treasurer’s Report 

indicates that West Valley Water District’s total cash, investment, and reserve balances as of March 31, 

2023 total $124,647,346.48. In its assessment of the District’s accounts, the balances on the Treasurer’s 

Report appear to agree with the supporting documentation provided by the West Valley Water District. 

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 66



West Valley Water District

Investment Policy Analysis

March 31, 2023

U.S. Bank - Chandler Asset Management Security Type Maximum per Investment Policy Balance

Money Market 47,083.57              A Commercial Paper 25% -                                         

Commercial Paper -                          A Federal Agency Obligations 30% 25,420,886.25                     

Federal Agency Obligations 25,420,886.25      A U.S. Government No Limit 46,717,388.35                     

U.S. Government 46,717,388.35      A LAIF No Limit 24,749,895.83                     

Corporate Bonds 8,087,960.60        A CalTRUST No Limit 17,034,277.34                     

Supranational 878,914.50           A Negotiable CD 30% -                                         

Negotiable CD -                          A Medium Term Notes (Corporate Bonds) 30% 8,087,960.60                       

Total U.S. Bank - Chandler Asset Management Funds 81,152,233.27      Money Market 20% 47,083.57                            

Bank Deposits No Limit 1,710,940.04                       

Checking and Savings Supranational 30% 878,914.50                          

Bank of Hope -                          B 124,647,346.48                  

Chase-1653 (Operating Account) 1,224,652.42        B

Chase-1368 5,000.56                B Funds Excluded from Policy 2016A -                                         

Chase-1392 48,636.50              B Total March 31, 2023 District Funds 124,647,346.48                  

Chase-5993 (Rebate Account) B

2016A Bond - Principal & Payment Funds 428,350.56           B

2016A Bond - Interest Fund -                          B

District Cash Drawers 4,300.00                C

Total Checking and Savings 1,710,940.04        

Asset Class

March 2023

(% of Total Investments) Maximum Portfolio (%)

CalTRUST Short Term Fund 17,034,277.34      A Commercial Paper 0.00% 25%

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund -                          A Federal Agency Obligations 20.39% 30%

U.S. Government 37.48% No Limit

LAIF 24,749,895.83      A LAIF 19.86% No Limit

CalTRUST 13.67% No Limit

Negotiable CD 0.00% 30%

Medium Term Notes (Corporate Bonds) 6.49% 30%

Money Market 0.04% 20%

Bank Deposits 1.37% No Limit

Total March 31, 2023 District Funds 124,647,346.48   Supranational 0.71% 30%

The balances indicated above are as of March 31, 2023

Balances verified with monthly investment statements provided by client A

Balances verfied with monthly bank statements provided by client B

Balances verified with monthly reconciliations provided by client C

The purpose of this report is to calculate the asset class percentage in comparison with

the maximum portfolio percentage allowed by the district's investment policy

Based on our review of the asset classes as of 03/31/23, West Valley Water District is in

compliance with its investment policy

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 67



West Valley Water District

Bond Analysis

March 31, 2023

Federal Agency Obligations & U.S. Government - Liquidity Fund

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Federal Home Loan Bks - 313384EQ8 9,977,000.00           P-1 Yes 3/21/2023 4/21/2023 0.1

Federal Home Loan Bks - 313384GG8 5,583,825.00           P-1 Yes 3/21/2023 5/31/2023 0.2

U S Treasury Bill - 912796ZQ5 14,846,700.00         P-1 Yes 3/21/2023 6/22/2023 0.2

U S Treasury Bill - 912797FX0 14,807,100.00         P-1 Yes 3/21/2023 7/11/2023 0.3

U S Treasury Note - 912828R69 4,825,944.00           Aaa Yes 3/21/2023 5/31/2023 0.2

Total Federal Agency Obligations & U.S. Government 50,040,569.00        

Money Market Fund

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

First American Govt Obligation Fund Class Y - 31846V203 47,083.57                 Aaa Yes various

Total Money Market 47,083.57                

Federal Agency Obligations

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

F H L M C - 3137EAEN5 248,890.00              Aaa Yes 8/7/2018 6/19/2023 4.8

F H L M C - 3137EAES4 178,191.00              NR Yes 6/24/2020 6/26/2023 3.0

FFCB Note 3133EKZK5 247,075.00              Aaa Yes 8/19/2019 8/14/2023 3.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 313383YJ4 248,435.00              Aaa Yes 11/29/2018 9/8/2023 4.7

F N M A - 3135G0U43 232,877.95              Aaa Yes 9/12/2018 9/12/2023 4.9

FHLMC MTN- 3137EAEZ8 486,450.00              Aaa Yes 10/7/2020 11/6/2023 3.0

F N M A - 3135G06H1 422,437.20              Aaa Yes 11/23/2020 11/27/2023 3.0

FHLMC MTN- 3137EAFA2 339,426.50              Aaa Yes 12/2/2020 12/4/2023 3.0

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130A0F70 237,626.40              Aaa Yes 12/13/2018 12/8/2023 4.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AB3H7 186,177.20              Aaa Yes 4/8/2019 3/8/2024 4.8

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130A0XE5 246,462.50              Aaa Yes 3/19/2019 3/8/2024 4.9

FFCB Note 3133EKNX0 243,502.50              Aaa Yes 6/25/2019 6/3/2024 4.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130A1XJ2 245,277.50              Aaa Yes 6/12/2019 6/14/2024 4.9

F N M A - 3135G0V75 241,200.00              Aaa Yes 7/8/2019 7/2/2024 4.9

FFCB- 3133EKP75 240,375.00              Aaa Yes 10/15/2019 9/17/2024 4.9

F N M A - 3135G0W66 240,225.00              Aaa Yes 10/17/2019 10/15/2024 4.9

Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133ENS43 498,815.00              Aaa Yes 10/20/2022 10/17/2024 2.0

Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133ENZ94 500,980.00              Aaa Yes 11/16/2022 11/18/2027 4.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130ATUR6 602,946.00              Aaa Yes 2/1/2023 12/13/2024 1.8

F N M A - 3135G0X24 90,813.35                 Aaa Yes 1/8/2020 1/7/2025 4.9

Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133ENZ37 504,510.00              Aaa Yes 11/3/2022 1/10/2025 2.2

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company - 3137EAEP0 271,291.50              Aaa Yes 2/13/2020 2/12/2025 4.9

F N M A Deb - 3135G03U5 158,059.20              Aaa Yes 4/22/2020 4/22/2025 4.9

F N M A - 3135G04Z3 263,371.35              Aaa Yes 6/17/2020 6/17/2025 4.9

F H L M C - 3137EAEU9 322,010.50              Aaa Yes 7/21/2020 7/21/2025 4.9

F N M A - 3135G05X7 466,925.40              Aaa Yes 10/6/2020 8/25/2025 4.8

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AJXA2 274,776.00              Aaa Yes 10/7/2020 9/12/2025 4.9

FHLMC MTN - 3137EAEX3 200,994.20              Aaa Yes 9/23/2020 9/23/2025 4.9

F N M A - 3135G06G3 457,455.00              Aaa Yes 11/1/2020 11/7/2025 4.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AKFA9 454,555.00              Aaa Yes 12/16/2020 12/12/2025 4.9

Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130ATUS4 507,930.00              Aaa Yes 1/31/2023 12/10/2027 4.8

Total Federal Agency Obligations 9,860,061.25           

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Total Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -                             

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 68



Commercial Paper

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Total Commercial Paper -                             

Supranational

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

International Finance Corp - 45950KCR9 238,897.50              Aaa Yes 7/12/2021 10/16/2024 3.2

International Bank M T N - 459058JL8 183,272.00              Aaa Yes 10/22/2020 10/28/2025 4.9

Inter American Devel Bk - 4581X0DV7 456,745.00              Aaa Yes 4/13/2021 4/20/2026 5.0

Total Supranational 878,914.50              

U.S. Corporate

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Toyota Motor Credit Corp. - 89236TJD8 144,957.95              A1 Yes 4/6/2021 4/6/2023 2.0

Apple Inc. - 037833AK6 149,724.00              Aaa Yes 4/11/2019 5/3/2023 4.0

Walmart Inc - 931142EK5 149,497.50              Aa2 Yes 6/26/2018 6/26/2023 4.9

Bank of NY Mellon Corp - 06406FAD5 296,550.00              A1 Yes 3/15/2021 8/16/2023 2.4

John Deere Capital Corp - 24422EVN6 323,847.85              A2 Yes 3/1/2021 1/17/2024 2.8

National Rural Util Coop - 637432NL5 195,902.00              A1 Yes 4/6/2022 2/7/2024 1.8

Charles Schwab Corp. - 808513BN4 99,948.45                 A2 Yes 3/16/2021 3/18/2024 3.0

Amazon Com Inc. - 023135BW5 287,526.00              A1 Yes 5/10/2021 5/12/2024 3.0

Jpmorgan Chase Co - 46625HJX9 296,190.00              A1 Yes 12/5/2019 5/13/2024 4.4

Caterpillar Fini Service - 14913R2L0 295,888.80              A2 Yes 5/10/2021 5/17/2024 3.0

Salesforce Com Inc - 79466LAG9 47,489.50                 A2 Yes 6/29/2021 7/15/2024 3.0

US Bancorp - 91159HHX1 144,190.50              A2 Yes 2/5/2021 7/30/2024 3.4

Paccar Financial Corp - 69371RR40 113,224.80              A1 Yes 8/3/2021 8/9/2024 3.0

Paccar Financial Corp - 69371RR73 226,871.35              A1 Yes 3/31/2022 4/7/2025 3.0

Pepsico Inc - 713448CT3 290,523.00              A1 Yes 10/31/2022 4/30/2025 2.5

Pfizer Inc Sr Glbl Nto - 717081EX7 115,941.25              A1 Yes 6/3/2020 5/28/2025 4.9

Microsoft Corp - 594918BJ2 390,104.00              Aaa Yes 1/20/2023 11/3/2025 2.7

State Str Corp - 857477BR3 75,108.80                 A1 Yes 2/27/2022 2/6/2026 3.9

Apple Inc. - 037833EB2 159,223.75              Aaa Yes 2/5/2021 2/8/2026 4.9

Unitedhealth Group Inc. - 91324PEC2 54,555.00                 A3 Yes 6/16/2021 5/15/2026 4.8

Walmart Inc - 931142ER0 54,087.60                 Aa2 Yes 9/8/2021 9/17/2026 5.0

Honeywell International - 438516BL9 284,772.00              A2 Yes 12/13/2022 11/1/2026 3.8

Duke Energy Carolinas - 26442CAS3 283,272.00              Aa3 Yes 10/28/2022 12/1/2026 4.0

Target Corp - 87612EBM7 129,414.60              A2 Yes 1/19/2022 1/15/2027 4.9

Procter Gamble Co The - 742718FV6 279,114.00              Aa3 Yes 2/1/2022 2/1/2027 4.9

Charles Schwab Corp - 808513BY0 85,092.45                 A2 Yes 3/1/2022 3/3/2027 4.9

Berkshire Hathaway Fin - 084664CZ2 265,098.40              Aa2 Yes 3/7/2022 3/15/2027 5.0
Blackrock Inc - 09247XAN1 239,717.50              Aa3 Yes 4/27/2022 3/15/2027 4.8

Northern Tr Corp Sr Nt - 665859AW4 293,895.00              A2 Yes 5/5/2022 5/10/2027 4.9

Unitedhealth Group Inc - 91324PEG3 298,332.70              A3 Yes 5/17/2022 5/15/2027 4.9

Walmart Inc - 931142EX7 249,695.00              Aa2 Yes 9/12/2022 9/9/2027 4.9

Apple Inc - 037833DK3 240,132.50              Aaa Yes 2/1/2023 11/13/2027 4.7

Toyota Mtr Cr Corp - 89236TKQ7 359,923.85              A1 Yes 1/9/2023 1/12/2028 4.9

Mastercard Incorporated - 57636QAW4 412,336.00              Aa3 Yes 3/9/2023 3/9/2028 4.9

Toronto Dominion Bank - 89114QCA4 291,630.00              A1 Yes 4/23/2021 6/12/2024 3.1

Bank of Montreal - 06367WB85 234,147.50              A2 Yes 8/6/2021 5/1/2025 3.7

Royal Bank of Canada - 78015K7H1 230,035.00              A1 Yes 5/20/2021 6/10/2025 4.0

Total U.S. Corporate 8,087,960.60           

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 69



U.S. Government

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 03/31/23 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828V80 244,892.50              Aaa Yes 4/29/2019 1/31/2024 4.7

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828X70 243,135.00              Aaa Yes 9/5/2019 4/30/2024 4.6

U.S. Treasury Note - 9128282U3 169,060.50              Aaa Yes 12/30/2019 8/31/2024 4.6

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828YM6 478,985.00              Aaa Yes 12/9/2020 10/31/2024 3.8

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828YV6 239,102.50              Aaa Yes 12/11/2019 11/30/2024 4.9

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828Z52 475,840.00              Aaa Yes 5/9/2021 1/31/2025 3.7

U.S. Treasury Note- 912828ZF0 466,350.00              Aaa Yes 2/24/2021 3/31/2025 4.0

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828ZL7 463,750.00              Aaa Yes 1/13/2021 4/30/2025 4.2

U.S. Treasury Note - 912828ZT0 461,365.00              Aaa Yes 12/16/2020 5/31/2025 4.4

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CAB7 459,160.00              Aaa Yes 12/16/2020 7/31/2025 4.6

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CAJ0 458,030.00              Aaa Yes 12/1/2020 8/31/2025 4.7

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CAT8 455,880.00              Aaa Yes 12/1/2020 10/31/2025 4.8

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBC4 455,740.00              Aaa Yes 1/8/2021 12/31/2025 4.9

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBH3 453,885.00              Aaa Yes 2/16/2021 1/31/2026 4.9

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBQ3 454,435.00              Aaa Yes 3/4/2021 2/28/2026 4.9

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CCF6 227,402.50              Aaa Yes 6/28/2021 5/31/2026 4.9

U.S. Treasury Note- 91282CCP4 451,015.00              Aaa Yes 9/17/2021 7/31/2026 4.8

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CCW9 451,875.00              Aaa Yes 11/29/2021 8/31/2026 4.7

U.S. Treasury Note- 91282CCZ2 452,815.00              Aaa Yes 12/15/2021 9/30/2026 4.7

U S Treasury Note - 91282CDK4 457,385.00              Aaa Yes 10/20/2022 11/30/2026 4.1

U S Treasury Note - 91282CEF4 477,540.00              Aaa Yes 11/2/2022 3/31/2027 4.4

U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CEN7 481,895.00              Aaa Yes 6/6/2022 4/30/2027 4.8

U S Treasury Note - 91282CET4 431,473.50              Aaa Yes 7/8/2022 5/31/2027 4.8

U S Treasury Note - 91282CEW7 491,365.00              Aaa Yes 10/20/2022 6/30/2027 4.6

U S Treasury Note - 91282CFH9 239,641.85              Aaa Yes 10/6/2022 8/31/2027 4.8

U S Treasury Note - 91282CFM8 509,415.00              Aaa Yes 10/24/2022 9/30/2027 4.9

U S Treasury Note - 91282CFU0 509,590.00              Aaa Yes 11/18/2022 10/31/2027 4.9

U S Treasury Note - 9128283F5 470,315.00              Aaa Yes 11/28/2022 11/15/2027 4.9

U S Treasury Note - 91282CGC9 606,306.00              Aaa Yes 1/26/2023 12/31/2027 4.9

Total U.S. Government 12,237,644.35        

US Bank - Chandler Asset Mgmt

March 2023 Bond Total per Treasurer's Report 31,064,580.70        

Total Per March 2023 Chandler Statement 31,064,580.70        

Variance -                             

US Bank - Chandler Liquidity Fund

March 2023 Bond Total per Treasurer's Report 50,087,652.57        

Total Per March 2023 Chandler Statement 50,087,652.57        

Variance -                             

6.7.a

Packet Pg. 70



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On October 31, 2022, West Valley Water District (WVWD) entered into an Agreement with PCL 
Construction, Inc. (PCL) for the design-build of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility 
(WFF) Upgrade and Expansion Project which consists of the design and construction of the new 
and upgraded facilities including an influent and effluent pump station, new filter building with three 
(3) Trident Filters, a laboratory/SCADA area, PLC room and improvements. 
 
The new filter building design includes an overhead crane or bridge crane that sits on two fixed rails   
and is equipped with a hoist to lift and move material or equipment within the building. To take 
advantage of the entire building space, it would be beneficial to extend the bridge crane the full 
length of the building. This would be a change from the original 30% design plans and add 48 feet 
(24 feet on each side) of rail to the system and therefore staff requested a proposal from PCL for the 
material and labor costs to perform this additional work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to perform the additional work as outlined in Change Order No. 1 (see Exhibit A attached) 
is $29,466.45. In February 2023 the Board of Directors of WVWD approved a construction 
contingency budget for the Oliver P. Roemer WFF Upgrade and Expansion Project in the amount 
of $3,000,000.00 for unexpected costs during construction. The cost for Change Order No. 1 could 
be covered through the construction contingency budget. This change order will increase the 
contract amount by $29,466.45 for a total cost of $59,146,337.45. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve Change Order No.1 with PCL Construction, 
Inc. in the amount of $29,466.45 for the Oliver P. Roemer WFF Upgrade and Expansion Project. 
 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR PCL CONSTRUCTION, INC  FOR 
$29,466.45 FOR DESIGN-BUILD OF THE OLIVER P. ROEMER WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY UPGRADE AND EXPANSION PROJECT 

6.8

Packet Pg. 71



 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
LJ:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - CR#0001 - Extend Bridge Crane 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

6.8

Packet Pg. 72



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 73



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 
  

 CHANGE ORDER 

 

                                                                  Order No.  1 

                                                                 Date 3/29/2023 

                                                                  Agreement Date 10/31/2022 

                                                                  Sheet  1  of  2  
 
Owner: West Valley Water District        
 
Project: Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion   
 
Contractor: PCL Construction, Inc 
 
The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents: 
 
 

Increase the bridge crane an extra 48 feet so that it can service the new filter building from 
gridline E9 to N3. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

JUSTIFICATION:   

 

 

 

The contract drawing A-01-104 shows the bridge crane ending between grid lines E4 and E5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 74



CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE 

Original Contract Price $ 59,116,871.00 

Current Contract Price Adjusted by Previous Change Order(s)  $ 59,116,871.00  

Contract Price due to this Change Order shall be increased    $        29,466.45  

New Contract Price including this Change Order  $ 59,146,337.45  

CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME 

Contract Time will be No time impacts 
         (Calendar Days) 

Original Date for Completion of all Work 05/31/2025 
(Date) 

New Date for Completion of all Work 05/31/2025 
(Date) 

REQUIRED APPROVALS: 

To be effective, this Change Order must be approved by the Owner, or as may otherwise be 
required by the Supplemental General Conditions.   

___________________________  Kevin Goetz 3-29-23
Requested By (Contractor)  (Print Name) Date 

___________________________  Paul Hermann 
Recommended By  (Print Name)  Date 
(Resident Project Representative) 

___________________________  Linda Jadeski 
Recommended By (Print Name)  Date 
(Director of Engineering) 

___________________________  Van Jew 
Recommended By (Print Name)  Date 
(Acting General Manager) 

___________________________ 
Accepted By (Owner) (Print Name)  Date 

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 75



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3750 Schaufele Ave, Suite 270 

Long Beach, CA 90808 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

 

March 23, 2023 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Linda Jadeski 

Director of Engineering 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Linda Jadeski 

 

 

RE: Bridge Crane Extension – Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – Change 

Request#001 (CRX-0004) 

 

Mr. Hermann and Ms. Jadeski, 

 

As previously discussed via e-mail correspondence, please accept this correspondence as a Change Request in 

reference to the cost associated with increasing the bridge crane an extra 48 feet so that it can service from 

gridline E9 to N3. The contract drawing A-01-104 shows the bridge crane ending between grid lines E4 and E5. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 76



P
ai

nt
in

g 
S

ub
tr

ad
e 

- 
$1

,0
00

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 77



R
E

V
IS

E
D

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

 R
E

C
IE

V
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 J

A
M

A
L 

A
.

9/
23

/2
2 

D
U

R
IN

G
 T

H
E

 V
E

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 A

S
 P

A
R

T
 O

F
T

H
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

H
A

N
G

E
S

.
10

" 
M

IN
 S

E
IS

M
IC

 G
A

P
 N

E
E

D
E

D
B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

6.8.a

Packet Pg. 78



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Beginning in 1998, the West Valley Water District (District) began receiving water through what is 
known as the Baseline Feeder (BLF) pipeline.  This pipeline and associated facilities were 
constructed in a joint venture with the City of Rialto (Rialto) and the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District (Valley District).  Riverside Highland Water Company (RHW) also 
participated in the project and has rights to the water as a standby source. The two BLF 
groundwater wells with a total pumping capacity of 7.2 million gallons a day within the East 
Complex located at 1811 9th street in San Bernardino deliver water directly into the BLF where it is 
then delivered through system interties to the District, Rialto, and RHW.  
 
The North Well and South Well, which pump into a small reservoir are then boosted into the BLF.  
Production from the North Well began dropping in the summer of 2021 and a variable frequency 
drive was installed because the single speed pump was outpacing the yield of the well, and a decision 
was made by the member agencies at that time to also pull the pump in the winter when system 
demand is the lowest.   
 
The South Well is now experiencing the same issue.  The pump was pulled and the well was 
surveyed by video camera.  The survey showed significant plugging of the well perforations which 
will require rehab work to restore the full yield of the well.  The static level of the well has also 
dropped since the well was first drilled and put into service, so the decision was made to add 60 feet 
to the pump column before reinstalling the pump.   
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The South Well was pulled and inspected by General Pump Company (GPC), which is the well 
pump contractor that was selected by the District during a publicly advertised competitive bidding 
process.  The contractors that participated in the bidding process entered their costs for all of the 
services listed in a matrix created by members of Operations, which included all of the services 
needed for repair and replacement of well and booster pump assemblies.  On May 6, 2021, the 
Board of Directors approved an On-Call Maintenance Contract with GPC.  Attached as Exhibit B 
is the agreement. 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: BASELINE FEEDER SOUTH WELL REHABILITATION QUOTE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $154,205.93 WITH GENERAL PUMP COMPANY 

6.9

Packet Pg. 79



 
The member agencies have reviewed the repair quote from GPC and are unanimous to proceed with 
the work as a sole source bid in order to expedite the repair, so the South Well would be back to full 
production before summer when water demand is the highest.  GPC has the entire well pump 
assembly and motor in its’ shop and has assembled a quote in the amount of $154,205.93 for well 
rehabilitation, pump reconditioning, repair, and re-installation. Attached as Exhibit A is the quote. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The Fiscal Year 2022/23 Capital Budget Contingency funds in the amount of $154,205.93 will be 
used for this project (Project Number W23021). This project will be partially reimbursed by the 
member agencies per the Baseline Feeder Agreement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to Approve the repair and replacement work 
in the amount of $154,205.93 from General Pump. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
VJ:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Quote 

2. Exhibit B - Agreement 
 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

6.9

Packet Pg. 80



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 81



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 82



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 83



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 84



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 85



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 86



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 87



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 88



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 89



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 90



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 91



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 92



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 93



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 94



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 95



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 96



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 97



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 98



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 99



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 100



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 101



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 102



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 103



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 104



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 105



6.9.b

Packet Pg. 106



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
HDO 4, LLC. (“Developer”) is the owner of land located directly north and south of Duncan 
Canyon Road, west of Citrus Avenue and east of JP Previti ML Way (formerly Lytle Creek Road) in 
the City of Fontana. The Developer has planned to construct the project in several phases, with each 
planning area containing multiple mixed-use residential and commercial products known collectively 
as Ventana (“Development”). In developing this land, new water mains and related facilities must be 
installed to allow for domestic, irrigation and fire connections to service the Development. More 
specifically, a new 24” CMLC and 12” Ductile Iron pipe will need to be installed from the project’s 
southernmost boundary through an existing Southern California Edison easement in order to 
construct the backbone water infrastructure for the Development. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In order to construct the water facilities needed to supply water to the Development, West Valley 
Water District (“District”) and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-Installed Water System 
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”).  This Agreement outlines the 
responsibilities of the Developer in constructing facilities, including insurance, indemnification, 
bonding requirements and collection of frontage charges, as well as conveyance and acceptance of 
the water system by the District.  Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the District’s standard Water 
System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement for this development. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact to the District. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into a Water System 
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC. 
 
 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE INSTALLATION AND 
CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT WITH HDO 4, LLC FOR VENTANA 

6.10

Packet Pg. 107



 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
DG:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 
4, LLC 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

6.10

Packet Pg. 108



EXHIBIT A 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 109



1 
D22028 

WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE 
INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT 

 

 This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is 
entered into and effective as of ________________ by and HDO 4, LLC (“Developer”), and 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”) who agree as follows: 

  The Developer is the owner of certain land described as VENTANA and as more fully (or 
further) shown on Exhibit "A".  In developing this land, the Developer is desirous of obtaining a 
public water supply adequate for domestic uses and public fire protection purposes and is desirous 
of integrating that water system into the District’s public water system. 

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties 
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants, 
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and 
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".  

 In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. DESIGN 

 1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's sole expense, the water 
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR JP PREVITI ML WAY as 
approved and attached herein as Exhibit "B" and in accordance with District-approved design 
standards and specifications, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
California, and in accordance with the District's Rules and Regulations, latest edition (the “Rules 
and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard Drawings 
herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all City, County, 
State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and other legal 
requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and property (all 
of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein at times as 
“Legal Requirements”). 

 1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose of 
ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and 
specifications.  The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all 
the plans and specifications. 

 1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential, 
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, improvement plans, 
and any available plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer. 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 110



2 
D22028 

 1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of 
the plans and specifications.  The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water 
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer. 

2. CONSTRUCTION 

 2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water 
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, legal requirements, 
and other applicable requirements. 

2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within one hundred eighty (180) 
calendar days from Developer’s receipt of the notice to proceed provided by the District pursuant 
to Section 8.1 below, and shall be completed within two (2) years from the estimated construction 
start date, unless such construction is delayed by a force majeure event, or events beyond 
Developer’s control. 

 2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is 
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager”) may extend the time for 
completion of the water system installation.  Any such extension may be granted without the 
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on the 
bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement.  The General Manager shall be the sole 
and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an 
extension. 

 2.4. The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a pre-construction 
meeting with the District no less than two (2) working days prior to commencement of 
construction. 

 2.5. No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required 
curbs and gutters. 

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

 3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it 
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of 
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.   

 3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations by the 
District, shall be performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved by 
the District and is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of “C-
34” Pipeline or Class “A” General Engineering.  A copy of the contract between Developer and 
the selected pre-approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District for 
review and approval attached herein as Exhibit “C”.  

 3.3. Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's 
expense.  Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private 
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's sole expense prior to construction. 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 111



3 
D22028 

 3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection. 

 3.5  Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to the California Environmental Quality Act. 

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 4.1. The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall be 
applicable to this Agreement.  These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set forth 
in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified requirements 
herein shall prevail. 

 4.2. Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following 
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time of 
Agreement submittal:  Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall 
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d) 
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under this 
heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any contractor 
or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until all insurance 
required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained. 

   a. General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either 
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance (“General 
Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit 
of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and property 
damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by 
endorsement.  The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for 
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury – 
With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted. 

   b. Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its 
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance 
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles providing 
the following minimum limits of liability:  Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 million per 
accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance”). 

   c. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor 
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory 
minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable 
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”).  Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be endorsed 
to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District. 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 112



4 
D22028 

   d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary when 
combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General Liability 
Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.   

 4.3. The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to all 
of the following conditions: 

   a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the 
lines of insurance specified.  The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a 
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating 
Guide. 

   b. Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements in 
a single policy or multiple policies.  Any such additional policies written as excess insurance shall 
not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy. 

   c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium 
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of 
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to 
participate in any such loss.  If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and 
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost 
provisions were not applicable. 

   d. Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have 
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a 
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in 
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein. 

   e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the 
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely to 
this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims arising 
against Developer.  These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the policy. 

 4.4. Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following: 

   a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, and 
engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but only 
with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District in 
connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional insureds in 
connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations and save for 
any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District. 

   b. No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the 
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation or 
reduction in coverage. 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 113



5 
D22028 

   c. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by 
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.   

5. BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

 5.1. Developer shall obtain a cost proposal for the approved water improvement plans 
from a pre-approved Contractor attached herein as Exhibit "C".  The cost proposal will be 
submitted to the District for review and approval, and shall be used as the basis for bonding 
requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the Developer 
and approved for construction by the District.  

 5.2. Performance Bond:  The cost proposal for the water system improvements for 
WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR JP PREVITI ML WAY, is (DEVELOPER TO 
PROVIDE BID RESULTS FOR BONDING) no/100 dollars (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE 
BID RESULTS FOR BONDING). Developer shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the 
Developer's faithful performance of this Agreement and all of its terms and conditions by 
providing the following: Developer shall provide the District with a performance bond, from a 
surety institution licensed by the State of California and authorized to do and doing business in 
said State, valid and renewable until such improvements are accepted by the District.  The 
performance bond attached herein at Exhibit “D”, shall be in the amount of (DEVELOPER TO 
PROVIDE BID RESULTS FOR BONDING) no/100 dollars (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE 
BID RESULTS FOR BONDING) equal to 100 percent of the cost proposal. 

 5.3. Warranty Bond:  The pre-approved Contractor shall furnish a two-year warranty 
bond for all work completed in accordance with the approved water improvement plans attached 
herein as Exhibit "B". Before District's acceptance of the completed water facilities and 
appurtenances, such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens and 
encumbrances and free from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The two-
year warranty shall be a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water facilities 
by the District and shall be in the amount of (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE BID RESULTS 
FOR BONDING) no/100 dollars (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE BID RESULTS FOR 
BONDING) equal to 100 percent of the Contractor’s cost proposal. 

6. MATERIALS 

 6.1. The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become 
an extension of the distribution system of the District.  All materials used must conform to District 
specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable legal requirements.   

7. NOTICES 

 7.1. All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by 
registered mail, postage prepaid. 

 

 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 114



6 
D22028 

 7.2. Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows: 
   WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   Post Office Box 920 
   Rialto, CA  92377 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for JP PREVITI ML WAY 
 
 7.3. Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows: 
   DEVELOPER NAME: HDO 4, LLC 
   ATTN TO: Andrew Wennerstrom 
   ADDRESS: 2151 E. Convention Center Way, Suite 114, Ontario, CA 91764 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for JP PREVITI ML WAY 
 
 7.4. Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows: 
   SURETY NAME: 
   ATTN TO:   
   ADDRESS 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for JP PREVITI ML WAY 
 
 7.5. Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to the 
other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 

 7.6. The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours 
advance notice of request for inspection or testing.  

 7.7. The District is closed on the holidays listed in Exhibit “E”. 

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM 
FACILITIES 

 8.1. Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts provided 
herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the Agreement 
shall be signed by Developer and the District.  The District shall return an original copy of the 
signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the water 
system facilities. 

9. INSPECTION 

 9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and testing 
is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are in 
compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the   
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District 
requirements.  Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole responsibility 
for the safety and management of the project. 

 9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for 
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in 
preparation.  Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 115



7 
D22028 

shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the 
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any and 
all employees.  Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may order 
the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened danger 
or hazard to any and all employees at the work site.  Furthermore, Developer acknowledges the 
provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that employers shall 
furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all employees 
working therein.  In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition that presents an 
actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, the District is 
hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition. 

 9.3. All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the 
District at Developer's expense.  In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for 
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during 
fabrication at Developer's expense. 

 9.4. All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to 
District standards and specifications. 

 9.5. The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous 
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice or verbal notice 
followed by written notice within three (3) working days, without any liability whatsoever to the 
District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, or the District 
approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a satisfactory and 
workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in the event the 
materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications.  

 9.6. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor
 performs work with District inspection. If work is done without District inspection, the 
Contractor shall be responsible for exposing any portion of work as directed by the District at their 
sole expense. The District will not provide permanent water services until all required inspections 
are completed and any requirements set forth by the District have been satisfied. 

 9.7 Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under this 
Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District.  Approval by the District, 
however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any guarantees, 
warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications or of this Agreement.  All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements.  Developer shall pay actual costs for 
inspections. 

10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION 

 10.1. All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District standards 
and Legal Requirements. 

 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 116



8 
D22028 

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES 

 11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any 
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or 
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said 
facilities or water meters or water services. 

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION 

 12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required 
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including as-built 
drawings. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION 

 13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the District 
and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless from any 
and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every kind and 
character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, court costs, 
attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor of any party, 
including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal injuries, 
including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of the 
District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character 
occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the 
obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save and except 
claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of the District or 
the District's agents and employees.  Developer shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of Developer even if 
the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent.  Developer agrees to, and shall 
defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, and engineers from any 
suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, by reason 
of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows: 

   a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer 
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance 
by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance policies 
described in this Agreement. 

   b. That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all 
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by 
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or 
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for 
damages. 

 This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 117



9 
D22028 

solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third 
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder. 

 13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are, 
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

 14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under 
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or 
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this Agreement, 
fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, 
Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or reconstruct 
any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure.  Should Developer 
fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies of the 
situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair, 
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make 
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to 
the District the actual cost of such repairs. 

15.  COSTS AND FEES 

 15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District.  
All fees and deposits shall be paid in full before construction can take place as outlined in the 
billing letter (provided separately).  

 15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and acceptance 
of the water system. 

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM 

 16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans 
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to the 
District. 

 16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish a 
warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of Contractor’s cost proposal) for a period of two (2) years 
as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-built drawings with contractor redlines and 
AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, water system cost breakouts, compaction test report 
signed and sealed by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with County 
Recorder’s office, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water facilities and 
unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers.  Upon compliance 
with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the Bill of Sale 
accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein.  Title to the 
ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District.  The 
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 118



10 
D22028 

development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and 
Regulations. 

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE 

  17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed 
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have 
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be 
required.  Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT 

 18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part 
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any 
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer 
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit of 
Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's insolvency, 
or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, should 
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General Manager or the General 
Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and Developer's surety of breach of 
this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of Developer. 

 18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over 
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the 
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the 
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not 
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election, 
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any other 
method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and 
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned District 
thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession of, and 
utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to 
Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore. 

19. SUCCESSORS BOUND 

 19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties 
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns. 

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS 

 20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver 
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of 
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 119



11 
D22028 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

  

 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:           Date:    
  Van Jew, Acting General Manager 
 
 

DEVELOPER: 

By: HDO 4, LLC 
a limited liability corporation 

 

By:   Date:  
Authorize Agent  

 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 120



Exhibit A 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 121



Ex
hi
bi
t A

Th
e
Ve

nt
an

a

15
 

FR
W
Y

21
0

FR
W
Y

10
FR

W
Y

21
5

FR
W
Y

PR
O
JE
CT

 A
RE

A

PR
O
JE
CT

 A
RE

A

D
un

ca
n 
Ca

ny
on

 R
oa

d

Citrus Ave

In
te
rs
ta
te

15
 F
re
ew

ay

Ly
tle

 C
re
ek

 R
d

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 122



Exhibit B

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 123



6.10.a

Packet Pg. 124



6.10.a

Packet Pg. 125



6.10.a

Packet Pg. 126



Exhibit C

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 127



Exhibit D 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 128



2023 HOLIDAY LIST 

MONDAY, JANUARY 2 NEW YEAR’S DAY 
MONDAY, JANUARY 16   MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 20   PRESIDENT’S DAY 
MONDAY, MAY 29  MEMORIAL DAY 
TUESDAY, JULY 4   INDEPENDENCE DAY 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 4  LABOR DAY 
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 10   VETERANS DAY (OBSERVED) 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 23 THANKSGIVING 
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 24   DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 25   CHRISTMAS EVE 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 26  CHRISTMAS 
MONDAY, JANUARY 1   NEW YEAR’S EVE (2024) 

6.10.a

Packet Pg. 129



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

BACKGROUND: 

LS-Fontana LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of land located north of Duncan Canyon Road, east of 
Hawk Ridge Avenue and west of the I-15 freeway in the City of Fontana, known as Tract No. 20070 
for Narra Hills Development (“Development”). The Development consists of mixed single-family 
and multi-family residential housing lots requiring water services.  Their respective in-tract water 
facilities will be constructed to allow for new domestic and irrigation connections.  The Developer is 
requesting to record a water easement in Tract No. 20070 for the new water facilities. 

DISCUSSION: 

West Valley Water District (“District”) reviewed Tract No. 20070 and must accept it to record the 
easement for water facility construction, inspection, and maintenance within the Development.  
Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the Tract Map 20070, showing the full extent of the easements 
within the project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact to the District. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the recordation of a Water 
Easement in Tract No. 20070 from LS-Fontana, LLC within Narra Hills. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: RECORDATION OF WATER EASEMENT WITH LS-FONTANA, LLC 
FOR TRACT NO. 20070 FOR NARRA HILLS 

6.11

Packet Pg. 130



 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
DG:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A -Tract Map 20070 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

6.11

Packet Pg. 131



EXHIBIT A 

6.11.a

Packet Pg. 132



6.11.a

Packet Pg. 133



6.11.a

Packet Pg. 134



6.11.a

Packet Pg. 135



6.11.a

Packet Pg. 136



6.11.a

Packet Pg. 137



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As part of developing land in northern Fontana, west of Sierra Avenue and east of the I-15 Freeway, 
the North Fontana Investment Company, LLC (“Owner” of the property), has petitioned the City 
of Fontana to create a Community Facilities District (“CFD”) through proceedings under the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982.  The CFD No. 112 would finance the purchase, 
construction, modification, expansion, improvement or rehabilitation of public facilities and the 
payment of development impact (capacity charges) and other fees.  The City of Fontana would act 
as the lead agency and would form the CFD and the issuance of bonds for the proposed CFD with 
the repayment of the bonds secured by special tax levied on taxable property.   
 
The special tax levied through the CFD would be used to finance certain public facilities including 
facilities to be owned, operated and maintained by West Valley Water District (“WVWD”).  The 
WVWD facilities include certain fees and charges included in WVWD’s capacity and connection fee 
program and used to fund master planned water facilities necessary to provide service to the 
property and other facilities to be constructed by or on behalf of Owner.  Upon the construction of 
the facilities and the inspection and acceptance by WVWD, the facilities will be conveyed to 
WVWD.   
 
A CFD can finance facilities to be owned or operated by an entity other than the agency that created 
the CFD only pursuant to a Joint Community Facilities Agreement (“JCFA”).  Attached, as Exhibit 
A is a copy of the JCFA with the City of Fontana, City of Fontana Community Facilities District 
No. 112 and WVWD.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a mechanism by which the 
CFD may levy special tax and issue bonds to provide a source of funds to finance, in whole or in 
part, WVWD fees and the acquisition of facilities.  On August 19, 2021 the Board of Directors of 
the WVWD approved the participation in a CFD for the Gardens Village at The Arboretum 
development. 
 
WVWD has received capacity charges and fees from the Developer.  Attached, as Exhibit B is a 
copy of an Acquisition and Funding Agreement (“Facilities Agreement”) which establishes the terms 
by which the water district facilities are to be constructed and the process by which the developer 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT AND ACQUISITION 
AND FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR THE GARDENS VILLAGE AT THE 
ARBORETUM AND ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENTS 

6.12

Packet Pg. 138



shall request payment from the CFD.  WVWD’s participation in the CFD would not result in any 
adverse impact to WVWD.   
 
Attached as Exhibit C is a copy of Community Facilities District No. 112, Resolution of the Board 
of Directors of the West Valley Water District adopting the Joint Community Facilities Agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for Board of Directors consideration to: 
 

1. Approve the Acquisition and Funding Agreement with North Fontana Investment 
Company, LLC and; 
 

2. Approve the Joint Community Facilities Agreement between the City of Fontana, City of 
Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 and West Valley Water District and; 

 
3. Adopt Community Facilities District No. 112, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 

West Valley Water District adopting the Joint Community Facilities Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

 
 
AN:ls 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Joint Community Facilities Agreement 
2. Exhibit B - Acquisition and Funding Agreement 
3. Exhibit C - Resolution for Communities Facilities District No. 112 

 
MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 
  

6.12

Packet Pg. 139



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 140



  
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

by and among 

 

 

 

CITY OF FONTANA 

 

 

 

CITY OF FONTANA 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 112 

(THE GARDENS PHASE ONE) 

 

 

 

and 

 

 

 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 

Dated as of ___________ 1, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 141



 

 1 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

THIS JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT (this “Facilities 

Agreement”), dated as of ___________ 1, 2023, is by and among the CITY OF FONTANA, a 

general law city organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the “City”), CITY 

OF FONTANA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 112 (THE GARDENS PHASE 

ONE), a community facilities district organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

California (the “Community Facilities District”), and the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 

a municipal water district organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the 

“Water District”).  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) has, pursuant to the 

provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the “Act”), established the 

Community Facilities District; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the proceedings of the City Council and an election held 

within the Community Facilities District, the Community Facilities District is authorized to issue 

special tax bonds (the “Bonds”) secured by a special tax (the “Special Tax”) levied within the 

Community Facilities District to finance certain public facilities (the “Facilities”);   

WHEREAS, the Facilities proposed to be financed by the Community Facilities District 

include certain Facilities to be owned and operated by the City (the “City Facilities”) and certain 

Facilities to be owned and operated by the Water District (the “Water District Facilities”);  

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act provides that a community facilities district may 

finance facilities to be owned or operated by a public agency other than the agency that created the 

community facilities district only pursuant to a joint community facilities agreement or a joint 

exercise of powers agreement adopted pursuant to said Section;  

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act further provides that at any time prior to the 

adoption of the resolution of formation creating a community facilities district or a resolution of 

change to alter a district, or a resolution or resolutions authorizing issuance of bonds pursuant to 

Section 53356 of the Act, the legislative bodies of two or more local agencies may enter into a 

joint community facilities agreement pursuant to said Section and Sections 53316.4 and 53316.6 

of the Act to exercise any power authorized by the Act with respect to the community facilities 

district being created if the legislative body of each entity adopts a resolution declaring that such 

a joint agreement would be beneficial to the residents of that entity; 

WHEREAS, no resolution authorizing the issuance of any Bonds has been adopted;  

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Board of Directors of the Water District have each 

adopted a resolution declaring that such a joint agreement would be beneficial to the residents of 

that entity;  

WHEREAS, North Fontana Investment Company, LLC (the “Developer”) is the master 

developer of the property within the boundaries of the Community Facilities District;  

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 142



 

 2 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

WHEREAS, development of such property will require the acquisition, construction and 

installation of certain Water District Facilities; 

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the acquisition, construction and installation of such 

Water District Facilities, the Water District and the Developer are entering into an Acquisition and 

Funding Agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which the Developer will acquire, 

construct and install, or cause to be acquired, constructed and installed, certain of the Water District 

Facilities and, upon satisfaction of the conditions specified therein, the Water District will acquire 

and take title to such Water District Facilities and that the Developer will be paid the purchase 

price thereof from proceeds of the Special Tax or Bonds (collectively, “District Proceeds”) made 

available for such purpose by the Community Facilities District; and 

WHEREAS, the City, the Community Facilities District and the Water District desire to 

enter into this Facilities Agreement in accordance with Sections 53316.2, 53316.4 and 53316.6 of 

the Act in order to provide for the financing of the Water District Facilities with District Proceeds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Issuance of Bonds. (a)  It is anticipated that the Community Facilities District 

will issue Bonds to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the City Facilities and 

the Water District Facilities. The City Council, acting as the legislative body of the Community 

Facilities District, shall, in its sole discretion, determine whether, when, under what conditions and 

to what extent Bonds shall be issued to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the 

City Facilities or the Water District Facilities, or any combination thereof. In no event shall the 

Water District have any right to compel the Community Facilities District to issue Bonds to finance 

the acquisition, construction and installation of Water District Facilities or to disburse Bond 

proceeds to pay the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of Water District 

Facilities. 

(b) It is anticipated that the Community Facilities District may make proceeds of the 

Special Tax available to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the City Facilities 

and the Water District Facilities. The City Council, acting as the legislative body of the Community 

Facilities District, shall, in its sole discretion, determine whether, when, under what conditions and 

to what extent any such Special Tax proceeds shall be made available to finance the acquisition, 

construction and installation of the City Facilities or the Water District Facilities, or any 

combination thereof. In no event shall the Water District have any right to compel the Community 

Facilities District to make proceeds of the Special Tax available to finance the acquisition, 

construction and installation of Water District Facilities or to disburse such Special Tax proceeds 

to pay the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of Water District Facilities. 

Section 2.  Water District Facilities.  (a) The Water District Facilities, including any real 

or tangible property that is to be purchased, constructed, expanded or rehabilitated, are described 

in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

(b) It is anticipated that the Community Facilities District will make District Proceeds 

available to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water District Facilities. 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 143



 

 3 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

If the Community Facilities District makes District Proceeds available for such purpose, the 

Community Facilities District shall notify the Water District of the amount of such District 

Proceeds available for such purpose within 15 days of such District Proceeds becoming so 

available. The Community Facilities District makes no representation that, if District Proceeds are 

made available to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water District 

Facilities, such District Proceeds will be sufficient to finance the acquisition, construction and 

installation of all of the Water District Facilities, and neither the City nor the Community Facilities 

District shall have any liability to the Water District if such District Proceeds are insufficient for 

such purpose. If the Community Facilities District determines not to make District Proceeds 

available to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water District Facilities, 

neither the City nor the Community Facilities District shall have any obligation to provide any 

amounts to finance or pay the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water 

District Facilities. 

Section 3.  Disbursements.  (a) District Proceeds available for the acquisition, 

construction and installation of the Water District Facilities shall be deposited in a special account 

(howsoever denominated, the “Water District Facilities Account”), which (i) prior to the issuance 

of Bonds, is to be established and held by or on behalf of the Community Facilities District, and 

(ii) upon the issuance of Bonds is to be established and held under the Indenture pursuant to which 

the Bonds are issued. Moneys on deposit in the Water District Facilities Account shall be invested 

and disbursed at the direction of the Community Facilities District. 

(b) To the extent that moneys are available therein, the Community Facilities District 

shall cause disbursements to be made from the Water District Facilities Account from time to time 

to pay the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water District Facilities 

upon submission of a written request of the Water District stating (i) the name and address of the 

person to whom payment is to be made, (ii) the amount to be paid, (iii) that an obligation in such 

amount has been incurred by the Water District, (iv) the purpose for which the obligation to be 

paid was incurred, (v) that each item of the obligation to be paid constitutes a cost of the Water 

District Facilities, (vi) that the obligation to be paid has not been the subject of a prior Water 

District request for disbursement from the Water District Facilities Account, (vii) that each portion 

of the Water District Facilities for which payment is requested was constructed under the direction 

and supervision, or under the authority of, the Water District or was constructed as if it had been 

constructed under the direction and supervision, or under the authority of, the Water District, and 

(viii) that each portion of the Water District Facilities being purchased pursuant to the Acquisition 

Agreement for which payment is requested is being acquired and purchased in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act and the Acquisition Agreement. 

The Community Facilities District shall process in a timely manner written requests for 

disbursements received from the Water District that conform to the requirements hereof. 

Section 4.  Construction, Ownership and Maintenance of City Facilities and Water 

District Facilities.  (a) The Water District shall have no responsibility for the acquisition, 

construction and installation of the City Facilities. The City Facilities shall be and remain the sole 

and separate property of the City and shall be operated, maintained and utilized by the City. The 

Water District shall not have any ownership interest in the City Facilities, and the Water District 

shall have no responsibility for the operation, maintenance or utilization of the City Facilities. 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 144



 

 4 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

(b) Neither the City nor the Community Facilities District shall have any responsibility 

for the acquisition, construction and installation of the Water District Facilities. The Water District 

Facilities shall be and remain the sole and separate property of the Water District and shall be 

operated, maintained and utilized by the Water District. Neither the City nor the Community 

Facilities District shall have any ownership interest in the Water District Facilities, and neither the 

City nor the Community Facilities District shall have any responsibility for the operation, 

maintenance or utilization of the Water District Facilities.  

Section 5.  Tax Matters.  In connection with the issuance of any Bonds, a portion of the 

proceeds of which are to be made available to finance the acquisition, construction and installation 

of the Water District Facilities, the Water District shall execute and deliver such certifications and 

agreements as may be reasonably required in order for bond counsel to conclude that interest on 

such Bonds will be excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986. 

Section 6.  Indemnification.  (a) The City agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and hold 

the Water District, and its officers, employees and agents, and each of them, harmless from and 

against any and all claims, losses, expenses, suits actions, decrees, judgments, awards, attorneys’ 

fees and court costs which the Water District, or its officers, employees and agents, or any 

combination thereof, may suffer or which may be sought against or recovered or obtained from 

the Water District, or its officers, employees or agents, or any combination thereof, as a result of 

or by reason of or arising out of or in consequence of the acquisition, construction, installation, 

operation, maintenance or utilization of the City Facilities. If the City fails to do so, the Water 

District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to defend the same and charge all of the direct 

and incidental costs of such defense, including any attorneys’ fees or court costs, to and recover 

the same from the City. 

No indemnification is required to be paid by the City for any claim, loss or expense arising 

from the willful misconduct or negligence of the Water District, or its officers, employees or 

agents. 

(b) The Water District agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and hold the City and the 

Community Facilities District, and their respective officers, employees and agents, and each of 

them, harmless from and against any and all claims, losses, expenses, suits actions, decrees, 

judgments, awards, attorneys’ fees and court costs which the City or the Community Facilities 

District, or their respective officers, employees and agents, or any combination thereof, may suffer 

or which may be sought against or recovered or obtained from the City or the Community Facilities 

District, or their respective officers, employees or agents, or any combination thereof, as a result 

of or by reason of or arising out of or in consequence of the acquisition, construction, installation, 

operation, maintenance or utilization of the Water District Facilities. If the Water District fails to 

do so, the City and the Community Facilities District shall have the right, but not the obligation, 

to defend the same and charge all of the direct and incidental costs of such defense, including any 

attorneys’ fees or court costs, to and recover the same from the Water District. 

No indemnification is required to be paid by the Water District for any claim, loss or 

expense arising from the willful misconduct or negligence of the City or the Community Facilities 

District, or their respective officers, employees or agents. 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 145



 

 5 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

Section 7.  Nature of Agreement; Allocation of Special Tax.  This Facilities Agreement 

shall constitute a joint community facilities agreement entered into pursuant to Sections 53316.2, 

53316.4 and 53316.6 of the Act. The entire amount of the proceeds of the Special Tax shall be 

allocated and distributed to the City. 

Section 8.  Limitation of Rights to Parties.  Nothing in this Facilities Agreement 

expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to give to any person other than the City, 

the Community Facilities District and the Water District any legal or equitable right, remedy or 

claim under or in respect of this Facilities Agreement or any covenant, condition or provision 

herein contained; and all such covenants, conditions and provisions are and shall be held to be for 

the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, the Community Facilities District and the Water District. 

Section 9.  Notices. All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given to the party 

entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may provide 

to the other parties in writing from time to time, namely: 

If to the City: 

City of Fontana 

8353 Sierra Avenue 

Fontana, CA 92335 

Attention: Chief Financial Officer, Management Services 

If to the Community Facilities District: 

City of Fontana Community Facilities 

  District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase One)  

c/o City of Fontana 

8353 Sierra Avenue 

Fontana, CA 92335 

Attention: Chief Financial Officer, Management Services 

If to the Water District: 

West Valley Water District 

Post Office Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377-0920 

Attention: General Manager 

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization, offer, designation, 

request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to the party to whom it is 

addressed (a) if given by courier or delivery service or if personally served or delivered, upon 

delivery, (b) if given by telecopier, upon the sender’s receipt of an appropriate answerback or other 

written acknowledgment, (c) if given by electronic mail, on the date sent, but only if confirmation 

of the receipt of such electronic mail is received or if notice is concurrently sent by another means 

specified herein, (d) if given by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, deposited 

with the United States mail postage prepaid, 72 hours after such notice is deposited with the United 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 146



 

 6 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

States mail, or (e) if given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specified in this 

Section. 

Section 10.  Severability.  If any part of this Facilities Agreement is held to be illegal or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Facilities Agreement 

shall be given effect to the fullest extent reasonably possible. 

Section 11.  Successors.  This Facilities Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the successors of the parties hereto. 

Section 12.  Amendments. This Facilities Agreement may be amended, supplemented or 

otherwise modified only by an instrument in writing executed and delivered by each of the parties 

hereto. 

Section 13.  Governing Laws.  This Facilities Agreement shall be governed and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Section 14.  Counterparts.  This Facilities Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 

instrument.  

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 147



 

 7 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Facilities Agreement as 

of the date first written above. 

 

CITY OF FONTANA 

 

 

By:   

[Matthew C. Ballantyne, 

City Manager] 

 

 

CITY OF FONTANA COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 112 (THE 

GARDENS PHASE ONE) 

 

 

By:  

[Matthew C. Ballantyne, 

City Manager] of the City of Fontana 

 

 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

By:   

[Van Jew, P.E. 

Acting General Manager] 

 

 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 148



 

 A-1 
 4156-6473-2229.2 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WATER DISTRICT FACILITIES 

The types of facilities to be owned and operated by the Water District and financed by the District 

Proceeds are water distribution, treatment and storage facilities, together with appurtenances and 

appurtenant work. 

6.12.a

Packet Pg. 149



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 150



#213791 v2  9088.40  

ACQUISITION AND FUNDING AGREEMENT  

(WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT) 

THIS ACQUISITION AND FUNDING AGREEMENT (the “Facilities Agreement”) is 

made and entered into as of __________, 2023 by and between the West Valley Water District (the 

“Water District”) and North Fontana Investment Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (the “Developer”). 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the request of the Developer, the City Council (the “City Council”) 

of the City of Fontana has initiated proceedings under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 

1982 (the “Act”) to create City of Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens 

Phase One) (the “Community Facilities District”), to authorize the levy of special taxes (the 

“Special Taxes”) upon the land within the Community Facilities District and to issue bonds (the 

“Bonds”) secured by the Special Taxes, the proceeds of which are to be used to finance certain 

public facilities; 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the master developer of all of the property (the “Property”) 

within the proposed boundaries of the Community Facilities District, which Property and 

Community Facilities District are depicted on Exhibit “E” attached hereto, and the Property is 

expected to be developed with approximately 526 homes by one or more merchant builders (each, a 

“Merchant Builder”); 

WHEREAS, the Property constitutes a phase of The Gardens planned community and 

future phases of The Gardens are expected to be included in one or more community facilities 

districts (“Future CFDs”) to be established by the City. 

WHEREAS, the facilities proposed to be financed by the Community Facilities District 

include certain facilities to be owned, operated and maintained by the Water District including 

facilities included in fee programs of the Water District and facilities to be constructed by the 

Developer, all as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Water District Facilities”), as well 

as facilities to be owned, operated or maintained by the City (the “City Facilities” and with the 

Water District Facilities, the “Facilities”); 

WHEREAS, the Water District Facilities include (i) certain fees and charges included in 

the Water District’s capacity and connection fee program and used to fund master plan water facilities 

necessary to provide service to the Property (the “Water District Fees”), which fees, as of the date of 

this Facilities Agreement, are estimated to total approximately $6,800,000 and (ii) certain other 

facilities to be constructed by or on behalf of Developer or a Merchant Builder and acquired by Water 

District for their actual cost, together with appurtenances and appurtenant work, and incidental 

expenses related thereto (the “Water District Acquisition Facilities”); 

WHEREAS, upon the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities by or on 

behalf of Developer or a Merchant Builder and the inspection and acceptance thereof by Water 

District, the Water District Acquisition Facilities will be conveyed to and accepted by Water 

District; 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 151



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  2 

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act provides that a community facilities district may 

finance facilities to be owned or operated by an entity other than the agency that created the 

community facilities district only pursuant to a joint community facilities agreement (“JCFA”) 

adopted pursuant to said Section; 

WHEREAS, concurrent with the approval of this Facilities Agreement, the City and the 

Water District shall enter into a JCFA dated __________, 2023 in accordance with Sections 

53316.2, 53316.4 and 53316.6 of the Act in order to provide for the financing of the Water District 

Facilities through the levy of Special Taxes and issuance of Bonds by the Community Facilities 

District; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Facilities Agreement is to establish the terms pursuant to 

which (i) the Developer or a Merchant Builder shall bid and contract for the construction of the 

Water District Acquisition Facilities; (ii) the Developer or a Merchant Builder shall submit 

payment requests to the Water District for processing in order to receive disbursement from the 

Community Facilities District pursuant to the JCFA for such Water District Acquisition Facilities; 

and (iii) the Developer or a Merchant Builder shall advance Water District Fees to the Water 

District prior to the availability of “District Proceeds” (defined below) and the Developer or a 

Merchant Builder shall be reimbursed such advances when District Proceeds are disbursed to the 

Water District pursuant to the JCFA; and (iv) the Developer or a Merchant Builder shall receive 

credit against future Water District Fees remaining to be paid to the extent the Water District 

receives District Proceeds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1. Water District Facilities.  The Water District Facilities, including any real 

or tangible property which is to be purchased, constructed, expanded or rehabilitated, are described 

in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

Section 2. Financing of Water District Facilities.   

(a) District Proceeds.  It is anticipated that the Community Facilities District will levy 

Special Taxes to pay directly for Facilities and issue Bonds in one or more series secured by Special 

Taxes to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of Facilities.  The proceeds of such 

Special Taxes and Bonds available for Water District Facilities shall be referred to as “District 

Proceeds.”  Under the terms set forth herein and the JCFA, the Community Facilities District will 

provide District Proceeds to finance the acquisition, construction and installation of all or a portion 

of the Water District Facilities. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Facilities Agreement, 

the fact that there may not be sufficient District Proceeds available to pay for the Water District 

Facilities shall not relieve Developer, its successors and assigns, and any Merchant Builders of their 

obligation to pay to Water District the Water District Fees described in Exhibit “A” hereto required 

to be paid in connection with the development of the Property or to otherwise construct any Water 

District Acquisition Facilities that are required as a condition to development of the Property.   

(b) Water District Fees.  As District Proceeds are transferred to Water District to fund 

Water District Fees, Developer shall receive a credit, in an amount equal to the amount of such District 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 152



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  3 

Proceeds so received, against the Water District Fees required to be paid by the Developer or 

Merchant Builders in connection with the development of the Property.   

Developer and Merchant Builders may advance Water District Fees to the Water District prior 

to the availability of sufficient District Proceeds.  Each such cash advance shall be referred to as a 

“Deposit.”  In the event Developer or any Merchant Builder makes a Deposit with the Water District, 

the full amount of such Deposit shall be reimbursed to Developer by Water District from available 

District Proceeds. Such Deposits shall be retained by the Water District and the Water District shall 

have no obligation to reimburse them except to the extent District Proceeds subsequently become 

available.  From time to time, Developer may request that the Water District submit a request to the 

City for a disbursement of District Proceeds pursuant to Section 3 of the JCFA and in the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 for the purpose of financing Water District Facilities in satisfaction of 

Water District Fees applicable to the development of the Property.  Upon the Water District’s receipt 

of such disbursement, Developer shall be reimbursed its and any Merchant Builder’s prior Deposits 

and to the extent the disbursement exceeds the prior Deposits, Developer shall receive a 

dollar-for-dollar credit against the Water Fees remaining to be paid in connection with the 

development of the Property. 

(c) Water District Acquisition Facilities.  Developer shall be reimbursed from District 

Proceeds for its costs incurred in connection with the Water District Acquisition Facilities in 

accordance with Section 3.(c) below. 

(d) District Proceeds of Future CFDs.  It is expected that one or more Future CFDs shall 

be formed that will encompass the remaining phases of The Gardens.  If the Water District enters into 

a joint community facilities agreement with respect to a Future CFD, the proceeds of the special taxes 

and bonds of the Future CFD shall be considered to be District Proceeds and shall be available to 

finance the Water District Acquisition Facilities and to finance Water District Facilities in satisfaction 

of Water District Fees in accordance with the terms of this Facilities Agreement. 

Section 3. Water District Acquisition Facilities.  The parties acknowledge that Water 

District may require Developer and/or a Merchant Builder, pursuant to its rules and regulations, to 

design, construct and dedicate to Water District the Water District Acquisition Facilities as a 

condition to development of the Property.  The Developer and/or a Merchant Builder shall 

construct and install all Water District Acquisition Facilities that are acquired with District 

Proceeds in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3. 

(a) Construction and Acquisition of Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

(i) Developer shall, at no cost to Water District, be responsible for the 

preparation of the plans and specifications for the construction of the Water District Acquisition 

Facilities (the “Plans and Specifications”). The Plans and Specifications shall conform to the 

requirements of Water District for such facilities and shall be subject to the review and approval by 

Water District.  All cost and expense of Water District review (including, but not limited to, Water 

District’s agents, employees and independent contractors) shall be paid by Developer and shall be 

deemed eligible costs available for reimbursement from the Acquisition and Construction Fund of 

the Acquisition and Construction Fund to the extent reasonable.  Developer represents that the 

Plans and Specifications will conform to all applicable federal, state and local governmental rules, 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 153



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  4 

ordinances and regulations and all applicable environmental protection laws.  Developer’s 

submission of the Plans and Specifications to Water District shall evidence Developer’s 

representation and warranty to Water District that the Plans and Specifications are complete, 

accurate, workable and in compliance with all governmental requirements with respect thereto.  

Developer and/or a Merchant Builder, at its cost and expense, shall, except as otherwise provided 

herein, pay all permit fees, connection fees and other fees customarily charged by Water District as 

may now exist or may be charged in the future arising out of the planning, engineering or 

construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, and such fees shall be deemed eligible 

costs available for reimbursement from District Proceeds. 

(ii) The Water District Acquisition Facilities must be constructed in 

strict accordance with the Plans and Specifications as approved by Water District.  Any deviations 

from the approved Plans and Specifications must be approved by the Water District. Developer 

and/or a Merchant Builder shall be solely responsible for the bidding, contracting and construction 

of the Water District Acquisition Facilities to be acquired with District Proceeds in accordance with 

the requirements set forth in Exhibit “B” hereto.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the City, 

Water District and the Community Facilities District shall have no responsibility whatsoever for the 

bidding, contracting and construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities.  The Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder shall construct and install all Water District Acquisition Facilities on the 

following terms and conditions: 

(A) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall construct and 

complete the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) at no cost or expense 

to Water District and in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of all governmental bodies 

and agencies having jurisdiction over the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion 

thereof). 

(B) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall be required to 

furnish labor and material payment bonds and contract performance bonds in an amount equal to 

one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price for the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or 

such portion thereof) naming the Water District as obligees and issued by insurance or surety 

companies approved by the Water District.  All such bonds shall be in a form approved by the 

Water District. 

(C) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall deliver to 

Water District a Certificate of Insurance evidencing coverage for “builder’s risk,” evidence of 

employer liability insurance with limits of at least One Million Dollars per occurrence and evidence 

of comprehensive liability insurance (automobile and general liability) with limits of at least Five 

Million Dollars per occurrence.  The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall maintain, keep in 

force and pay all premiums required to maintain and keep in force all insurance at all times during 

which such work is in progress.  The general liability insurance to be obtained by the Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder shall name the Water District as an additional insured.  The Developer 

shall further maintain and provide evidence of workers’ compensation insurance coverage as 

provided by law. 

(D) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall comply with 

such other requirements relating to the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 154



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  5 

subject portion thereof) which Water District may impose by written notification delivered to the 

Developer and/or Merchant Builder at any time, either prior to the receipt of bids by the Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder for the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject 

portion thereof) or, to the extent required as a result of changes in applicable laws, during the 

progress of construction thereof.  As set forth above, the Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall 

be deemed the awarding body and shall be solely responsible for compliance and enforcement of 

the provisions of the Labor Code, Government Code and Public Contract Code to the extent 

expressly applicable to a non-governmental entity constructing infrastructure to be acquired by a 

public entity.  Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall pay or cause its construction contractors to 

pay prevailing wages with respect to the Water District Acquisition Facilities and any other 

facilities constructed by Developer and/or Merchant Builder as required by the Labor Code. 

(E) Water District shall have access to inspect the Water 

District Acquisition Facilities.  It is understood and agreed that Water District’s inspection 

personnel shall have the authority to enforce the Plans and Specifications, which authority shall 

include requiring that all unacceptable material, workmanship installation be replaced, repaired or 

corrected by the Developer and/or Merchant Builder.  All cost and expense of Water District’s 

inspection (including, but not limited to, Water District’s agents, employees and independent 

contractors) shall be paid by Developer and/or Merchant Builder and be eligible for reimbursement 

with District Proceeds.  Other than the final inspection and approval of the Water District Acquisition 

Facilities (or subject portion thereof), any inspection completed by Water District shall be for the sole 

use and benefit of Water District and neither the Developer, Merchant Builder nor any third party shall 

be entitled to rely thereon for any purpose.  Water District does not undertake or assume any 

responsibility for or owe a duty to select, review or supervise the creation of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof).  Upon completion of the construction of the Water 

District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) to the satisfaction of Water District’s 

inspectors, the Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall notify Water District in writing that the 

construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) has been 

completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications. 

(F) Upon satisfactory completion of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) in accordance with the Plans and Specifications 

and Water District’s standard requirements, in accordance with the terms thereof, the Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder shall forthwith file with the County Recorder of the County of San 

Bernardino, a Notice of Completion pursuant to the provisions of the Civil Code.  The Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder shall furnish to Water District a duplicate copy of each such Notice of 

Completion showing thereon the date of filing with the County Recorder.  Any actual costs 

reasonably incurred by Water District in inspecting and approving the construction of the Water 

District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) not previously paid by the Developer 

and/or Merchant Builder or funded with District Proceeds shall be paid by Developer and/or 

Merchant Builder . 

(G) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall provide to 

Water District such evidence as Water District shall require that all persons, firms and corporations 

supplying work, labor, materials, supplies and equipment for the construction of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) have been paid, and that no claims on behalf of 

any such person, firm or corporation are outstanding. 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 155



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  6 

(H) The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall, at the time 

Water District acquires the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof), grant 

to Water District, by appropriate instruments prescribed by Water District, all easements across 

private property, fee title, ownership deeds, public access or rights-of-way which may be necessary 

for the proper operation and maintenance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject 

portion thereof), or any part thereof.  The Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall insure that all 

deeds of trust and mortgages are subordinated to the easements and reconveyed as to the fee title 

ownership.  

(I) Upon completion of the Water District Acquisition Facilities 

(or subject portion thereof) and completion of the final inspection, testing and written assurance 

thereof by Water District, the Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall execute and deliver a Bill of 

Sale in the form and content acceptable to Water District.  The Bill of Sale shall convey title of the 

Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) to Water District.  The Water 

District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) shall be transferred to Water District free 

of all liens and encumbrances. 

(J) Prior to the transfer of ownership of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) by the Developer and/or Merchant Builder to 

Water District, the Developer and/or Merchant Builder shall be responsible for the maintenance 

thereof and shall maintain and transfer the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion 

thereof) to Water District in as good condition as the Water District Acquisition Facilities (or 

subject portion thereof) were in at the time the Developer and/or Merchant Builder notified Water 

District that construction of same had been completed in accordance with the Plans and 

Specifications.  The contractor, Developer or Merchant Builder shall provide to Water District, a 

two-year warranty bond (following date of final acceptance by Water District of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof)) for materials and workmanship guarantee 

providing that Developer and/or Merchant Builder will repair, at its expense, all failures of or to the 

Water District Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) which was furnished, installed 

and/or constructed due to faulty materials or installation, within said two-year period.  In the event 

Developer, Merchant Builder or the surety fails to cause satisfactory repair, as determined by Water 

District, within ten (10) business days following written notice or such longer period of time as Water 

District may reasonably determine, Water District may cause such repairs to be completed at 

Developer’s or Merchant Builder’s surety’s cost and expense.  Notwithstanding the above–referenced 

ten (10) business day or other specified repair period, Water District shall have the unqualified right to 

immediately make any emergency repairs necessary to eliminate any threat to the public’s health, 

safety or welfare, at Developer’s, Merchant Builder’s and/or surety’s cost and expense.  Nothing in 

this subparagraph shall limit or abrogate any other claims, demands or actions Water District may 

have against Developer, Merchant Builder and/or Developer’s or Merchant Builder’s surety on 

account of damages sustained by reason of such defect, nor shall the provisions of this 

subparagraph limit, abrogate or affect any warranties in favor of Water District which are expressed 

or implied by law. 

(K) Water District shall have the right to review all books and 

records of the Developer and/or Merchant Builder pertaining to costs and expenses incurred by the 

Developer and/or Merchant Builder for the design and construction of the Water District 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 156



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  7 

Acquisition Facilities (or subject portion thereof) during normal business hours by making 

reasonable advance arrangements with Developer and/or Merchant Builder  

(iii) For purposes of this Agreement, a Water District Acquisition Facility 

shall be deemed “substantially completed” when Developer and/or Merchant Builder has notified 

Water District that the Water District Acquisition Facility has been completed in accordance with 

its Plans and Specifications, Water District’s inspector has inspected the facility, prepared a final 

“punch list” and has determined that the only punch list items required to be completed are items 

not required for the safe operation of the Water District Acquisition Facility and can therefore be 

completed after the Water District Acquisition Facility has been opened to or made available for 

public use. For purposes of this Agreement, a Water District Acquisition Facility shall be deemed 

“finally completed” when all punch list items have been completed to the satisfaction of Water 

District, and Water District has accepted the Water District Acquisition Facilities pursuant to 

subparagraph (a) above. 

(b) Acquisition and Ownership of Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

(i) For purposes of determining the acquisition price to be paid from 

District Proceeds for the acquisition of each Water District Acquisition Facility, the value of such 

facility shall be based on the “Actual Costs” submitted by the Developer, as that term is defined in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Upon the transfer of ownership 

of the Water District Acquisition Facilities to Water District, Water District shall be responsible for 

the maintenance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

(ii) Upon acceptance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities by 

Water District, Water District shall incorporate the Water District Acquisition Facilities in Water 

District’s system.  Following the expiration of any warranty period applicable to the construction of 

the Water District Acquisition Facilities during which time Developer and/or Merchant Builder 

shall be responsible for the maintenance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, Water District 

shall thereafter be responsible for maintenance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities in 

accordance with all applicable Water District procedures and practices. 

(c) Payment Requests. 

(i) Notwithstanding the timing of substantial completion or final 

completion and acceptance of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, Developer may submit a 

payment request upon substantial or final completion of a Water District Acquisition Facility.  The 

form of payment request to be submitted to Water District by Developer in requesting a 

disbursement from the Community Facilities District of the acquisition price of the Water District 

Acquisition Facility, shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit “D-1” hereto.  Within ten (10) 

business days of Developer’s submission to Water District of a payment request, Water District shall 

determine if the Water District Acquisition Facility has been substantially completed and shall either 

deny or approve the payment request, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If Water 

District denies any payment request it shall provide Developer a detailed written explanation 

describing the reasons or rational for such denial.  All denied payment requests may be resubmitted 

for approval. Developer shall reimburse Water District for its actual costs incurred in connection with 

the processing of such payment requests, including the inspection of the Water District Acquisition 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 157



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  8 

Facilities and such amounts shall be included in the acquisition price paid by the Community Facilities 

District. 

(ii) In connection with Water District’s approval of a payment request, 

Water District and Developer shall authorize the Community Facilities District to disburse the 

acquisition price with respect to the approved Water District Acquisition Facilities pursuant to a 

disbursement request, which shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit “D-2” hereto.  The sole 

source of funds for payment of the acquisition price or funding with respect to the approved Water 

District Acquisition Facilities shall be the District Proceeds made available by the Community 

Facilities District for Water District Facilities.   

Section 4. Indemnification.  The Developer shall assume the defense of, and hold 

harmless the Water District and its officers, directors, officials, employees and agents, and each of 

them, from and against all actions, damages, claims, losses or expenses, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs, of every type and description to which they may be subjected or put, by 

reason of, or resulting from, (i) any act or omission of Developer under this Facilities Agreement, 

(ii) the design, engineering, construction and installation of the Water District Acquisition 

Facilities to be constructed by Developer, including its consultants, contractors, subcontractors, and 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by Developer or anyone for whose acts any of them may be 

liable in connection with the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, the 

establishment of the Community Facilities District, (iii) the levy of Special Taxes, the issuance of 

the Bonds, (iv) the financing of all or a portion of the Water District Acquisition Facilities from 

District Proceeds, and (v) any disclosure made by Developer in connection with the offering and 

sale of the Bonds or any continuing disclosure made at any time by Developer with respect to the 

Bonds, or any matters relating thereto.  If the Developer fails to do so, the Water District shall have 

the right, but not the obligation, to defend the same and charge all of the direct or incidental costs of 

such defense, including any fees or costs, to, and recover the same from, the Developer.  

Section 5. Notices.  All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given to the party 

entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may provide to 

the parties in writing time to time, namely:  

If to the Water District:  West Valley Water District 
Post Office Box 920 
Rialto, California  92377-0920 
Attention: General Manager 
 

If to the Developer:   North Fontana Investment Company, LLC 

c/o Lewis Operating Corp. 

1156 North Mountain Avenue 

Upland, California 91786 

Attention:  Stacey Sassaman, Vice President 

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, authorization, offer, designation, request or 

other hereunder shall be deemed delivered to the party to whom it is addressed (a) if personally 

served or delivered, upon delivery, (b) if given by electronic communication, whether by telex, 

telegram, electronic mail or telecopier, upon the sender’s receipt of an appropriate answerback or 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 158



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  9 

other written acknowledgment, (c) if given by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 

deposited with the United States postage prepaid, 72 hours after such notice is deposited with the 

United States mail, (d) if given by overnight courier, with courier charges prepaid, 24 hours after 

delivery to said overnight courier, or (e) if given by any other means, upon delivery at the address 

specified in this Section. 

Section 6. California Law.  This Facilities Agreement shall be governed and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Section 7. Attorney Fees.  In the event of any legal action or proceeding arising from 

or related in any way to a breach of or enforcement or interpretation of this Facilities Agreement, 

the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the opposing party reasonable attorneys’ fees 

and court costs in such amounts as shall be allowed by the court. 

Section 8. Severability.  If any part of this Facilities Agreement is held to be illegal or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Facilities Agreement shall 

be given effect to the fullest extent reasonably possible.  

Section 9. Successors and Assigns.  This Facilities Agreement shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  

Section 10. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except as provided explicitly in this 

Facilities Agreement, no person or entity shall be deemed to be a third–party beneficiary hereof, 

and nothing in this Facilities Agreement (either express or implied) is intended to confer upon any 

person or entity other than the Water District and Developer any rights, remedies, obligations or 

liabilities under or by reason of this Facilities Agreement.  This Facilities Agreement may be 

assigned by Developer to a third party upon the consent of Water District, which consent shall not 

be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

Section 11. Counterparts.  This Facilities Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 

instrument.  

Section 12. Independent Contractor.  In performing this Facilities Agreement, 

Developer and any Merchant Builder is an independent contractor and not the agent of Water 

District.  Except as provided herein, Water District shall have no responsibility for payment to any 

contractor or supplier of Developer and any Merchant Builder.  It is not intended by the parties that 

this Facilities Agreement create a partnership or joint venture among them and this Facilities 

Agreement shall not otherwise be construed. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

  

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 159



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Facilities Agreement as 

of the date first written above. 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Alvarez-Glasman & Colvin 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

       VINCENT C. EWING 

       Interim General Counsel 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, a 

public agency of the State of California 

 

 

 

 

 

By: _____________________________ 

 Van Jew, P.E.,  

 Acting General Manager 

  

NORTH FONTANA INVESTMENT 

COMPANY, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company 

 

By:      

 Bryan T. Goodman, 

 Authorized Agent 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 160



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  A-1 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DESCRIPTION OF WATER DISTRICT FACILITIES 

Water District Fees1 

Cypress Avenue – Capacity Charge (1 ½” Meter)  $36,883 EA x 2 = $73,766 

Cypress Avenue – Meter Charge (1 ½” Meter)   $1,632 EA x 2 = $3,264 

Duncan Canyon Road – Capacity Charge  (1 ½” Meter)  $36,883 EA x 1 = $36,883 

Duncan Canyon Road – Meter Charge (1 ½” Meter)  $1,632 EA x 1 = $1,632 

Sierra Avenue – Capacity Charge (1 ½” Meter)  $36,883 EA x 2 = $73,766 

Sierra Avenue – Meter Charge (1 ½” Meter)   $1,632 EA x 2 = $3,264 

Collector Streets (Fieldcress Dr., Gardens St. Cassava Dr., and Montelena Road) – Capacity Charges (1 ½” Meter)

 $36,883 EA x 3 = $110,649  

Collector Streets (Fieldcress Dr., Gardens St. Cassava Dr., and Montelena Road) – Capacity Charges (2” Meter) 

 $59,035 EA x 1 = $59,035 

Collector Streets (Fieldcress Dr., Gardens St. Cassava Dr., and Montelena Road) – Meter Charges (1 ½” Meter) $1,632 EA 

x 3 = $4,896 

Collector Streets (Fieldcress Dr., Gardens St. Cassava Dr., and Montelena Road) – Meter Charges (2” Meter)  $1,811 EA 

x 1 = $1,811 

Residential Units – Capacity Charge (3/4” Meter)  $11,076 per DU x 523 DUs = $5,792,748 

Residential Units – Capacity Charge (1” Meter)  $18,497 per DU x 3 DUs = $55,491 

Residential Units – Fire Capacity Charge (1” Meter)  $1,198 per DU x 526 DUs= $630,148  
 

Water District Acquisition Facilities 

 The type of Water District Acquisition Facilities eligible to be financed by Community 

Facilities District under the Act are as follows: 

1. Duncan Canyon Road (Tract 20362) water improvements between Cypress and 

Sierra Avenues (including 12” ductile iron pipeline, landscape irrigation services, fire hydrants and 

other appurtenances ) (Estimated cost $170,629) 

2. Sierra Avenue (Tract 20362) water improvements between Casa Grande Avenue 

and Duncan Canyon Road (including 12” ductile iron pipeline, fire hydrants and other 

appurtenances) (Estimated cost $246,592) 

3. Cypress Avenue (Tract 20362) water improvements between Duncan Canyon Road 

and Tract boundary (including 12” ductile iron pipeline and other appurtenances) (Estimated cost 

$610,819) 

4. Cassava Drive, Fieldcress Drive, Gardens Street and Montelena Road (Tract 20362) 

water improvements (including 12” ductile iron pipeline and other appurtenances) (Estimated cost 

$1,534,411) 

In some cases, the description of the Water District Acquisition Facilities are preliminary. 

The final location, scope, nature and specification, of the Water District Acquisition Facilities shall 

be determined by reference to the final Water District-approved Plans and Specifications for each 

 
1 Amounts stated for each fee are as of the date of this Facilities Agreement.  The amounts eligible to be financed shall 

be the current amounts payable whenever payment is required pursuant to Water District policies. 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 161



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  A-2 

facility and may include facilities that are not described above, as approved by the General 

Manager. 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 162



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  B-1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

BIDDING, CONTRACTING AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

1. Bids shall be solicited from at least three (3) qualified contractors, provided at 

least three (3) qualified contractors are reasonably available.  Developer may also directly 

solicit bids. 

2. The bidding response time shall be not less than ten (10) working days. 

3. An authorized representative of Water District shall be provided the bid results with 

the payment request. 

4. Contract(s) for the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities shall be 

awarded to the qualified bidder submitting the lowest responsible bid, as determined by Developer 

and/or a Merchant Builder. 

5. The contractor to whom a contract is awarded shall be required to pay not less than the 

prevailing rates of wages pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1770,1773 and 1773.1.  A current copy of 

applicable wage rates shall be on file in the Office of the Water District Engineer, as required by Labor 

Code Section 1773.2. 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 163



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  C-1 

EXHIBIT “C” 

ACTUAL COSTS 

The eligible costs for the Water District Acquisition Facilities shall include all of the actual 

costs and expenses, directly or indirectly related to the design, planning, engineering, construction, 

installation and testing of the Water District Acquisition Facilities (the “Actual Costs”).  Actual 

Costs shall include without limitation, the following: 

1. Costs for the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, including, 

without limitation, costs incurred in the employment of licensed contractors to construct, install, 

complete and test the Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

2. Allocated grading costs based upon the square footage of grading area for the 

Water District Acquisition Facilities and the grading of slope areas relating to the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities as a percentage of the total graded area under the applicable grading 

contract, if separable. 

3. All permit fees, inspection fees and other fees actually charged by governmental 

agencies or other entities, including Water District, arising out of or in connection with the design, 

planning, engineering, construction, installation or testing of the Water District Acquisition 

Facilities. 

4. Costs of tests, inspections, studies, reports and surveys, including, without 

limitation, any environmental, archaeological, biological or cultural studies or any mitigation 

requirements that may be requested by federal, state or local agencies evaluations attributable to 

the Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

5. Professional costs and fees associated with design, engineering, accounting, 

inspection, construction staking, materials testing, legal and accounting and other similar services. 

6. Costs of labor and material payment bonds and contract performance and 

maintenance bonds. 

7. Builder’s risk insurance, employer’s liability insurance and comprehensive liability 

insurance obtained with respect to the Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

8. Costs of acquiring from unrelated third parties any fee or easement interest in real 

property or licenses or encroachment permits to install the Water District Acquisition Facilities, 

including, without limitation, temporary construction easements, haul road and maintenance 

easements, the cost to prepare surveys, deeds and easement documents, and professional and 

escrow fees. 

9. Construction and project management and supervision not to exceed 5% of the 

costs of construction of the related Water District Acquisition Facilities. 

10. Costs and expenses of Water District in connection with the performance of its 

obligations under this Facilities Agreement, including, but not limited to, (i) attorneys, accountants 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 164



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  C-2 

and other professionals retained in connection with Water District’s compliance with this 

Facilities Agreement or any matter related to the design, planning, engineering, construction, 

installation or testing of the Water District Acquisition Facilities, and (ii) employee time to review 

the Plans and Specifications, inspect the construction and installation of the Water District 

Acquisition Facilities and process payment requests.  All costs must be properly documented and 

reasonable to be reimbursed. 

 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 165



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  D-1-1 

EXHIBIT “D-1” 

FORM OF PAYMENT REQUEST 

The undersigned hereby requests payment from the applicable account or subaccount 

thereof, established by City of Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase 

One) (the “CFD”), an amount equal to $________ for the Water District Acquisition Facilities (as 

defined in the Acquisition and Funding Agreement by and between West Valley Water District 

(“Water District”) and North Fontana Investment Company, LLC (“Developer”), dated 

___________, 2023 (the “Facilities Agreement”)), all as more fully described in Attachment 1 

hereto.  In connection with this payment request, the undersigned hereby represents and warrants to 

Water District as follows: 

1. He(she) is a duly authorized officer or representative of the undersigned, qualified to 

execute this Payment Request for payment on behalf of the undersigned and is knowledgeable as to 

the matters set forth herein. 

2. All costs of the Water District Acquisition Facilities for which payment is requested 

hereby are those Actual Costs (as described in Exhibit “C” to the Facilities Agreement) and have not 

been inflated in any respect.  The Actual Costs for which payment is requested have not been the 

subject of any prior disbursement request submitted to the CFD. 

3. Supporting documentation (such as third party invoices, lien releases and cancelled 

checks or other evidence of payment) is attached with respect to each cost for which payment is 

requested. 

4. The Water District Acquisition Facilities for which payment is requested was 

constructed in accordance with the requirements of the Facilities Agreement. 

5. The undersigned is in compliance with the terms and provisions of the Facilities 

Agreement and no portion of the amount being requested to be paid was previously paid. 

6. The acquisition price for the Water District Acquisition Facilities (a detailed 

calculation of which is shown in Attachment 1 hereto) has been calculated in conformance with the 

terms of the Facilities Agreement.   

7. The Water District Acquisition Facilities have been transferred to the Water 

District or provision for transfer has been made for them. 

8. All provisions of the Facilities Agreement have been complied with. 

9. Please authorize payment of the acquisition price by the CFD to the following, if 

other than the undersigned, in the amounts or percentages indicated: 

[Insert names of payees and amounts or percentages] 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 166



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  D-1-2 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the above representations and warranties are true and 

connect. 

 
Date: ___________________ [DEVELOPER] 

By:      

Name:      

Title:      

 

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
By:      

Name:      

Title:      

 

  

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 167



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  D-1-3 

ATTACHMENT 1 

SUMMARY OF WATER DISTRICT ACQUISITION FACILITIES 

TO BE ACQUIRED AS PART OF PAYMENT REQUEST 

       Water District       Disbursement 

 Acquisition Facilities   Actual Costs       Requested 

 

 

[List here Water District Acquisition Facilities for which payment is requested, and attach 

support documentation] 

 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 168



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  D-2-1 

EXHIBIT “D-2” 

DISBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 

 

(Acquisition Facilities/Water District Fees) 

City of Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase One)  

Pursuant to the Joint Community Facilities Agreement by and among the City of 

Fontana, City of Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase One) 

and West Valley Water District dated as of _________, 2023 (the “JCFA”), City of 

Fontana Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase One) (the “CFD”) is 

hereby requested to pay from the Water District Facilities Account (as defined in the 

JCFA) or any applicable account or subaccount thereof established by the CFD, the amount 

of $_____________ (the “Requested Amount”). 

The Requested Amount shall be paid to the following Payee: 

[Insert name and wire instruction for Payee] 

The Water District has incurred an obligation in the Requested Amount for the 

purpose of constructing or acquiring Water District Facilities and each item of such 

obligation reflected in the Requested Amount constitutes a cost of the Water District 

Facilities and has not been the subject of a prior request for disbursement from the Water 

District Facilities Account.  Each portion of the Water District Facilities for which 

payment is requested was constructed, is being, or will be constructed under the direction 

and supervision, or under the authority of the Water District, or was constructed as if it had 

been constructed under the direction and supervision, or under the authority of the Water 

District. 

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the JCFA. 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  

By:      

Its:      

Date:      

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 169



 

#213791 v2  9088.40  E-1 

EXHIBIT “E” 

CFD BOUNDARY MAP 

 

[Attached] 

 

 

6.12.b

Packet Pg. 170



6.12.b

Packet Pg. 171



EXHIBIT C 

6.12.c

Packet Pg. 172



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WEST 
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING A JOINT COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF FONTANA AND 
CITY OF FONTANA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 112 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fontana will be initiating proceedings under 
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the “Act”) to create City of Fontana 
Community Facilities District No. 112 (The Gardens Phase One) (the “Community Facilities 
District”), to authorize the levy of special tax (the “Special Tax”) upon the land within the 
improvement areas of the Community Facilities District (“Improvement Area”) and to issue 
bonds (the “Bonds”) secured by the Special Tax, the proceeds of which are to be used to finance 
certain public facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the North Fontana Investment Company, LLC (“Owner”) is the owner of 
all of the facilities within the proposed boundaries of the Community Facilities District; and 

WHEREAS, the facilities proposed to be financed by the Community Facilities District 
include certain facilities to be owned, operated and maintained by West Valley Water District 
(the “Water District Facilities”), as well as facilities to be owned, operated or maintained by the 
City of Fontana (the “City Facilities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Water District Facilities include (i) certain fees and charges included in 
West Valley Water District’s (“WVWD”) capacity and connection fee program and used to fund 
master plan water facilities necessary to provide service to Community Facilities District (the 
“Water District Fees”), which fees, as of the date of the Acquisition and Funding Agreement, 
are estimated to total $6,800,000 and (ii) certain other master planned facilities to be constructed 
by or on behalf of Owner and acquired by WVWD for their actual cost, together with 
appurtenances and appurtenant work, and incidental expenses related thereto (each, a “Water 
District Acquisition Facility,” and collectively, the “Water District Acquisition Facilities”); and 

WHEREAS, upon the construction of the Water District Acquisition Facilities by or on 
behalf of Owner and the inspection and acceptance thereof by WVWD, the Water District 
Acquisition Facilities will be conveyed to and accepted by WVWD; and 

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act provides that a Community Facilities District may 
finance facilities to be owned or operated by an entity other than the agency that created the 
community facilities district only pursuant to a Joint Community Facilities Agreement or a Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement adopted pursuant to said Section; and 

6.12.c

Packet Pg. 173



Resolution 2023-__  Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, Section 53316.2 of the Act further provides that at any time prior to the 
adoption of the resolution of formation creating a Community Facilities District or resolution 
of issuance, the legislative bodies of two or more local agencies may enter into a Joint 
Community Facilities Agreement pursuant to said Section and Sections 53316.4 and 53316.6 
of the Act to exercise any power authorized by the Act with respect to the Community Facilities 
District being created if the legislative body of each entity adopts a resolution declaring that 
such a joint agreement would be beneficial to the residents of that entity; and 

WHEREAS, subsection (e) of Section 53316.2 of the Act permits the City of Fontana 
to have primary responsibility for formation of a Community Facilities District; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Fontana and WVWD desire to enter into a Joint Community 
Facilities Agreement in accordance with Sections 53316.2, 53316.4 and 53316.6 of the Act in 
order to provide for the financing of the Water District Facilities through the levy of Special Tax 
and issuance of Bonds by the Community Facilities District; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

That the District approves the Joint Community Facilities Agreement, as presented at this 
meeting, and is hereby adopted. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is hereby directed to transmit a 

certified copy of this resolution to Lewis Management Corporation, attention: Stacey Sassaman, P.O. 
Box 670, Upland, CA 91785-0670, forthwith. 
  

APPROVED, PASSED, and ADOPTED this___ day of ____, 2023. 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
BY:  

GREGORY YOUNG 
President 

  

6.12.c

Packet Pg. 174



Resolution 2023-__  Page 3 of 3 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Alvarez-Glasman & Colvin  
 
 
 
VINCENT C. EWING 
Interim General Counsel 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary of the West Valley Water District, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the West Valley Water District 
at a regular meeting held on the ____ day of _____ 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS:   
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS:   
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:   
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:   
 
 
Dated:  
 

ELVIA DOMINGUEZ 
Board Secretary 

 

6.12.c

Packet Pg. 175



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

BACKGROUND: 

The West Valley Water District (“District”) requested proposals from expert groundwater 
consultants (“Consultants”) to provide professional hydrogeological services related to the design, 
construction coordination/support services and inspection services for the drilling of a new 
groundwater production well for a new well site at a parcel northwest of the intersection of Vesta 
Way and Knox Ave. in the City of Fontana, California. The location of the potential well site is 
shown in Exhibit A. 

New development places additional demands upon existing facilities and often requires the 
construction of new or expanded facilities to maintain service standards. To ensure that the District 
has sufficient supplies to meet those growing demands, the District intends to drill a new 
groundwater production well to supplement the District’s water supplies. 

DISCUSSION: 

District Staff posted the Request for Proposal (“RFP”) on PlanetBids and sent out the RFP to 
consulting firms who specialize in groundwater resource management. Five (5) consulting firms – 
Dudek, Geoscience Support Services, Inc., KYLE Groundwater Inc., Thomas Harder and Co., and 
Wood Rodgers Inc., submitted proposals in response to the RFP. Consultants responding to the 
RFP agree to enter into the District’s standard Professional Services Agreement and Task Order 
(‘contract”). 

The written proposals were reviewed by a committee comprised of District Staff and were evaluated 
based on the following criteria: 

• Past performance and qualifications of the proposal team members on similar projects.

• Familiarity with a company to handle all aspects of the work.

• Ability to complete the project within an expedited time frame.

• The proposed project approach, scope, manner, and thoroughness in which it is presented in
the proposal.

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AND TASK ORDER WITH 
KYLE GROUNDWATER FOR $157,315.00 FOR PROFESSIONAL 
HYDROGEOLOGICAL SERVICES 

6.13

Packet Pg. 176



• Firm’s experience, staff availability, and stability.

• Consultant fees.

The proposal costs for design, construction coordination/support services, and inspection services 
related to the new groundwater production well are shown below: 

Consultant Cost 

Dudek $490,440.00 

Geoscience Support Services, Inc. $198,853.00 

KYLE Groundwater, Inc $157,315.00 

Thomas Harder and Co. $224,340.00 

Wood Rogers, Inc. $266,341.00 

To determine the best value for the District, staff first ensured that all proposals received met the 
minimum requirements in the scope of work by conducting a systematic proposal evaluation. Based 
on technical qualifications, overall evaluation, and costs, staff concluded that KYLE Groundwater, 
Inc. provided the best value for the District’s needs. The firm’s design approach, overall 
understanding of the project’s goals, and the completion of new groundwater wells for similar 
projects further aided in the selection process for the RFP. Attached as Exhibit B is a copy of the 
proposal submitted by KYLE Groundwater, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost to provide the services for the Project as proposed by KYLE Groundwater, Inc. is 
$157,315.00. This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Capital Improvement Budget under 
the W22009 Construct New IEUA Area Well. Sufficient funds are available in the project budget to 
cover the cost. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to authorize entering into a contract with 
KYLE Groundwater, Inc. in the amount of $157,315.00 for the professional services for the design, 
construction coordination/support services and inspection services for the drilling of a new 
groundwater production well project. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

RMG:ls 

6.13

Packet Pg. 177



ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Exhibit A - Potential Well Site Location
2. Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by KYLE Groundwater Inc

MEETING HISTORY: 
04/18/23 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 

6.13

Packet Pg. 178



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6.13.a

Packet Pg. 179



Potential Well Site

DUNCAN CANYON RD

CASA GRANDE AVE

SUMMIT AVE

CI
TR

US
 A

VE

LY
TL

E C
RE

EK
 R

D

I -1
5  F

REEWAY

LYTLE CREEK RD

Date: 8/20/2020

Potential Well Site

WVWD Boundary

®

EXHIBIT A
POTENTIAL WELL SITE LOCATION0 1,000500

Feet

WELL SITE LOCATION

6.13.a

Packet Pg. 180



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 181



PREPARED FOR:

West Valley
Water District

March 7, 2023

2337 W. Foothill Blvd., Suite 7
Upland, CA 91786 | 626-379-7569

www.kylegroundwater.com

Proposal

Professional Services Related to the Design,
Construction Coordination / Support Services
and Inspection Services for Drilling a New
Groundwater Production Well (W22009)

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 182



 

 

KYLE Groundwater, Inc. 
2377 W. Foothill Blvd., Suite 7 

Upland, CA 91786 
(626) 379-7569 

 

 

 

 

 

March 7, 2023 

 

 

West Valley Water District 

Attn: Ms. Melissa Blount, CAP, CPP, WUEP 1 

855 W. Base Line Road 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Re: Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 

Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 

Dear Ms. Blount: 

 

KYLE Groundwater, Inc. (KGI) is pleased to provide West Valley Water District (WVWD) with this proposal to 

provide professional services during permitting, design, and construction of a new groundwater production well 

in the Rialto-Colton Subbasin.  This proposal is in response to the RFP issued on February 17, 2023. 

 

As principal-in-charge (PIC) for this project, I can pledge that we are submitting this proposal as a statement of 

our commitment to provide the experienced leadership and expertise necessary to ensure a successful well 

installation project for WVWD.  We offer a group of highly qualified personnel with a deep understanding of the 

well permitting, design, construction management, and inspection process, and possessing the know-how and 

experience necessary to successfully meet project goals.  Our PIC has designed and installed more than 150 water 

supply wells located throughout California and Mexico, has a thorough understanding of California hydrogeology, 

and has completed and is in the process of completing similar projects for Long Beach Utilities, City of San Jacinto, 

City of Banning, Palmdale Water District, Indio Water Authority, and City of Tustin, among others.  We encourage 

you to call our references to confirm the caliber of our team. 

 

We have chosen DRP Engineering, Inc. (DRP) as our subconsultant to assist with a variety of engineering related 

tasks.  Our team has a history of working together on numerous water supply projects in Southern California, 

allowing for an efficient, integrated, and effective team. 

 

We acknowledge the scope of work in its entirety as it is presented within the RFP, and provide our assurance that 

we fully understand the nature of the project, and the services required.  If you have any questions or require 

additional information, please feel free to call me.  We appreciate the opportunity to develop a mutually beneficial 

working relationship with West Valley Water District. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
Russell Kyle, PG, CHG 

President / Principal Hydrogeologist 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 183



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page i 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Cover Letter .................................................................................................................................................................. i 

Section 1 – Background on Firm .............................................................................................................................. 1 

Section 2 – Statement of Understanding and Approach ...................................................................................... 2 

Section 3 – Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

Section 4 – Project Schedule ..................................................................................................................................... 7 

Section 5 – References .............................................................................................................................................. 16 

Section 6 – Additional Information ....................................................................................................................... 17 

Section 7 – Cost Estimates of Consulting Fee ..................................................................................................... 23 

 

Attachment A – Resumes 

Cost Proposal (Submitted Under Separate Cover) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 184



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 1 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 1 – BACKGROUND ON FIRM 

KYLE GROUNDWATER, INC.  

KYLE Groundwater, Inc. (KGI) is a California Corporation located in Upland.  Our company was founded in 

early 2018 by Mr. Russell Kyle and Ms. Kimberly Makar, in response to demand for experienced and innovative 

hydrogeological solutions from our Southern California clients.  Since that time, we have established a large local 

client base of water agencies and purveyors, and are continuing to grow.  We have a reputation of approaching 

each of our projects with fresh eyes and providing a superior and customized work product.  Mr. Kyle, a 

Professional Geologist and Certified California Hydrogeologist, holds the philosophy that an honest, well-thought-

out, innovative, and scientifically based approach coupled with a high-quality work product, leads to project 

success.  The number and variety of successful projects over the course of his career is testament to that fact.  Mr. 

Kyle has provided hydrogeologic design, construction, and inspection services for over 150 new water supply wells 

and has successfully evaluated and rehabilitated dozens of wells to stabilize structural abnormalities, recover lost 

production and improve poor water quality.  Services offered by KGI include, but are not limited to: 

 
Water Wells 

• Siting 

• Feasibility Studies 

• Design 

• Technical Plans & 

Specifications 

• Construction Management 

• Field Observation 

• Peer Review 

Permitting Support 

• Water Supply Studies 

• Source Assessments (DWSAP) 

• Domestic Water Supply Permit  

• NPDES 

• Control Zone Compliance 

• Setback Compliance 

Groundwater Basin Studies 

• Regional Studies 

• Groundwater Quality 

Characterization 

• Perennial Yield Estimates 

• Artificial Recharge Feasibility 

• Well Field Optimization 

• Groundwater Protection 

• Well Maintenance Programs 

Groundwater Exploration 

• Exploratory Drilling 

• Test Wells 

• Monitoring Wells 

• Depth-Specific Sampling 

• Well Canvassing 

Well Rehabilitation and 

Redevelopment 

• Well Condition Assessment 

• Well Efficiency Testing 

• Down-Hole Video 

Interpretation 

• Flow Profiling 

• Water Quality Assessment 

• Mechanical and Chemical 

Treatment 

• Well Modification 

• Well Repair 

• Liner Design 

• Technical Plans & 

Specifications 

• Construction Management 

• Field Observation 

 

DRP ENGINEERING, INC.  

Established in 2005, DRP Engineering, Inc. (DRP) is a professional consulting firm providing civil and 

environmental engineering design services for clients throughout Southern California.  DRP’s primary emphasis is 

on engineering design of water, wastewater, and stormwater pipelines, collection systems, lift station, and treatment 

systems.  DRP staff have extensive experience in sewer, lift stations, and water mainline pipeline replacement.  

DRP is a registered Community Business Enterprise (CBE ID No. 85967) and a Local Small Business Enterprise 

(LSBE Vendor No. 181441) with the Los Angeles County Consumer and Business Affairs, and a Minority Business 

Enterprise registered with the California Public Utilities Commission. DRP is located in Alhambra, California 

which allows for quick and efficient communication, project site visits and client meetings. The DRP staff 

understands the process and coordination required to effectively and efficiently complete large, complex, multi-

disciplinary and innovative design and construction projects.  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 185



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 2 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Bringing more than 20 years of local water supply experience to this project, Mr. Russell Kyle will serve as our 

Principal-in-Charge (PIC) and Project Manager (PM) and will coordinate directly with WVWD and other team 

members throughout the course of the project.  We have subcontracted with Mr. Eric Leung and Mr. Curtis Roth 

of DRP Engineering, Inc., to provide as-needed technical advisory and engineering support services.  All work will 

be conducted by or under the direct supervision of a California Professional Geologist (PG), Certified 

Hydrogeologist (CHG), and/or Professional Engineer (PE), wherever appropriate. 

Each member of our project team is identified in the organizational chart below along with their respective roles 

for this project.  Brief biographical sketches for each of our project team members are included on the following 

pages.  Partial resumes are included in Attachment A and full resumes can be provided upon request.  Each 

member of our team will be available for the duration of the project and will not be reassigned without prior 

written approval from WVWD. 

 

RUSSELL KYLE, PG, CHG 
PRINCIPAL HYDROGEOLOGIST / PROJECT MANAGER (KGI) 

Licenses and Certifications:  Professional Geologist, No. 7648 
 Certified Hydrogeologist, No. 822 

Mr. Kyle will serve as project manager and will be the direct contact with WVWD.  He will coordinate with staff and contractors on 

a regular basis to ensure that task orders are completed on time, within budget, and of the utmost quality. 

Mr. Kyle has 25 years of experience with a wide variety of groundwater resource related projects for public and 

private clients within the western United States, Mexico, and Africa, with a focus on groundwater resources 

development in Southern California. The scope of his technical experience includes groundwater basin evaluations, 

water supply studies, well siting investigations, artificial recharge feasibility evaluations, well field condition 

assessments, well rehabilitation, desalination feedwater supply studies, and geophysical surveys. Over the course 

of his career he has been responsible for siting and installation of more than 150 water supply wells and 

70 monitoring wells and exploratory borings, including management of field inspectors, coordination with drilling 

contractors and regulatory agencies, permitting, well design, and construction management.  He has completed 

                    
               

                     
         

              

              

              
                

                    
                 

           
                

            
            

                  
                  

           
       

               

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 186



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 3 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

more than 38 high profile well assessment, rehabilitation, and redevelopment projects within Southern California 

within the past 5 years, and is currently working on a variety of phases supporting installation of twelve municipal 

water supply wells.  Mr. Kyle is active within the water resources community as past-Chair to the AWWA CA NV 

Water Well Technology Committee, voting member of the AWWA National Well Standards Committee, and as 

part of an expert technical advisory panel assisting with development of an updated version of the California 

Department of Water Resources Well Standards. 

 

ERIC LEUNG, PE 

TECHNICAL ADVISOR QA/QC (DRP) 

Project Responsibilities:  Mr. Leung will serve as QA/QC lead for the project and will work with Mr. Kyle and Mr. Roth to ensure 

that the work is completed with the utmost quality. 

With more than 35 years of experience in the water and wastewater industry, Mr. Eric Leung serves as the Director 

of Engineering at DRP.  He oversees company-wide operations and manages the internal departments that support 

DRP’s project teams.  He is a proven leader, recognized for his innovative thinking and wealth of expertise in the 

water/wastewater industry, a key factor in his ability to improve business processes and enhance productivity.  

Retiring as Deputy General Manager/Chief Engineer of Long Beach Water Department, Mr. Leung spent 20 years 

managing large-scale assignments, providing him the characteristics that have contributed to his success. Mr. Leung 

held a variety of responsibilities, including planning, directing, managing, and supervising the programs and 

activities of the Department's Engineering Bureau. He also developed and implemented objectives, strategic plans, 

and programs for the Department's water, reclaimed water, and sanitary systems, including the Capital 

Improvement Program, Business Development, GIS/automated mapping, and construction services. 

 

CURTIS ROTH, PE 

ENGINEERING SUPPORT (DRP) 

Project Responsibilities:  Mr. Roth will manage DRP’s project team and will work with Mr. Leung and Kyle to provide supporting 

engineering expertise related to development of preliminary site layouts. 

Curt Roth, P.E., with DRP Engineering, will be responsible for leading the engineering effort in development of 

preliminary site layouts for the new well, along with other engineering support as the need arises.  Mr. Roth brings 

23 years of experience in environmental and civil engineering. He is experienced in water, storm water, recycled 

water and wastewater conveyance as well as all aspects of water and storm water treatment, and adds tremendous 

experience with regard to design, construction, and operation of production wells. 

 

KIMBERLY MAKAR, GIT 
PROJECT GEOLOGIST / GIS / FIELD OBSERVATION (KGI) 

Licenses and Certifications:  Professional Geologist, No. 10044 

Project Responsibilities:  Ms. Makar will serve as a project geologist and provide hydrogeological support to Mr. Kyle, as well as, GIS, 

permitting, and field observation, as necessary. 

Ms. Makar is a geologist with eleven years of experience in the water resource and mining industries.  She began 

her career as a manager of the dewatering program at an open-pit copper mine in Nevada, for which she was 

responsible for developing and executing multi-million-dollar groundwater dewatering programs.  Since 2014 she 

has been providing professional consulting services to the water resources industry in Southern California with an 

emphasis on new well installation and well rehabilitation.  Ms. Makar served as field inspector during a number of 

recent well construction and rehabilitation projects for agencies such as California Water Service Company, 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 187



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 4 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Palmdale Water District, City of Hemet, City of Tustin, City of San Jacinto, Long Beach Utilities, Chino Desalter 

Authority, Three Valleys Municipal Water District, and Gage Canal Company, and leads our permitting efforts 

during planning and construction of municipal water supply wells. 

 

MICHAEL DYKSTRA 
HYDROGEOLOGY / FIELD OBSERVATION (KGI) 

Licenses and Certifications:  Geologist-in-Training (GIT)  

Project Responsibilities:  Mr. Dykstra will serve as a staff geologist and provide hydrogeological support and field inspection services. 

Mr. Dykstra has 10 years’ experience in the Southern California housing construction industry, where he worked 

closely with project managers to ensure projects were completed properly and in a timely manner.  He received a 

Bachelor of Science degree in Geology from California State Polytechnic University – Pomona in 2017 and is 

currently seeking a Master of Science degree in the same subject.  Since January 2020, Mr. Dykstra has been 

providing professional consulting services and support to the water resources industry in California, which includes 

field inspection for new water supply wells and well rehabilitations, and hydrogeologic support for groundwater 

quality studies, permitting, well siting, and design. 

 

STEPHANIE LAMBERT 
HYDROGEOLOGY / FIELD OBSERVATION (KGI) 

Ms. Lambert received a Bachelor of Science degree in Geology from California State Polytechnic University, 

Pomona.  Stephanie has several years’ experience in the geotechnical field, providing oversight during all aspects 

of mass grading operations, including geological mapping and interpretation, coordination with governmental and 

regulatory agencies, and collection of data from a variety of borehole drilling and exploration methods. She has 

more recently been providing field observation for new water supply wells and well rehabilitations. 

 

TROY TERRETT 
HYDROGEOLOGY / FIELD OBSERVATION (KGI) 

Mr. Terrett received a Bachelor of Science degree in Earth Science and Geohydrology from the University of 

California, Santa Barbara.  Mr. Terrett has been providing field observation for new water supply wells and well 

rehabilitations, and hydrogeologic support for groundwater quality studies, permitting, well siting, and design.  He 

is currently providing inspection services for Palmdale Water District, Lake Arrowhead Community Services 

District, and Long Beach Utilities. 

 

BELLE THOGMARTIN 
HYDROGEOLOGY / FIELD OBSERVATION (KGI) 

Ms. Thogmartin received a Bachelor of Art degree in Environmental Studies from California State Polytechnic 

University, San Bernardino.  Belle has been providing field observation for new water supply wells and well 

rehabilitations, and hydrogeologic support for groundwater quality studies, permitting, well siting, and design. 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 188



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 5 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 3 – STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH 

It is our understanding that West Valley Water District (WVWD) wishes to construct a new municipal water supply 

well to supplement offset increased demands stemming from new development within the City of Fontana.  The 

well site is located approximately 750 feet west of the intersection of Vesta Way and Knox Avenue upon an empty 

parcel of land adjacent to a residential development located immediately to the east. 

 

Hydrogeologic Setting 

The new well will be located within the Rialto-Colton Subbasin of the Upper Santa Ana Valley Groundwater Basin, 

located approximately 45 miles east of Los Angeles, in southwestern San Bernardino County, California.  The 

Rialto-Colton Subbasin encompasses approximately 47 square miles and is bounded by the San Gabriel Mountains 

to the northwest, the San Jacinto Fault to the east, the Badlands and Box Spring Mountains to the southeast, and 

the Rialto-Colton Fault system to the southwest.  Several groundwater barriers have been identified within the 

subbasin, although not all impede groundwater flow.  Other than in the southeastern portion of the subbasin, the 

northwest-southeast trending San Jacinto and Rialto-Colton fault systems serve as effective barriers to groundwater 

flow.  Portions of Barrier J, a northeast-southwest trending feature located approximately 4,000 feet southeast of 

the proposed well site, are known to function as a barrier to groundwater flow. 

 

Lytle Creek is the primary drainage feature within the subbasin, draining southeastward toward the confluence with 

the Santa Ana River in the southern portion of the subbasin.  Natural recharge to the subbasin is primarily from 

percolation of flow within Lytle Creek, Reche Canyon, and the Santa Ana River.  A secondary source of recharge 

to the subbasin is from groundwater underflow from adjacent basins. 

 

The sedimentary material that fills the subbasin consists of varying amounts of heterogeneous gravel, sand, silt, 

and clay eroded from the adjacent mountains.  The groundwater system has been generally divided into four water-

bearing units:  river-channel deposits, and the upper, middle, and lower water-bearing units, with the middle water-

bearing unit being identified as the principal source of water to production wells.  Consolidated material of reduced 

permeability is known to underlie the primary water-bearing deposits, and forms the effective base of the subbasins 

aquifers.  The coarsest material occurs near the mouth of Lytle Creek and becomes progressively finer toward the 

Santa Ana River, where deposits of high-permeability material can be found. 

 

In the vicinity of the proposed wells site, it is anticipated that the well depth will be approximately 1,000 to 

1,200 feet below ground surface (bgs), with an anticipated yield of approximately 1,000 to 2,000 gpm.  

 

Water Quality Considerations 

There are no major widespread constituents of concern within the Rialto-Colton subbasin.  Total dissolved solids 

(TDS) measured at WVWD Well 54 range from approximately 230 to 250 milligrams per liter (mg/L), and indicate 

generally good groundwater quality.  Nevertheless, depth‐specific groundwater quality will be quantified by way of 

isolated aquifer zone testing, and will be considered prior to preparing the final well design, such that the best 

possible water quality blend can be achieved.  Based upon review of recent information contained within the State 

of California Water Resources Control Board Geotracker database, there are no identified cases of environmental 

concern within a mile of the proposed well site.  A site-specific Phase I environmental assessment will be completed 

by our subconsultant, Geo Forward, early in the site assessment process. 

 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 189



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 6 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Well Site Logistics & Permitting Considerations 

An important and integral part of this project is the mitigation of construction noise and other potential impacts 

to the adjacent community.  Our team is very familiar with coordinating with local residents, business owners, City 

departments, and regulatory bodies through a variety of outreach efforts.  Proactively addressing these issues 

through community meetings and notifications has proved instrumental in preparing residents for what is to come, 

and those mitigation methods to be implemented.  Additionally, providing regular project updates to the 

community, and offering multiple channels for communication, can be critical to a successful construction project. 

 

Typically, the minimum space required to drill and construct a new municipal supply well using the reverse 

circulation rotary drilling method is approximately 120 by 60 feet (i.e., 7,200 square feet), but this would require a 

nearby staging area for storage of equipment and materials and would present difficulties with the drilling and 

construction process.  An ideal space for drilling and construction is 150 by 150 feet (i.e., 22,500 square feet).  

From a constructability standpoint, the proposed well site area of approximately 70,000 square feet, offers more 

than adequate space for construction. 

 

Effective noise mitigation and monitoring will be a critical factor for surrounding residential areas, particularly to 

those homes located immediately east of the proposed well site.  As such, requiring some level of containment 

with temporary noise mitigating structures will be required to be installed during construction.  These noise 

mitigating structures should be a minimum of 24 feet in height, STC-32 rated per ASTM E13-16, and will require 

geotechnical and structural calculations from a Registered Structural Engineer to verify compliance with 

appropriate California building codes for temporary structures. 

 

There is an active northeast-southwest trending Southern California Gas Company pipeline situated adjacent to 

and parallel to the western property boundary.  Although unlikely to be an issue for constructability, we have 

previously encountered some pushback from the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) with regard to setbacks from 

these facilities.  Regardless, early coordination with DDW on this, and other permitting requirements, is 

recommended such that delays to the project timeline can be avoided.  

 

Contractor Coordination 

In the interest of cost and the success of the project, it is important that drilling projects be tailored to be desirable 

to contractors without compromising the integrity of the work.  Much of this hinges on good working relationships 

between the drilling contractor, engineer, and hydrogeologist.  Our team offers a seamless relationship between 

engineer and hydrogeologist and maintains excellent working relationships with most contractors throughout the 

State, and all of the reverse-circulation drilling contractors in Southern California.  These established working 

relationships help to remove “unknowns” and “misunderstandings” from a project, increasing the pool of bidders, 

and ultimately reducing costs. 

 

Statement of Differentiation 

We pride ourselves at approaching projects with fresh eyes and from new perspectives.  We use our hard-earned 

experience as a solid foundation for the work, but take nothing for granted in developing a customized approach, 

and strive to exceed our clients’ goals and expectations. 

 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 190



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 7 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 3 – SCOPE OF WORK 

1.0 Project Management 

Our team will conduct general project administration, including QA/QC, and monitoring of the project schedule 

and budget.  All work will be reviewed by the Project Manager, and prior to any milestone submittal. QA/QC 

reviews and documentation will be conducted by our QA/QC team members in accordance with in-house policies 

and procedures.  Our team recognizes the need for comprehensive, up-to-date information on project status, 

budget, schedule, any identified issues, and potential solutions.  Reports will be prepared on a monthly basis and 

will be attached and submitted electronically with project invoices. 

 

2.0 Kickoff and Progress Meetings 

The KGI team will prepare for and attend a kickoff meeting with WVWD personnel to discuss the proposed scope 

of work.  The primary objective of the project kick-off meeting will be to meet face-to-face with key members of 

the project team to make sure that the intent, objectives, tasks, budgets, schedules, milestones, deliverables, and 

data needs are properly understood and addressed.  The kick-off meeting also introduces and identifies those 

individuals responsible for implementing each part of the work and provides a forum for discussion of critical-

path tasks, and how those tasks can be efficiently executed.  A baseline project schedule will be presented at the 

meeting and updated on a regular basis.  Pertinent members of the project team will attend a minimum of two (2) 

meetings following submittal and review of the 60% and 90% designs, and up to nine (9) monthly progress 

meetings, as necessary, throughout the course of the project.  Additional meetings, such as pre-bid, 

pre-construction, zone test, and design meetings are included under their respective tasks.  Meeting agendas will 

be prepared for all project meetings and meeting minutes will be provided to WVWD within three working days. 

 

3.0 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

Our subconsultant, Geo Forward, will prepare a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the proposed 

well site, the purpose of which is to identify potential environmental liabilities that may be present, as defined by 

ASTM E1527-21 as the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substances or petroleum products, in or on 

the property, due to any known release to the environment, under conditions indicative of a release to the 

environment, or under conditions that pose material threat of a future release to the environment.  The ESA will 

be completed by a licensed professional geologist experienced with performing this type of work, and as consistent 

with CERCLA section 101(35)(b)(iii).  Sampling and testing for radon, lead-based paint, lead in drinking water, 

asbestos building materials, subsurface methane, industrial hygiene, cultural and historical resources, health and 

safety, ecological resources, endangered species, indoor air quality, toxic fungus, mold, biological agents, or high-

voltage power lines, is not included in the proposed scope of work.  The objective of a Phase I ESA is to reduce 

but not eliminate uncertainty regarding the potential for recognized environmental conditions in connection to a 

property.  Should any “recognized environmental concerns” be identified, final recommendations may include 

further investigation in the form of a Phase 2 ESA.  The scope of the Phase I ESA includes the following: 

 

• File Review of Agency Records 

• Review of Historical Land Use 

• Site Reconnaissance 

• Interviews 

• Final Report 

 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 191



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 8 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

4.0 Data Collection and Utility Search 

The project team will assess the proposed well site in terms of hydrogeological, logistical, and regulatory feasibility 

and constraints.  This will begin with a request information from WVWD regarding existing wells, including, but 

not limited to, location, construction details, well logs, production histories, pumping dynamics, aquifer test data 

(if available), pump efficiency test reports, groundwater elevations, and groundwater quality.  In addition to 

obtaining and reviewing WVWD utility records, our team will contact all other utility providers within the project 

vicinity and obtain pertinent records, including record drawings, legal descriptions, and power sources. 

 

5.0 Initial Study of Environmental Impact 

Our project team will provide support to WVWD during preparation of CEQA documentation, including location 

maps, site plans, land use of adjacent properties, and right-of-way requirements.  It is our understanding that 

WVWD will act as lead agency, and our team will provide assistance in the form of the abovementioned 

requirements, and by responding to questions and comments from WVWD personnel.  Our project manager will 

attend a public hearing, as necessary, to respond to public comment.     

 

6.0 Site Assessment and Preliminary Design Report 

In addition to the data collection effort in Task 4.0, KGI will visit the proposed well site to identify and assess any 

logistical and permitting issues that may need to be addressed.  This information will be incorporated into a PDR 

for the proposed well that will serve as a planning document prior to entering the permitting and design phase.  

The PDR will provide a summary of hydrogeologic setting, anticipated groundwater quality, nearby sites of 

environmental concern, groundwater elevations, production potential, construction constraints, logistics and 

conflicts, regulatory issues, and permitting constraints.  Logistical constraints may include site access, available 

space for drilling, overhead obstructions, aboveground and underground utilities, location of the construction 

water source, potential waste water discharge options, noise constraints, and potential permitting constraints (i.e., 

sanitary setbacks, control zone requirement, discharge requirements, etc.)  Part of this preliminary design effort, 

will include a conceptual layout of the site, including access for maintenance equipment, building size and location 

(if any), location of valve and meter vault, parking, security fencing and preliminary construction sequencing.  A 

high-level analysis will be included to assess the estimated magnitude of water level interference between the new 

well and any existing nearby active wells.  A preliminary production well design will be prepared based on existing 

information, including a basis of design and planning-level estimate of contractor costs. 

 

KGI will submit five (5) bound hard copies and an electronic copy of the PDR to WVWD at the draft stage for 

review and comment.  Upon incorporation of comments, KGI will submit five (5) bound hard copies and an 

electronic copy of the final PDR. 

 

7.0 Well Drilling Plans and Technical Specifications 

KGI will prepare detailed technical plans and specifications for drilling and construction of the new well, assist 

WVWD with modification of front-end contractual documents, and prepare detailed bid schedules with specific 

line items showing units and unit quantities for the work.  Engineer’s estimates of construction costs will be 

prepared based on recent winning bids and materials costs for similar work within the Southern California area.  

Critical items to be included in the technical specifications will include the following: 

 

• Site requirements (i.e., noise monitoring and mitigation, dust control, air quality monitoring, waste disposal, BMPs, power, lighting, 

construction water source, security, sanitation facilities, staging, parking, and traffic control). 

• Regulatory and permitting requirements. 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 192



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 9 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

• Discharge requirements. 

• Well location, depths, dimensions, and materials (conceptual well design). 

• Anticipated hydrogeologic conditions. 

• Mobilization, demobilization, site preparation, and site restoration. 

• Drilling methods and fluids control requirements. 

• Equipment, materials, and records to be furnished by the Contractor. 

• Well drilling, zone testing, and construction procedures, including: 

o Conductor casing and sanitary seal installation. 

o Pilot borehole drilling. 

o Geophysical borehole logging. 

o Isolated aquifer zone testing. 

o Borehole reaming. 

o Alignment, plumbness, borehole integrity, and drilling speed. 

o Installation of well casing, screen, and ancillary tubing. 

o Gravel envelope design and placement method. 

o Annular cement seal installation. 

• Well development procedures (initial and final). 

• Aquifer pumping and recovery tests. 

• Flowmeter survey. 

• Title 22 groundwater quality. 

• Downhole video camera, plumbness, and alignment surveys. 

• Well disinfection. 

• Well head completion. 

 

KGI will submit draft versions of the plans and specifications to WVWD for review at the 60%, 90%, and 100% 

design stages.  Each submittal will include five (5) sets of drawings specifications, and supporting documents, and 

an engineer’s estimate of construction costs. 

 

8.0 Bidding 

Upon entering the bid phase, KGI will prepare for and attend a pre-bid meeting with WVWD and prospective 

drilling contractors to discuss key points within the technical plans and specifications, and to answer questions 

regarding site conditions, staging, preliminary well design, schedule and other hydrogeologic or contractual matters.  

During the bidding process, KGI will respond to bidder’s questions and prepare bid addenda as necessary (assumes 

up to three [3] RFIs and addenda).  Once the bidding process is complete, KGI will evaluate bids and will provide 

recommendations regarding award. 

 

9.0 Engineer’s Estimate 

As part of the effort for Task 7.0, KGI will prepare engineer’s estimates of construction costs based on recent 

competitive winning bids for similar projects in the southern California area.  We have received five (5) winning 

bids in the last two (2) years that will allow for a fair degree of accuracy in developing these costs.  

 

10.0 Drinking Water Source Assessment and Protection (DWSAP) Documents 

KGI will prepare preliminary Drinking Water Source Assessment and Protection (DWSAP) documents for the 

proposed well in support of the domestic water supply permit amendment (see Task 11.0).  Preparation of the 

DWSAP documents requires identification of all Potentially Contaminating Activities (i.e., PCAs) within two-, five- 

and ten-year protection zones.  These protection zones will be delineated using the modified calculated fixed-radius 

method, taking into account local groundwater flow direction, anticipated well construction details and pumping 

capacity, and aquifer parameters.  These protection zones will be presented in map form along with identified 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 193



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 10 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

PCAs.  Those PCAs that are identified as posing the greatest environmental risk to the proposed well (if any) will 

be summarized in a ranked vulnerability inventory and assessed within the DWSAP documents. 

 

The preliminary DWSAP documents will be submitted to WVWD in electronic (i.e., PDF) format for review and 

ultimate forwarding to the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).  Once the well has been completed 

and tested, the preliminary DWSAP documents will be updated to reflect actual conditions (i.e., aquifer 

information, well as-built details, and pumping dynamics) and current PCAs.  Final DWSAP documents will be 

submitted to WVWD in electronic format along with three (3) bound hard copies (as necessary). 

11.0 Permit Assistance 

Task 11.1 – Assist with DDW Domestic Water Supply Permit Amendment 

It will be necessary to amend WVWD’s existing California Division of Drinking Water (DDW) Water Supply 

Permit pursuant to California Health and Safety Code, Division 104, Part 12, Chapter 4 (California Safe Drinking 

Water Act), Article 7, Section 116550, such that the proposed well can be permitted as an approved drinking water 

source.  This process will typically require the following submittals: 

 

• Completed permit amendment application form. 

• Drinking Water Source Assessment Program (DWSAP) documents. 

• CEQA documentation. 

• Well drilling plans & specifications. 

• Well plot map. 

• Horizontal distances table. 

• County well drilling permit. 

• Groundwater quality (Title 22) reports. 

• Aquifer pumping test data. 

• Final well data sheet. 

• As-built plans. 

• Chlorination data sheet. 

• Department of Water Resources (DWR) water well driller’s report. 

 

It is recommended that DDW be contacted during the pre-design phase as early coordination with DDW has 

proved a critical factor in mitigation of site-specific conditions, and to ensure that permitting issues do not delay 

the well installation process.  KGI will support WVWD during this process, including completion of the 

application, preparation of DWSAP documents (see Task 10.0), well drilling plans and specifications (see Task 7.0), 

a plot map and horizontal distances table, Title 22 groundwater quality (see Task 13.0), aquifer pumping test data 

(see Task 12.17), final well data sheet (see Task 10.0), as-built plans for the well (see Task 13.0), and the DWR 

water well driller’s report.  It should be noted that the domestic water supply permit amendment process will not 

be complete until the new well has been constructed, equipped, and tested.  It is assumed that WVWD will be 

responsible for any required permit fees, and as such, those fees are not included in this proposal. 

Task 11.2 – San Bernardino County Drilling Permit 

The drilling permit application filing and associated fees will be the responsibility of the drilling contractor.  

However, prior to filing the application it is typically necessary to coordinate with DDW and the County to avoid 

unexpected delays.  This may include attendance at a site meeting to discuss the proposed location of the well, the 

conceptual well design, control-zone requirements, and required sanitary setbacks. 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 194



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 11 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Task 11.3 – San Bernardino County Flood Control District 

It will be necessary to apply for a County of San Bernardino Department of Public Works Flood Permit to allow 

temporary discharges to the County storm drain system during development and testing of the new well.  KGI will 

prepare the permit application and associated exhibits, and will coordinate with the County during the permitting 

process. The type of permit is anticipated to be a “Minor Construction” permit and will include plan check and 

inspection by the County. It is assumed that WVWD will pay all permit fees. 

Task 11.4 – Regional Water Quality Control Board 

It is our understanding that WVWD is currently enrolled under Statewide NPDES Order WQ 2014-0194-DWQ, 

and as such, there is likely no need to submit an enrollment package for the new well.  However, KGI will provide 

support and interpretation of NPDES permit requirements during the bidding and construction phase. It is 

assumed that WVWD will pay any and all permit fees. 

 

12.0 Construction Management, Inspection, and Final Design 

Task 12.1 – Construction Coordination & Support 

KGI will conduct a pre-construction meeting and site walk with WVWD personnel and the selected drilling 

contractor to establish the final location of the well and address any logistical issues with equipment setup.  

Discussion will also include, but not be limited to submittals, permit requirements, noise mitigation, discharge 

issues, air quality monitoring, construction water source location, site access, work schedules, submittal of pay 

requests, and communication protocol.  KGI will prepare a preconstruction meeting agenda and minutes, as 

necessary.  During the construction phase, KGI’s project manager will provide construction management support, 

including contractor submittal review, response to RFIs and RFCs, change order review, project schedule review, 

contractor progress payment request review for accuracy, and regular construction updates. 

Task 12.2 – Installation of Conductor Casing and Sanitary Seal 

KGI will provide full-time inspection during drilling of the conductor borehole and installation of the conductor 

casing and sanitary cement seal to an anticipated depth of 50 feet below ground surface (bgs).  KGI will inspect 

the conductor casing material, borehole and casing diameters, and casing wall thickness to verify conformance with 

the technical specifications and final design.  The cement mix used for the sanitary seal will be compared to design 

and the time of mixing will be noted to ensure that an extended period has not taken place between mixing and 

delivery to the site.  Cement samples will be collected during installation and submerged in drilling fluid to simulate 

downhole conditions. These samples will be monitored to ensure that the cement has sufficiently set, particularly 

when multiple cement pours are specified.  Additionally, KGI will coordinate with the drilling contractor and the 

County inspector to ensure that the sanitary seal is in conformance with County and State regulatory requirements. 

Task 12.3 – Pilot Borehole Drilling 

KGI will provide part-time inspection during drilling of the pilot borehole to an anticipated depth of approximately 

1,000 feet bgs.  Composite formation cuttings will be collected at 10-foot intervals or at major changes in the 

character of formation materials.  Each sample will be classified utilizing the Unified Soil Classification System 

(USCS) visual method.  During drilling, KGI will witness measurement of pertinent drilling fluid parameters to 

optimize protection of water-bearing formations and borehole integrity.  Additionally, KGI will witness borehole 

drift surveys for confirmation of borehole verticality, to be measured every 100 feet of depth.  Assuming an average 

drilling rate of 10 feet per hour, and a 24-hour per day work schedule, it is anticipated that borehole drilling will 

take approximately four (4) days to complete. 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 195



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 12 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Task 12.4 – Geophysical Logging 

Upon completion of pilot borehole drilling, KGI will provide full-time inspection services of downhole geophysical 

borehole logging for the following anticipated geophysical suite:  

 

• Short- and long-normal resistivity 

• Focused resistivity (i.e., Laterolog-3 or guard) 

• Temperature 

• Spontaneous-potential 

• Single-point resistance 

• Gamma-ray 

• Sonic velocity / variable density 

 

These geophysical logs, in combination with borehole lithology, will be used to identify target aquifer intervals for 

isolated aquifer zone testing, and will inform the final well design. 

Task 12.5 – Select Isolated Aquifer Zone Test Intervals 

KGI will review borehole lithology and geophysical survey logs, and will select up to four (4) 20-foot aquifer 

intervals for isolated aquifer zone testing.  Recommended zone test intervals will be presented to WVWD in 

electronic letter format within 24-hours of the completion of geophysical logging.  Upon approval by WVWD, the 

recommended zone test intervals will be provided to the drilling contractor for field implementation. 

Task 12.6 –Isolated Aquifer Zone Testing 

KGI will provide part-time inspection during isolated aquifer zone testing and will provide close monitoring during 

construction and testing of each zone.  We recommend that zone testing be performed at discharge rates exceeding 

200 gallons per minute (gpm), if possible, to ensure that representative sampling of the aquifer is taking place and 

that the aquifer is being sufficiently stressed to provide the best possible field data.  It is further recommended that 

turbidity measurements taken from pumped groundwater be less than 10 nephelometric turbidity units (NTUs) 

for at least three hours prior to collecting water quality samples. 

 

After each zone has been appropriately developed to the satisfaction of KGI, groundwater samples will be collected 

and delivered to a State-certified water quality testing laboratory for analysis.  For cost estimating purposes, it is 

assumed that the drilling contractor will contract with the laboratory directly and will be responsible for laboratory 

fees.  Field water quality measurements will be collected during pumping and at the time of sample collection, 

including pH, temperature, electrical conductivity, dissolved oxygen, total dissolved solids, and turbidity.  The 

recommended water quality analytical suite will be presented to WVWD for approval prior to implementation.  It 

is recommended that groundwater quality samples collected from each zone be analyzed on a 72-hour (i.e., 3-day 

rush) turn-around-time as the results of these analyses are integral for determining the final well design.  

Instantaneous discharge rate, and static and pumping water levels, will also be measured frequently during pumping 

of each zone to allow an assessment of aquifer pumping dynamics (including pressure head and specific capacity).   

Task 12.7 – Mechanical Grading Analysis 

Up to ten (10) formation samples will be selected for mechanical grain size (i.e., sieve) analysis based on visual 

observation of the actual samples, and geophysical survey logs.  The results of these analyses, along with knowledge 

of regional aquifer characteristics, will be used as a basis for preparing a custom gravel envelope and well screen 

design for the production well that will offer optimal well efficiency, enable effective well rehabilitation and 

redevelopment efforts, and allow for extended operational life.  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 196



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 13 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

Task 12.8 – Final Well Design 

A properly designed gravel envelope will control production of formation sand while allowing for a highly-efficient 

pumping well.  Proper gravel envelope design can be accomplished through conformance with Terzaghi migration 

and permeability criteria, as well as appropriate uniformity coefficients and pack-to-aquifer ratios.  These factors 

allow design of a gravel envelope which is sufficiently fine and graded to control the finest formation sand through 

stabilization, and coarse and uniform enough to allow efficient water flow.  Once an appropriate gravel envelope 

gradation has been designed to complement the formation materials, a screen opening size is selected to stabilize 

the gravel envelope.  The gravel envelope gradation will be designed based on the results of sieve analyses. 

 

The location of the well screen interval(s), annular cement seal, and well appurtenances will be selected based on 

borehole lithology, geophysical borehole logs, and the results of isolated aquifer zone testing.  Recommendations 

will also be provided regarding the suitability of borehole/casing depths and diameters, and materials to be used. 

The draft well design will be presented to WVWD in letter format for review, and KGI’s project manager will 

attend a design meeting with WVWD to discuss the proposed design before submittal to the contractor.  

Task 12.9 – Borehole Reaming 

KGI will provide part-time inspection during reaming (i.e., enlargement) of the pilot borehole to an anticipated 

depth of approximately 1,000 feet bgs.  During drilling, KGI will witness measurement of pertinent drilling fluid 

parameters to optimize protection of water-bearing formations and borehole integrity.  Additionally, KGI will 

verify that borehole depths and diameters are in conformance with the final well design and technical specifications.  

For cost estimating purposes, assuming an average drilling rate of 10 feet per hour, and a 24-hour per day work 

schedule, it is anticipated that borehole reaming will take approximately four (4) days to complete.  Following 

borehole reaming, KGI will witness a caliper survey of the enlarged borehole, the purpose of which is to measure 

and verify borehole diameters and depths prior to well construction. 

Task 12.10 – Well Construction 

KGI will provide full-time inspection during installation of the well casing, screen, ancillary tubing, filter media, 

and annular seals to ensure placement in accordance with the final well design and technical specifications.  Installed 

volumes of the gravel envelope and cement seal will be checked throughout the construction process to verify that 

there are no bridges and/or voids within the annular space between the well casing and borehole wall.  KGI 

personnel will inspect all construction materials as they are delivered to the site, including the well casing, well 

screen, ancillary tubing, gravel envelope, and sealing materials.  Casing materials will be inspected to verify that 

dimensions and material types are in conformance with the final well design.  Each load of the gravel envelope 

material will be sampled upon delivery and sieved to verify that the as-delivered gradation meets design parameters.  

Cement mixes will be compared to design and the time of mixing will be noted to ensure that an extended period 

has not taken place between mixing and delivery to the site.  Cement samples will be collected during installation 

and submerged in drilling fluid to simulate downhole conditions. These samples will be monitored to ensure that 

the cement has sufficiently set, particularly when multiple cement pours are specified. 

Task 12.11 – Initial Well Development 

Well development is a critical phase of well installation, and successful well development will provide for an 

efficient well from which aquifer yield and groundwater quality can be assessed.  The goal is to remove as much 

residual drilling fluids as is considered practical and to grade the gravel envelope and near-well zone such that water 

can be transmitted as efficiently as possible without producing formation sand.  

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 197



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 14 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

The first phase of well development is particularly critical and typically consists of swabbing while simultaneously 

airlifting or pumping the entire length of well screen in 10-foot increments.  For each interval of screen, sand 

production will be measured immediately following swabbing, and as the discharge clears.  Those intervals 

exhibiting significant sand production (i.e., greater than approximately 1 ml/L) or high turbidity will be targeted 

for additional development on subsequent passes through the well screen.  KGI will provide part-time inspection 

during the initial well development process. 

 

It is estimated that approximately 144 hours of airlift development will be sufficient to develop the well.  This can 

vary based on many factors, including the drilling fluid properties, formation characteristics, well design, and the 

actual length of well screen.  As such, KGI will review data collected during the development process and provide 

real-time recommendations regarding the need for additional development.  Following demobilization of the 

drilling rig, KGI will coordinate with the drilling contractor regarding installation of the test pump to ensure that 

the pump is suitably sized, and that the intake is set at an appropriate depth within a blank section of well casing. 

Task 12.12 – Final Well Development by Pumping and Surging 

The second phase of well development consists of pumping and surging with a temporary test pump to be 

furnished by the contractor.  During the final development process, pumping will begin at low rates, with no 

surging, slowly building to the maximum specified pumping rate (typically 1.5x the anticipated design pumping 

rate).  Gentle surging will then begin at lower rates, becoming increasingly aggressive as development progresses.  

Tests for sand production and specific capacity will be performed throughout the process to measure the progress 

of development.  Once specific capacity approaches a maximum, sand production approaches a minimum, and 

well performance criteria are met, development is considered complete and the aquifer pumping test phase can 

begin.  KGI will provide part-time 

inspection during final well development. 

 

Typically, approximately 60 hours of final 

well development is sufficient to properly 

develop a well of this anticipated depth.  

However, this can vary based on many 

factors, including the drilling fluid 

properties, formation characteristics, and 

final well design.  As such, KGI will review 

data collected during final development 

and provide real-time recommendations 

regarding the need for additional 

development. 

Task 12.13 – Aquifer Pumping Tests 

KGI will provide full-time inspection during an 8-hour step-drawdown pumping test, the purpose of which is to 

allow calculation of well efficiency and determine an appropriate rate for the constant rate pumping test.  During 

the test, static and pumping water levels, totalizer flowmeter readings, and sand production, will be measured by 

KGI personnel at specified intervals. 

 

Following the step-drawdown test, KGI will provide part-time inspection during the 24-hour constant rate 

drawdown test, the purpose of which is to determine a recommended instantaneous pumping rate, allow 

calculation of short- and long-term pumping dynamics, and establish an optimal pump intake setting.  As with the 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 198



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 15 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

step-drawdown test, totalizer flowmeter readings and sand production will be measured at specified intervals.  

Recovering water levels will be measured for a period of 4 hours following cessation of pumping. 

 

Toward the end of the constant rate pumping test, groundwater samples will be collected by KGI personnel and 

submitted to a State-certified laboratory under chain-of-custody protocol for Title 22 and PFOA/PFOS analysis.  

Field water quality measurements will be collected at the time of sample collection, including pH, temperature, 

electrical conductivity, dissolved oxygen, total dissolved solids, and turbidity.  A flowmeter (i.e., spinner) survey 

will be conducted approximately 2 hours before cessation of pumping as a means of quantifying depth-specific 

groundwater flow contribution with across the well screen(s). 

Task 12.14 – Downhole Video & Gyroscopic Alignment Surveys 

KGI will provide full-time inspection during a downhole dual-cam video survey to verify and document well 

construction details and to serve as a record of the as-built condition of the well.  KGI will also provide full-time 

inspection during plumbness and alignment testing of the well to verify acceptable verticality.  It is anticipated that 

testing will take the form of a gyroscopic alignment survey and will take place at the time of the video survey. 

Task 12.15 – Well Disinfection 

KGI will provide full-time inspection services during final disinfection of the well structure to verify that suitable 

chemicals, concentrations, and methods of mixing and emplacement are employed. 

Task 12.16 – Inspect Well Head and Site Condition 

KGI will provide inspection of the completed well head for conformance with the technical specifications and well 

design details.  Additionally, the post-construction condition of the well site will be assessed to verify that all 

equipment and materials have been demobilized and that the site has been restored to its original condition to the 

satisfaction of WVWD.  A final punch-list will be prepared as necessary, and a final site walk will be conducted 

with the contractor and WVWD personnel. 

Task 12.17 – Analyze Aquifer Pumping Test Data 

Data collected from the aquifer pumping tests will be analyzed immediately following completion.  KGI will use 

the results of the analysis to make recommendations regarding optimal operational parameters, including 

instantaneous pumping rate, short- and long-term drawdown characteristics, well efficiency, and recommended 

pump intake setting.  Analysis, results, and recommendations will be presented to WVWD in letter format with 

appropriate charts, figures, and data. 

 

13.0 Final Construction Summary Report 

KGI will assemble all relevant construction records from the project and provide this information in a 

comprehensive written summary report.  The report will include a summary of the project, construction timeline, 

daily field reports, an inventory of the materials installed, an as-built profile of the well, borehole lithology, pumping 

test charts, recommended well capacity and pumping dynamics, geophysical surveys, video survey, field data, and 

groundwater quality.  An electronic draft summary report will be presented to WVWD for review, and, upon 

incorporation of comments, an electronic copy and three (3) bound hard copies of the final version will be 

submitted.  All digital files, including construction photographs, downhole video survey files, and geophysical logs 

will be provided with the final submittal. 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 199



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 16 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 4 – PROJECT SCHEDULE 

We have developed a realistic detailed project schedule based on our team’s experience in delivering projects of a 

similar type and scope, and the scope of work identified in the RFP (see below).  Our team has first-hand experience 

with permitting constraints and requirements, and a deep understanding of the well construction process.  This 

allows for early identification of critical-path items and enables pre-planning to avoid costly delays on the part of 

the Contractor.  We have identified the CEQA documentation as a critical-path long-lead time component of the 

schedule and recommend beginning this work as soon as possible.  This schedule is contingent upon 

implementation of the scope of work as contained within this proposal and timely receipt of requested information.  

It is acknowledged that time is and will remain of the essence throughout the course of the work.  Correspondingly, 

all schedule modifications will be treated in a manner reflecting this consideration. We assume a project start date 

in late-April 2023 and the construction phase beginning in May 2024.  Our project team currently has the resources 

to accomplish the anticipated work within the schedule shown.   

 

Preliminary Project Schedule 

Permitting, Design, and Construction of a New Groundwater Production Well 
 

 

  

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 200



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 17 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 5 – REFERENCES 

Our team members have the experience and expertise necessary to deliver the highly specialized hydrogeological 

and engineering services needed for this project, and have worked together on numerous projects over the past 

ten years.  As a testament to the quality of our work, KGI is currently providing on-call hydrogeological services 

to Palmdale Water District, Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, Jurupa Community Services District, 

and Long Beach Water Department.  The following pages include a selection of reference projects that demonstrate 

a proven track record with recent project-relevant experience.  Key members of our team outlined in this proposal 

held significant roles within these reference projects.  The client references listed below can attest to the quality of 

our services, delivery capability, and our level of ownership. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In addition to the project summaries provided, our PIC also served as project manager and technical lead for the 

following projects while working for another firm, one of which, installation of Well No. 54, was located 

approximately ½-mile from the proposed well site. 

 

• Installation of WVWD Well No. 1A (Rialto-Colton Basin) 

• Installation of WVWD Well No. 54 (Rialto-Colton Basin) 

• Rehabilitation of WVWD Rialto Well No. 6 (Rialto-Colton Basin) 

• Siting and Installation of the 9th St. North and South Baseline Feeder Wells (Bunker Hill Basin) 

 

Ms. Wendy Chen, PE 
Manager of Engineering 

Long Beach Water Department 

562-570-2324 

wendy.chen@lbwater.org 

 

Mr. Scott L. Rogers, PE 
Engineering Manager 

Palmdale Water District 

661-456-5319 

srogers@palmdalewater.org 

 

Mr. Mathew Osborn 
Water Utility Supervisor 

City of San Jacinto 

(951) 487-7330 x755 

mosborn@sanjacintoca.gov 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 201



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 18 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 
Long Beach Utilities (LBU) is seeking 

to increase water supply reliability and 

optimize local water supply by 

maintaining a production well field 

capacity of 32,692 acre-feet per year 

(AFY) through the year 2032.  Due to 

the advanced age and poor condition of 

the well field, it is anticipated that 

reaching this goal will require 

rehabilitation of 19 existing wells to 

increase production from existing 

sources of supply, and construction of 

at least 12 new wells.  Based on 

recommendations of the Collection 

Main and New Well Site Study prepared 

by KGI, a plan was implemented to 

install 12 new water supply wells within 

the next 10 years.  This project is one of several well installation projects aimed at meeting this goal. 

 

KGI is tasked with providing services to support destruction of four existing wells along with installation of the 

two new wells within Stearns Champions Park.  The scope of work includes well siting, permitting, preliminary 

well and equipping design, final design and preparation of technical specifications, bidding, and construction 

management and inspection.  Particular challenges of this project include a difficult permitting environment 

combined with logistical considerations of installing wells within a heavily utilized park.  The first well has been 

built and was tested at a rate of 4,700 gpm with a specific capacity of 115 gpm/foot. 

LONG BEACH UTILITIES 
DRILLING AND EQUIPPING OF ALAMITOS WELL 9A AND 14 

Location: Long Beach, CA 

Personnel: 

Russell Kyle, Project Manager/Hydrogeologist 

Kimberly Makar, Permitting/GIS 

Michael Dykstra, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Stephanie Lambert, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Troy Terrett, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Belle Thogmartin, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Client: 

Long Beach Utilities 

Nikolas Baykal, PE 

Nikolas.baykal@lbwater.org 

562-570-2347 

Completion Date: Est. October 2024 

Total Cost: $1.81M 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 202



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 19 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 

Mr. Kyle was the technical lead for siting, permitting, design, and installation of new municipal water supply well 

for the City of San Jacinto.  A site feasibility assessment was conducted, from which a preliminary design was 

prepared, including anticipated well capacity and groundwater quality, preliminary design, construction logistics, 

and identification of construction and permitting constraints. 

Specific project tasks included 

preparation of a preliminary design 

report, comprehensive well permitting 

(including, CEQA, NPDES, Domestic 

Water Supply Permit Amendment, and 

DWSAP documents), preparation of 

technical plans and specifications, and 

bidding support.  KGI provided 

construction management and 

inspection services, and interfaced with 

Eastern Municipal Water District during 

execution of the contract.  The area has 

a history of elevated iron and 

manganese, and as such,  KGI collected 

depth-specific samples during isolated 

aquifer zone testing such that an 

assessment of the concentration of these 

constituents from the completed well could be estimated, and treatment design refined.  The well has been 

successfully constructed and is currently anticipated to produce 2,500 gpm with a specific capacity of 46 gpm/foot. 

  

CITY OF SAN JACINTO 
SITING, DESIGN, PERMITTING, CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, AND 

INSPECTION DURING DRILLING OF THE NEW GRAND WELL 

Location: San Jacinto, CA 

Personnel: 

Russell Kyle, Project Manager/Hydrogeologist 

Kimberly Makar, Permitting/GIS 

Michael Dykstra, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Stephanie Lambert, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Troy Terrett, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Belle Thogmartin, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Client: 

City of San Jacinto 

Mathew Osborn 

mosborn@sanjacintoca.gov 

(951) 487-7330 x755 

Completion Date: Est. April 2023 

Total Cost: $152,000 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 203



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 20 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 

Mr. Kyle was the technical lead for siting, permitting, 

design, and installation of new municipal water supply well 

for Palmdale Water District.  A well siting study and site 

feasibility assessment was conducted, from which a 

preliminary design was prepared, including anticipated well 

capacity and groundwater quality, preliminary design, 

construction logistics, and identification of construction 

and permitting constraints. 

Specific project tasks included preparation of a preliminary 

design report, comprehensive well permitting (including, 

CEQA support, Domestic Water Supply Permit 

Amendment, and DWSAP documents), preparation of 

technical plans and specifications, and bidding support.  

KGI provided construction management and inspection 

services, during execution of the contract.  The well has 

been successfully constructed and the equipping design has 

begun.  The well is anticipated to produce approximtaley 

1,200 gpm and was successfully tested at that rate. 

Work has begun on siting a second well, Well No. 37, 

whichi includes regional aquifer testing to more accuretly 

estimate aquifer parameters, and such that more accurate 

groundwater modeling can be utilized to develop minimum 

distances from future recycled water recharge facilities.  

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
DRILLING AND EQUIPPING OF WELL NO. 36 

Location: Palmdale, CA 

Personnel: 

Russell Kyle, Project Manager/Hydrogeologist 

Kimberly Makar, Permitting/GIS 

Michael Dykstra, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Stephanie Lambert, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Troy Terrett, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Belle Thogmartin, Hydrogeology/Inspection 

Client: 

Hazen / Palmdale Water District 

Scott Rogers, PE 

srogers@palmdalewater.org 

(661) 456-5319 

Completion Date: Est. late-2024 

Total Cost: $178,800 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 204



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 21 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

 
Long Beach Utilities (LBU) is seeking to increase water 

supply reliability and optimize local water supply by 

maintaining a production well field capacity of 32,692 acre-

feet per year (AFY) through the year 2032.  Based on 

recommendations of the Collection Main and New Well 

Site Study prepared by KGI, a plan was implemented to 

install 12 new water supply wells within the next 10 years.  

This project is one of several well installation projects 

aimed at meeting this goal, including a concurrent two-well 

drilling and equipping project in Stearns Champions Park. 

 

KGI is working with DRP Engineering to destroy two (2) 

existing wells along with installation and equipping of four 

(4) new wells at various locations within the City.  KGI’s 

scope of work includes identification of feasible wells sites, 

permitting, preliminary well design, final design and 

preparation of technical specifications, bidding, and full-

time construction management and inspection.  Particular 

challenges of this project include a difficult permitting 

environment combined with severe logistical 

considerations of installing wells within a heavily utilized 

park, and in an area within close proximity to Long Beach 

Airport.  The first bid package of two wells has been 

completed and is ready for bidding.  The second bid 

package is close to completion.   

LONG BEACH UTILITIES 
DRILLING AND EQUIPPING OF FOUR (4) NEW PRODUCTION WELLS 

Location: Long Beach, CA 

Personnel: 

Curt Roth, Engineering (DRP) 

Saik-Choon Poh, Engineering (DRP) 

Russell Kyle, Hydrogeologist (KGI) 

Kimberly Makar, Permitting/GIS (KGI) 

Client: 

DRP / Long Beach Utilities 

Wendy Chen, PE 

wendy.chen@lbwater.org 

562-570-2324 

Completion Date: Est. early-2026 

Total Cost: $3.4M 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 205



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 22 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 6 – ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

We acknowledge that the RFP is well crafted and comprehensive.  While not necessarily an “additional” service, 

we are recommending that initial development by focused intake pumping and swabbing be implemented, rather 

than the more conventional method of airlifting and swabbing.  This method has proven to be a more effective 

form of well development as high rates of continuous flow (i.e., 300 to 900 gpm) can be achieved through a 10-foot 

long double surge block, while simultaneously swabbing.  Sand production from 10 foot sections of well screen 

are measured during initial development using Imhoff cones of a type that have 0.1 mL resolution between the 0.0 

and 0.5 mL measurement interval.  In this way, sand production can be quantified for each 10 foot screen interval, 

allowing for redevelopment to be focused upon those areas deemed most problematic with respect to sand 

production.  Implementation of focused intake pumping and swabbing will not affect our proposed fee. 

 

 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 206



Ms. Melissa Blount   
March 7, 2023 

 

   Page 23 

Proposal for Professional Services Related to the Design, Construction Coordination / Support 
Services and Inspection Services for Drilling a New Groundwater Production Well (W22009) 

SECTION 7 – COST ESTIMATES OF CONSULTING FEE 

We pride ourselves on providing innovative hydrogeological and engineering solutions to our clients and are 

confident we can provide WVWD with a successful well installation project.  Our “not-to-exceed” cost proposal 

(submitted separately) is inclusive of all anticipated costs (i.e., labor, materials, equipment, professional services, 

insurance, travel, and profit) and includes a breakdown of labor and direct costs by project task.  The following 

rate schedule serves as the basis for our cost proposal. 

 

 

Labor Classification 
Hourly 

Rate 

Principal Hydrogeologist $200 

Technical Advisor QA/QC $195 

Senior Project Manager $175 

Project Hydrogeologist $150 

Staff Hydrogeologist $140 

GIS Technician $120 

Field Inspection $115 

Design Engineer I/II $115 

CAD Technician $108 

Project Coordinator $100 

Clerical $80 

 

Non-Labor Charges: 

Mileage = $0.655 per mile (i.e., the allowable IRS rate) 

Field visit (day) = $35 

Field visit (overnight) = $180 

Transducer rental = $25 per day 

Rates subject to change effective January 1, 2025. 

 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 207



W
e

st
 V

a
ll

e
y

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
T

a
b

le
 1

R
at

e:
$

2
0

0
R

at
e:

$
1

5
0

R
at

e:
$

1
4

0
R

at
e:

$
1

1
5

R
at

e:
$

1
2

0
R

at
e:

$
8

0
R

at
e:

$
1

9
5

R
at

e:
$

1
7

5
R

at
e:

$
1

1
5

R
at

e:
$

1
0

8

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

W
k

-H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

H
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

A
m

o
u

n
t

A
m

o
u

n
t

H
o

u
rs

A
m

o
u

n
t

1
.0

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

1
.1

G
en

er
al

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

o
rd

.
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

2
.0

K
IC

K
O

F
F

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
S

2
.1

A
tt

en
d

 K
ic

k
-O

ff
 M

ee
ti

n
g,

 T
w

o
 (

2
) 

D
es

ig
n

 M
ee

ti
n

gs
, a

n
d

 N
in

e 
(9

) 
M

o
n

th
ly

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
M

ee
ti

n
gs

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

,6
0

0
 

8
 $

   
   

 1
,2

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

9
0

 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

5
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
,5

4
0

$
   

   
   

  
2

0
3

,5
9

7
$

   
   

   
  

3
.0

P
H

A
S

E
 I

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 S
IT

E
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T

3
.1

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 P
h

as
e 

I 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l S
it

e 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
(E

SA
)

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
 

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

5
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

,4
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

3
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

2
,7

7
0

$
   

   
   

  

4
.0

D
A

T
A

 A
N

D
 L

IT
E

R
A

T
U

R
E

 R
E

V
IE

W

4
.1

O
b

ta
in

 a
n

d
 R

ev
ie

w
 D

at
a 

an
d

 L
it

er
at

u
re

, P
er

fo
rm

 U
ti

li
ty

 R
es

ea
rc

h
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

0
0

 
6

 $
   

   
   

 9
0

0
 

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

,1
2

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

8
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
9

5
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  7
0

0
 

1
6

 $
   

   
   

 1
,8

4
0

 
2

4
 $

   
   

   
 2

,5
9

2
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8

,6
2

7
$

   
   

   
  

6
7

8
,6

2
7

$
   

   
   

  

5
.0

IN
IT

IA
L

 S
T

U
D

Y
 O

F
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 I

M
P

A
C

T

5
.1

A
ss

is
t 

w
it

h
 C

E
Q

A
 D

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
R

eq
u

ir
ed

 S
u

b
m

it
ta

ls
, a

n
d

 A
tt

en
d

an
ce

 a
t 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

ea
ri

n
g

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

,6
0

0
 

8
 $

   
   

 1
,2

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

8
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

,2
8

0
$

   
   

   
  

2
0

3
,3

0
9

$
   

   
   

  

6
.0

S
IT

E
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 D

E
IS

G
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

6
.1

P
re

p
ar

e 
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

 D
es

ig
n

 R
ep

o
rt

, I
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
D

ra
ft

 a
n

d
 F

in
al

 S
u

b
m

it
ta

ls
1

2
 $

   
   

   
 2

,4
0

0
 

1
6

 $
   

   
 2

,4
0

0
 

2
0

 $
   

   
   

 2
,8

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
6

 $
   

   
   

 1
,9

2
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
9

,5
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

6
4

9
,5

4
9

$
   

   
   

  

7
.0

S
IT

E
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 D

E
IS

G
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

7
.1

P
re

p
ar

e 
W

el
l D

ri
ll

in
g 

P
la

n
s 

an
d

 T
ec

h
n

ic
al

 S
p

ec
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
(6

0
%

, 9
0

%
, 1

0
0

%
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
ls

)
1

6
 $

   
   

   
 3

,2
0

0
 

2
0

 $
   

   
 3

,0
0

0
 

3
2

 $
   

   
   

 4
,4

8
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

8
 $

   
   

   
   

  9
6

0
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  3
2

0
 

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
9

5
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  7
0

0
 

8
 $

   
   

   
   

  9
2

0
 

3
2

 $
   

   
   

 3
,4

5
6

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1
7

,2
3

1
$

   
   

  
1

2
5

1
7

,2
3

1
$

   
   

  

8
.0

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

W
A

R
D

8
.1

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 B
id

d
in

g,
 I

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

A
tt

en
d

an
ce

 a
t 

P
re

-B
id

 M
ee

ti
n

g,
 R

es
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 R

F
Is

, P
re

p
ar

e 
A

d
d

en
d

a
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
,6

0
0

 
8

 $
   

   
 1

,2
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
6

2
,8

2
9

$
   

   
   

  

9
.0

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
'S

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

9
.1

P
re

p
ar

e 
E

n
gi

n
ee

r'
s 

E
st

im
at

e
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

4
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  

1
0

.0
D

R
IN

K
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 S
O

U
R

C
E

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IO
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S

1
0

.1
P

re
p

ar
e 

P
re

li
m

in
ar

y
 a

n
d

 F
in

al
 D

W
SA

P
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

0
0

 
8

 $
   

   
 1

,2
0

0
 

2
4

 $
   

   
   

 3
,3

6
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

8
 $

   
   

   
   

  9
6

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6
,3

2
0

$
   

   
   

  
4

4
6

,3
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
1

.0
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 /

 H
Y

D
R

O
G

E
O

L
O

G
IC

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1
1

.1
A

ss
is

t 
w

it
h

 D
D

W
 D

o
m

es
ti

c 
W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 P

er
m

it
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t,

 I
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
Si

te
 M

ee
ti

n
g 

w
it

h
 D

D
W

8
 $

   
   

   
 1

,6
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

1
6

 $
   

   
   

 2
,2

4
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

,8
4

0
$

   
   

   
  

2
4

3
,8

6
9

$
   

   
   

  

1
1

.2
Su

p
p

o
rt

 A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
Sa

n
 B

er
n

ar
d

in
o

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

ri
ll

in
g 

P
er

m
it

, I
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
Si

te
 V

is
it

 (
as

 n
ee

d
ed

)
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

0
0

 
3

 $
   

   
   

 4
5

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
8

7
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
1

.3
A

cq
u

ir
e 

Sa
n

 B
er

n
ar

d
in

o
 C

o
u

n
ty

 F
lo

o
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
l P

er
m

it
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

0
0

 
4

 $
   

   
   

 6
0

0
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
6

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

4
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

1
,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

  

1
1

.4
P

ro
v

id
e 

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 w
it

h
 N

P
D

E
S 

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
 P

er
m

it
ti

n
g 

an
d

 C
o

m
p

li
an

ce
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
,6

0
0

 
4

 $
   

   
   

 6
0

0
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
6

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2
,7

6
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

6
2

,7
6

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.0
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

, I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
, A

N
D

 F
IN

A
L

 D
E

S
IG

N

1
2

.1
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
io

n
, I

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

P
re

-C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 M
ee

ti
n

g
1

6
 $

   
   

   
 3

,2
0

0
 

2
0

 $
   

   
 3

,0
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

3
6

6
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.2
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 D

u
ri

n
g 

D
ri

ll
in

g 
o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

ct
o

r 
B

o
re

h
o

le
 a

n
d

 C
as

in
g 

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 (

fu
ll

-t
im

e)
1

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
,3

8
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,5

8
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

3
1

,6
0

9
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.3
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 D

u
ri

n
g 

P
il

o
t 

B
o

re
h

o
le

 D
ri

ll
in

g 
(p

ar
t-

ti
m

e)
*

5
 $

   
   

   
 1

,0
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
4

8
 $

   
   

   
 5

,5
2

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
1

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

,5
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

5
3

6
,6

3
5

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.4
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 D

u
ri

n
g 

G
eo

p
h

y
si

ca
l B

o
re

h
o

le
 L

o
gg

in
g 

(f
u

ll
-t

im
e)

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
8

 $
   

   
   

   
  9

2
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,1

2
0

$
   

   
   

  
9

1
,1

4
9

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.5
A

ss
es

s 
B

o
re

h
o

le
 L

it
h

o
lo

gy
 a

n
d

 G
eo

p
h

y
si

ca
l L

o
gs

 a
n

d
 P

ro
v

id
e 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

 I
n

te
rv

al
s 

fo
r 

Z
o

n
e 

T
es

ti
n

g
3

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  5

6
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

,1
6

0
$

   
   

   
  

7
1

,1
6

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.6
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 D

u
ri

n
g 

Is
o

la
te

d
 A

q
u

if
er

 Z
o

n
e 

T
es

ti
n

g 
(a

ss
u

m
es

 f
o

u
r 

[4
] 

zo
n

es
, p

ar
t-

ti
m

e)
8

 $
   

   
   

 1
,6

0
0

 
1

6
 $

   
   

 2
,4

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

9
6

 $
   

   
  1

1
,0

4
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

2
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
5

,0
4

0
$

   
   

  
1

2
0

1
5

,2
6

9
$

   
   

  

1
2

.7
M

ec
h

an
ic

al
 G

ra
d

in
g 

Si
ev

e 
A

n
al

y
si

s 
(a

ss
u

m
es

 t
en

 [
1

0
] 

fo
rm

at
io

n
 s

am
p

le
s)

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
3

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

4
5

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

5
7

4
$

   
   

   
   

  

1
2

.8
P

re
p

ar
e 

F
in

al
 W

el
l D

es
ig

n
, I

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

D
es

ig
n

 M
ee

ti
n

g 
w

it
h

 W
V

W
D

1
2

 $
   

   
   

 2
,4

0
0

 
1

6
 $

   
   

 2
,4

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
6

 $
   

   
   

   
  7

2
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5

,5
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

3
4

5
,5

2
0

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.9
In

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 D

u
ri

n
g 

B
o

re
h

o
le

 R
ea

m
in

g 
an

d
 C

al
ip

er
 S

u
rv

ey
 (

p
ar

t-
ti

m
e)

*
2

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

4
8

 $
   

   
   

 5
,5

2
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
1

1
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
,9

2
0

$
   

   
   

  
5

0
6

,0
3

5
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.1
0

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 D
u

ri
n

g 
W

el
l C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

In
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

el
l C

as
in

g,
 G

ra
v

el
 E

n
v

el
o

p
e,

 a
n

d
 S

ea
ls

 (
fu

ll
-t

im
e)

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  8
0

0
 

4
 $

   
   

   
 6

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
2

0
 $

   
   

  1
3

,8
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

2
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

  
1

5
,2

0
0

$
   

   
  

1
2

8
1

5
,4

2
9

$
   

   
  

1
2

.1
1

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 D
u

ri
n

g 
In

it
ia

l W
el

l D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

b
y

 F
o

cu
se

d
 I

n
ta

k
e 

P
u

m
p

in
g 

an
d

 S
w

ab
b

in
g 

(p
ar

t-
ti

m
e)

2
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
4

8
 $

   
   

   
 5

,5
2

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
7

2
$

   
   

   
   

  
5

,9
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

5
0

6
,0

9
2

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.1
2

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 D
u

ri
n

g 
F

in
al

 W
el

l D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

b
y

 P
u

m
p

in
g 

an
d

 S
u

rg
in

g 
(p

ar
t-

ti
m

e)
6

 $
   

   
   

 1
,2

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

4
2

 $
   

   
   

 4
,8

3
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
1

7
2

$
   

   
   

   
  

6
,0

3
0

$
   

   
   

  
4

8
6

,2
0

2
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.1
3

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 D
u

ri
n

g 
A

q
u

if
er

 P
u

m
p

in
g 

T
es

ts
 (

8
-h

o
u

r 
st

ep
, 2

4
-h

o
u

r 
C

R
T

, a
n

d
 4

-h
o

u
r 

re
co

v
er

y
; p

ar
t-

ti
m

e)
3

 $
   

   
   

   
  6

0
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

4
2

 $
   

   
   

 4
,8

3
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
8

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
,4

3
0

$
   

   
   

  
4

5
5

,5
1

6
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.1
4

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

D
o

w
n

h
o

le
 V

id
eo

 a
n

d
 G

y
ro

sc
o

p
ic

 A
li

gn
m

en
t 

Su
rv

ey
s 

(f
u

ll
-t

im
e)

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
 

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

5
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
2

 $
   

   
   

 1
,3

8
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,7

3
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

4
1

,7
5

9
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.1
5

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 D
u

ri
n

g 
W

el
l D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n

 (
fu

ll
-t

im
e)

1
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
0

0
 

1
 $

   
   

   
 1

5
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

1
0

 $
   

   
   

 1
,1

5
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

2
1

,5
2

9
$

   
   

   
  

1
2

.1
6

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
o

st
-C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 S

it
e 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 W
el

lh
ea

d
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 P
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 
P

u
n

ch
-L

is
t

2
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
6

0
 

4
 $

   
   

   
   

  4
6

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

,4
2

0
$

   
   

   
  

1
0

1
,4

7
7

$
   

   
   

  

1
2

.1
7

A
n

al
y

ze
 A

q
u

if
er

 P
u

m
p

in
g 

T
es

t 
D

at
a,

 P
ro

v
id

e 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

R
eg

ar
d

in
g 

P
u

m
p

in
g 

D
y

n
am

ic
s 

an
d

 P
u

m
p

 S
et

ti
n

g
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  8

0
0

 
8

 $
   

   
 1

,2
0

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
1

2
 $

   
   

   
 1

,3
8

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3

,3
8

0
$

   
   

   
  

2
4

3
,3

8
0

$
   

   
   

  

1
3

.0
F

IN
A

L
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T

1
3

.1
P

re
p

ar
e 

F
in

al
 S

u
m

m
ar

y
 R

ep
o

rt
, I

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

D
ra

ft
 a

n
d

 F
in

al
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
ls

1
2

 $
   

   
   

 2
,4

0
0

 
1

6
 $

   
   

 2
,4

0
0

 
1

6
 $

   
   

   
 2

,2
4

0
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  4

8
0

 
4

 $
   

   
   

   
  3

2
0

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7
,8

4
0

$
   

   
   

  
5

2
7

,8
4

0
$

   
   

   
  

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

:  
   

1
6

7
3

3
,4

0
0

$
   

   
1

6
8

2
5

,2
0

0
$

   
1

3
2

1
8

,4
8

0
$

   
   

5
0

5
5

8
,0

7
5

$
   

   
5

2
6

,2
4

0
$

   
   

   
8

6
4

0
$

   
   

   
   

4
7

8
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

0
1

,7
5

0
$

   
   

   
2

4
2

,7
6

0
$

   
   

   
5

6
6

,0
4

8
$

   
   

   
3

,9
4

2
$

   
   

   
1

5
3

,3
7

3
$

   
 

1
,1

2
6

1
5

7
,3

1
5

$
   

 

*
A

ss
u

m
es

 b
o

re
h

o
le

 d
ep

th
 o

f 
1

,0
0

0
 f

ee
t 

b
g

s 
a

n
d

 a
ve

ra
g

e 
d

ri
ll

in
g

 r
a

te
 o

f 
1

0
 f

ee
t 

p
er

 h
o

u
r.

K
Y

L
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

T
E

R
, I

N
C

.

D
R

P
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

, I
N

C
.

G
IS

T
e

ch
n

ic
ia

n

C
A

D

T
e

ch
n

ic
ia

n

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l

E
n

g
in

e
e

r

W
E

S
T

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 W
A

T
E

R
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

C
o

st
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
fo

r 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
R

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

e
si

g
n

, C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 /

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d
 I

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

D
ri

ll
in

g
 a

 N
e

w
 G

ro
u

n
d

w
a

te
r 

P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 W

e
ll

 (
W

2
2

0
0

9
)

C
le

ri
ca

l
S

e
n

io
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
D

e
si

g
n

 E
n

g
in

e
e

r 
I/

II
 L

a
b

o
r 

D
ir

e
ct

C
o

st
s

 T
o

ta
l

C
o

st
 

P
ro

je
ct

H
y

d
ro

g
e

o
lo

g
is

t

S
ta

ff

H
y

d
ro

g
e

o
lo

g
is

t

F
ie

ld

In
sp

e
ct

o
r

P
ri

n
ci

p
a

l 

H
y

d
ro

g
e

o
lo

g
is

t

 7
-M

a
r-

2
3

P
ag

e 
1

 o
f 

1

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 208



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

  

Resumes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 209



 

Page 1 

 

RUSSELL KYLE, PG, CHG 

 
Mr. Kyle has 25 years of experience with a wide variety of groundwater resource related 

projects for public and private clients within the western United States, Mexico, and 

Africa, with a focus on groundwater resources development in Southern California. The 

scope of his technical experience includes groundwater basin evaluations, water supply 

studies, well siting investigations, artificial recharge feasibility evaluations, well field 

condition assessments, well rehabilitation, desalination feedwater supply studies, and 

geophysical surveys. Over the course of his career he has been responsible for installation 

of more than 150 water supply wells and 70 monitoring wells and exploratory borings, 

including management of a team of field inspectors, coordination with drilling 

contractors and regulatory agencies, well design, and construction management. Recent 

notable projects include installation of potable water supply wells for California Water 

Service Company, South Montebello Irrigation District, Montebello Land and Water 

Company, and development of well rehabilitation, replacement, prioritization plans for 

the Long Beach Water Department, California Water Service Company, City of 

Riverside, and Palmdale Water District. He is also active within the water resources 

community and is currently a member and past Chair to the AWWA CA-NV Water Well 

Technology Committee, and as a voting member of the AWWA National Well Standards 

Committee. Mr. Kyle also served on multiple Technical Action Committees working to 

develop the new California Department of Water Resources water well standards. 

 

NEW WELL INSTALLATION 

Alamitos Wells 14 and 9A – Long Beach Water Department – Long Beach, 

California.  Mr. Kyle is serving as project manager for this critical project which includes 

permitting, design, construction management, and inspection of two (2) new well 

installations, and destruction of four (4) existing wells.  Components of the project 

include above-ground and below-ground infrastructure, parking lot design, traffic control 

plans, and new and modified SCADA service.  Well Alamitos 9A well has been 

successfully installed, and drilling of the second well will begin shortly. 

2021 New Well Project – Long Beach Water Department – Long Beach, 

California.  Mr. Kyle is serving as technical lead for this critical project which includes 

permitting, design, construction management, and inspection of four (4) new well 

installations, and destruction of two (2) existing wells.  Components of the project include 

above-ground and below-ground infrastructure, traffic control plans, and new and 

modified SCADA service.  Well drilling design and permitting have been completed. 

Collection Main and New Well Site Study – Long Beach Water Department – 

Long Beach, California.  Mr. Kyle served as Principal-in-Charge for a well siting study 

to evaluate areas favorable for installation of new production wells within the Central 

and West Coast Basins, and within relative proximity to the existing collection main 

pipeline.  Buffers around sites of environmental concern, existing wells, and active 

hazardous liquid pipelines were used to eliminate possible areas for a new potable well.  

Potential sites were identified within areas that did not fall within those buffers and were 

within a one-mile radius of the collection main pipeline.  The sites were ranked based 

upon a scientific approach and weighted decision matrix and an evaluation of how each 

potential well site will impact the collection main system. 

EXPERIENCE 

 
 
TITLE 
President / Principal 
Hydrogeologist  

 
REGISTRATIONS/ 
CERTIFICATIONS 
Registered Professional 
Geologist, California 
No. 7648 

Certified 
Hydrogeologist, 
California No. 822 

 
EDUCATION 
MS, Environmental 
Hydrogeology, 
California State 
University – Los 
Angeles, 2006 

BS, Geology, California 
Polytechnic University – 
Pomona, 1996 

 
PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 
American Water Works 

Association – past Chair 

of CA/NV Water Well 

Technology Committee 

Voting Member of the 
American Water Works 
Association National 
Well Standards 
Committee 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 210



 

Page 2 

 

RUSSELL KYLE, PG, CHG 

 
New Grand Well – City of San Jacinto, California. Mr. Kyle is providing 

hydrogeological support services during siting and installation of a new water supply well 

for the City of San Jacinto.   The scope of work includes permitting support, preliminary 

and final design, and construction management and inspection.  The project is expected 

to enter the construction phase mid-2022. 

Well No. 36 – Palmdale Water District – Palmdale, California. Mr. Kyle is providing 

hydrogeological support services during siting and installation of a new water supply well 

in the Antelope Valley.   Mr. Kyle provided permitting support, feasibility assessment, 

preliminary and final design, construction management and inspection, and regional-scale 

aquifer testing.  Well construction and testing was completed in 2023. 

Development of a Well Maintenance Program – Long Beach Water Department – 

Long Beach, California.  The objective of LBWD’s well maintenance program was to 

develop a framework that would serve as a foundation for developing a more effective 

program for long-term operation, monitoring, and maintenance of wells such that local 

groundwater resources can be optimized, and utilized to the fullest.  Critical components 

of this program would include a field monitoring protocol and data management plan (i.e., 

field monitoring procedures, quality assurance and control processes, data management, 

and development of a coherent relational database).  This database would form the basis 

for annual well performance audits, including well performance review and condition 

assessment, ultimately leading to an annual workshop of stakeholders at which operational 

and maintenance decisions would be made. 

Development of a Rehabilitation Prioritization Plan – Palmdale Water District – 

Palmdale, California. Mr. Kyle developed a rehabilitation and replacement prioritization 

plan for the Palmdale Water District well field, consisting of 22 actively pumping wells. 

This project involved a thorough evaluation and ranking of each well as to rehabilitation 

feasibility and estimated remaining well life.  Additional components of the project 

included development of modular technical specifications for well rehabilitation, and 

rehabilitation of up to three (3) wells, including technical specifications and bid support. 

Rehabilitation of Citizens Well 9 and Wilson Well 1A – Long Beach Water 

Department – Long Beach, California.  Mr. Kyle is serving as project manager to 

provide construction management, inspection, and engineering services during 

rehabilitation of two municipal water supply wells.  The project includes physical and 

chemical cleaning of each well, redevelopment and testing, and retrofitting of the well 

pump, motor, and electrical. 

Rehabilitation and Equipping of Wells Commission 15 and 18 – Long Beach Water 

Department – Long Beach, California.  Mr. Kyle is serving as project manager during 

rehabilitation, redevelopment, and equipping of two municipal water supply wells.  The 

project included physical and chemical cleaning of each well, redevelopment and testing, 

retrofit and installation of temporary pumps, and redesign and installation of permanent 

pumping equipment and controls. Both wells have been rehabilitated, are pumping to the 

system, and are awaiting installation of permanent pumping equipment. 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 211



 

Page 1 

 

KIMBERLY MAKAR, PG 

Ms. Makar is a California Professional Geologist with ten years of experience in the water resource 

and mining industries.  She began her career as a manager of the dewatering program at an open-pit 

copper mine in Nevada, for which she was responsible for developing and executing multi-million-

dollar groundwater dewatering programs.  Since 2014 she has been providing professional consulting 

services to the water resources industry in Southern California with an emphasis on new well 

installation, well rehabilitation, and permitting. 

 

Well No. 15 – Montebello Land and Water Company – Montebello, California. Ms. Makar 

provided field inspection for a new water supply well located in Montebello, within the Central Basin.  

She provided field inspection during pilot borehole drilling, well construction, well development, 

step-drawdown and constant rate aquifer tests, gyroscopic alignment survey, downhole video survey, 

and final well disinfection.  

DOM 300-01 – California Water Service Company – Compton, California.  Ms. Makar assisted 

on the production of the preliminary design report, construction logistics, preliminary design, and 

required permits.  She also assisted on the preparation of the preliminary Drinking Water Source 

Assessment Program (DWSAP) documents.  Ms. Makar provided field inspection during all 

construction phases of the project. 

Well No. 8 – South Montebello Irrigation District – Montebello, California. Ms. Makar 

provided field inspection for a new water supply well located in South Montebello, within the Central 

Basin.  She provided field inspection during well development, step-drawdown and constant rate 

aquifer tests, gyroscopic alignment survey, downhole video survey, and final well disinfection.  

Rehabilitation of Citizens Well 9 and Wilson Well 1A – Long Beach Water Department – Long 

Beach, California.  Ms. Makar is serving as lead inspector during rehabilitation of two municipal 

water supply wells.  The project includes physical and chemical cleaning of each well, redevelopment 

and testing, and retrofitting of the well pump, motor, and electrical. 

Permitting of Three Potential Well Sites – Long Beach Water Department – Long Beach, 

California.  Ms. Makar served as the lead in completing permitting documents required for three 

potential new well sites for the Long Beach Water Department (LBWD).  For all three sites, Ms. 

Makar completed preliminary Drinking Water Source Assessment Program (DWSAP) documents, 

horizontal distance setback tables, plot plans showing 50-foot increment radii up to 200 feet, and 

Domestic Water Supply Permit Amendment applications.  Of the three sites, LBWD has chosen to 

move forward with the construction phase of two of the sites. 

West Coast Basin Well 1 – Long Beach Water Department – Long Beach, California.  Ms. 

Makar provided field inspection during the installation of a new potable water supply well located in 

the West Coast Basin. 

Collection Main and New Well Site Study – Long Beach Water Department – Long Beach, 

California.  The Long Beach Water Department (LBWD) currently owns and operates 28 

groundwater supply wells located throughout the city, in addition to a new well currently being 

equipped, and a second well recently constructed.  LBWD’s goal is to optimize local water supply 

sources and maintain a production well field with suitable capacity through the year 2032.  Ms. Makar 

provided technical support to identify and evaluate areas favorable for installation of new production 

wells within the Central and West Coast Basins, and within relative proximity to the existing collection 

main pipeline.  Identified sites were ranked based upon a scientific approach and weighted decision 

matrix and an evaluation of how each potential well site will impact the collection main system. 

SELECTED EXPERIENCE 

 
 
PROJECT ROLE 
Hydrogeology/ 
Field Inspection 

 
REGISTRATIONS/ 
CERTIFICATIONS 
Professional Geologist, 
California No. 10044 

 
EDUCATION 
Bachelor of Science, 
Geosciences, University 
of Arizona, 2011 

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 212



EDUCATION_
M.S. CIVIL ENGINEERING
(California State University, Long Beach)

BS, CIVIL ENGINEERING 
(Loyola Marymount University)
______________________________________________

REGISTRATION_
PE Civil, CA, No. C39711
Water Treatment Operator T4, CA No. 1689
Water Distribution Operator D5, CA No. 22071
_________________________________________

US	PATENT_
Sewer Pipe Inspection and Diagnostic 
System and Method (No. 504352644)
_________________________________________

BENEFIT	TO	CLIENT_
 • Extensive knowledge and familiarity with 
   implementing and managing Capital Improvement   
   Programs

• Specialized expertise in designing, constructing, 
  operating, and managing water related facilities 
  and infrastructure

• Engineering expertise in conveyance pipelines
_________________________________________

With more than 36 years of experience in the water 
and wastewater industry, Mr. Eric Leung serves as 
a Senior Engineering Manager at DRP. Mr. Leung 
oversees the company-wide Quality Assurance and 
Quality Control (QAQC) processes. He is a proven 
leader, recognized for his innovative thinking and 
wealth of expertise in the water/wastewater industry, a 
key factor in his ability to maintain delivery of quality 
projects and improving our relationships with our 
clients. Prior to retiring as Deputy General Manager/
Chief Engineer of Long Beach Water Department, 
Mr. Leung spent more that 25 years managing 
large-scale assignments, providing him the 
characteristics that have contributed to his success.

Mr. Leung focuses on streamlining efficiencies and 
optimizing client satisfaction. He has developed 
excellent client relationships and built a strong track 
record of success. He has worked hand-in-hand 
with both public and private owners and has 
extensive knowledge of the project life cycle.

40  Years 
             Experience

RFP	SPECIFIC	PROJECTS_
LONG	BEACH	WATER	DEPARTMENT	(LBWD)	-		DEPUTY
GENERAL	MANAGER/CHIEF	ENGINEER_________________________________________________________
Mr. Leung had a variety of responsibilities, including planning, 
directing, managing, and supervising the programs and 
activities of the Department’s Engineering Bureau. He also 
developed and implemented objectives, strategic plans, and 
programs for the Department’s water, reclaimed water, and 
sanitary sewer systems, including the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP), Business Development, GIS/automated 
mapping, and construction services. 

Key	Responsibilities	Included:
• Oversaw over 200 miles of water pipeline improvements with 
   various sizes and pipe materials.

• Overseeing annual budget of $15 million and capital improvement 
   projects for water, sewer, and recycled water projects.

• Developed and implemented first of its kind 0.5 MGD 
   Prototype Seawater Desalination Testing Facility. This 
   program consisted of the design/build of a prototype facility 
   to test a new and innovative two pass two-stage nanofiltration
   process for seawater desalination. In addition, this program 
   included a sub-surface intake and discharge system, and 
   Ultraviolet Light and Chlorine Dioxide Seawater Pretreatment 
   Systems for Biogrowth Control and Pathogen Inactivation.

• Developed Project Portfolio Management (PPM) program to 
   track CIP project schedules and financials.

• Oversaw preparation and update of Water and Sewer Master 
   Plans.

• Developed smart phone apps to track City-wide engineering 
   and construction projects, as well as standard engineering 
   calculations for field uses.

• Developed and implemented Los Angeles River Pilot 
   Treatment System Program. This program consisted of 
   designing and constructing a small pilot treatment plant to 
   investigate the opportunity of treating the low flow of the 
   Los Angeles River for use in augmenting the Long Beach 
   water supplies. The pilot system is located at the Dominguez 
   Gap Wetlands site, which has an existing river connection.

• Oversaw rehabilitation and replacement of city-wide existing 
   sanitary sewer pipeline program. Rehabilitation methods 
   included trenchless repairs for full or sectional pipe lengths  
   using cured-in-place pipe (CIPP), UV CIPP, carbon fiber 
   reinforced polymer (FRP), glass FRP, top hats, and other 
   alternative methods.

ERIC LEUNG, PE___________________________________________
QA/QC LEAD

DRP

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 213



EDUCATION

MS, ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
(University of California Berkeley)

BS, CIVIL ENGINEERING
(Loyola Marymount University)

REGISTRATION

PE Civil, CA No. C61087

BENEFIT TO CLIENT

Extensive knowledge and familiarity with 
water, stormwater, and sewer faculties/ 
pipeline construction and rehabilitation

Extensive experience with LBWD CIP 
projects

Extensive knowledge and familiarity LBWD 
standards and expectations

Specialized expertise in designing,
constructing and operating Pilot treatment
Facilities

CURT ROTH, PE
25 Years 
Experience

DRP ENGINEERING, INC
1111 Corporate Center Drive, Suite 303 
Monterey Park, CA 91754

Curt specializes in environmental and civil engineering. He is
experienced in water, storm water, recycled water and wastewater
conveyance as well as all aspects of water and storm water
treatment. Mr. Roth adds tremendous experience designing,
constructing and operating new and innovative systems for the
treatment of water.

LONG BEACH WATER DEPARTMENT - PORT OF LONG BEACH 
WATER SYSTEM TRANSFER STUDY PROJECT

Mr. Roth is assisting on the Port of Long Beach Water System Transfer Study
Project, as a subconsultant to HDR. The objective of the study is to gather,
verify the transferable portion of the POLB’s water system, perform a field
condition assessment of the Port’s transferrable assets, evaluate and identify
the system deficiencies to meet LBWD and AWWA standards, and develop
an O&M and CIP to correct any deficiencies. Additionally, the transferable
portion of the water system consists of approximately 200 fire hydrants, 590
isolation valves, 3 check valves, 130 water meters, 70 backflow devices, and
9 backflow prevention devices.

LONG BEACH WATER DEPARTMENT – 2021 NEW WELLS 
PROJECT

Mr. Roth is currently serving as the Project Principal for the New Wells
Project for LBWD. The project intends to construction new ground water
wells to meet the growing water demands. To accomplish this, LBWD
sought to either install new wells or rehabilitate existing groundwater
wells that no longer produced sufficient quantities of groundwater due to
poor maintenance or the well exceeding its useful life. As part of the
project, DRP evaluated the feasibility of multiple wells sites and
provided determination on the four new well locations. DRP also
prepared PDRs to outline finds and recommendations for the drilling
and equipping of the groundwater wells, along with all associated tasks
that ranged from site improvements, electrical improvements, hydraulic
analysis of pump, review of LBWD collection system, and selection of
groundwater pump. In addition, Mr. Roth is leading a study on the
LBWD collection system to prepare a preliminary list of CIP projects for
future upgrades of the collection system.

LONG BEACH WATER DEPARTMENT – WEST COAST BASIN 
WELL TREATMENT PILOT SYSTEM

Mr. Roth served as the project manager for the West Coast Basin Well
Treatment Pilot System project for LBWD. The project was brough forth when
LBWD encountered color contamination within the groundwater and required
the development of a pilot treatment system, specifically for West Coast
Basin Well. Mr. Roth led the design and implementation of the pilot treatment
system. A protype unit was developed and tested it at the well site, with
results being recorded and incorporated into the report. The report included
all finds and recommendations for the well site location.

6.13.b

Packet Pg. 214



6.14.a

Packet Pg. 215



6.15.a

Packet Pg. 216



6.16.a

Packet Pg. 217



6.16.b

Packet Pg. 218



6.16.c

Packet Pg. 219



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

DATE: May 4, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

Discussion: 

On May 7, 2020, the West Valley Water District awarded a communication services contract to 
Chamberlayne PR for issues management and crisis communications to deal with media relations, 
COVID-19, State Controller’s audit, organization restructuring and ratepayer communication.  This 
agreement with Chamberlayne PR expires on May 7, 2023, and was a topic of discussion at the April 
24, 2023, External Affairs Committee. The Committee discussed the importance of issuing a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) to ensure competitive pricing in the retention of qualified consultants. 
The Committee also considered the idea of extending the current contract by 90 days, giving time 
for an updated RFP process to be completed. Ultimately, the External Affairs Committee 
recommended extending the contract by 90 days and for staff to update the RFP and its scope of 
services. Chamberlayne PR has stated they are amenable to the 90-day extension. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Chamberlayne PR is currently under contract at a rate of $150.00 per hour with a minimum charge 
of 50 hours per month. The cost of a 90-day contract extension will be about $22,500. 

Staff Recommendation:  

Consider extending Chamberlayne PR’s contract by 90 days under the current contract terms. 

VJ/sp 

MEETING HISTORY: 

FROM: Van Jew, Acting General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A 90-DAY CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH 
COMMUNICATIONS CONSULTANT CHAMBERLAYNE PR 

7.17

Packet Pg. 220



03/27/23 External Affairs Committee REFERRED TO BOARD 

7.17

Packet Pg. 221


	Agenda Packet
	I. OPENING CEREMONIES
	Call to Order
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Opening Prayer
	Roll Call of Board Members
	Roll Call

	II. CLOSED SESSION
	III. ADOPT AGENDA
	IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	V. PRESENTATIONS
	VI. CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. 3570 : April 15, 2023 - Special Board Meeting Minutes
	a. 2023.04.15 Special Board Meeting Minutes

	2. 3569 : April 20, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	a. 2023.04.20 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

	3. 3548 : Purchase Order Report - March 2023
	Printout: 3548 : Purchase Order Report - March 2023
	a. Exhibit A - March 2023 PO Report

	4. 3558 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - March 2023
	Printout: 3558 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - March 2023
	a. Exhibit A - 2023 March Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report
	b. Exhibit B - 2023 March Quarter End Report

	5. 3557 : Cash Disbursements Reports - March 2023
	Printout: 3557 : Cash Disbursements Reports - March 2023
	a. Exhibit A - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Board Report
	b. Exhibit B - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Payroll Board Report

	6. 3560 : Funds Transfer Report - March 2023
	Printout: 3560 : Funds Transfer Report - March 2023
	a. Exhibit A - 2023 March Funds Transfer Report

	7. 3559 : Treasurer's Report - March 2023
	Printout: 3559 : Treasurer's Report - March 2023
	a. Exhibit A - 2023 March Treasurer Report

	8. 3551 : Change Order No. 1 for the Design-Build of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Up
	Printout: 3551 : Change Order No. 1 for the Design-Build of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Up
	a. Exhibit A - CR#0001 - Extend Bridge Crane

	9. 3554 : BLF South Well Rehabilitation
	Printout: 3554 : BLF South Well Rehabilitation
	a. Exhibit A - Quote
	b. Exhibit B - Agreement

	10. 3555 : Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for Ventana
	Printout: 3555 : Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for Ventana
	a. Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC

	11. 3556 : Recordation of Water Easement with LS-Fontana, LLC for Tract No. 20070 for Narra Hills.
	Printout: 3556 : Recordation of Water Easement with LS-Fontana, LLC for Tract No. 20070 for Narra Hills.
	a. Exhibit A -Tract Map 20070

	12. 3563 : Joint Community Facilities Agreement and Acquisition and Funding Agreement for the Gardens
	Printout: 3563 : Joint Community Facilities Agreement and Acquisition and Funding Agreement for the Gardens
	a. Exhibit A - Joint Community Facilities Agreement
	b. Exhibit B - Acquisition and Funding Agreement
	c. Exhibit C - Resolution for Communities Facilities District No. 112

	13. 3564 : Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Kyle Groundwater for $157,315.00 for Professiona
	Printout: 3564 : Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Kyle Groundwater for $157,315.00 for Professiona
	a. Exhibit A - Potential Well Site Location
	b. Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by KYLE Groundwater Inc

	14. 3572 : Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Hunt Orman for March 2023
	a. _Hunt Orman Legal Invoice March 2023 - 98732

	15. 3571 : Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Hunt Orman for February 2023
	a. _Hunt Orman Legal Invoice February 2023 - 98234

	16. 3573 : Approval of Legal Invoice Payment to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore for March 2023
	a. _LCW Inv 238550 March 2023
	b. _LCW Inv 238584 March 2023
	c. _LCW Inv. 238371 March 2023


	VII. BUSINESS MATTERS
	17. 3541 : Communications Consultant
	Printout: 3541 : Communications Consultant


	VIII. REPORTS
	1. Board Members
	2. General Manager
	3. Legal Counsel

	IX. UPCOMING MEETINGS
	X. UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENTS
	XI. UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES
	XII. ADJOURN

	Appendix
	6.1.a · 2023.04.15 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	6.2.a · 2023.04.20 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	6.3 · 3548 : Purchase Order Report - March 2023
	6.3.a · Exhibit A - March 2023 PO Report

	6.4 · 3558 : Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - March 2023
	6.4.a · Exhibit A - 2023 March Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report
	6.4.b · Exhibit B - 2023 March Quarter End Report

	6.5 · 3557 : Cash Disbursements Reports - March 2023
	6.5.a · Exhibit A - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Board Report
	6.5.b · Exhibit B - 2023 March Cash Disbursements Payroll Board Report

	6.6 · 3560 : Funds Transfer Report - March 2023
	6.6.a · Exhibit A - 2023 March Funds Transfer Report

	6.7 · 3559 : Treasurer's Report - March 2023
	6.7.a · Exhibit A - 2023 March Treasurer Report

	6.8 · 3551 : Change Order No. 1 for the Design-Build of the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Up
	6.8.a · Exhibit A - CR#0001 - Extend Bridge Crane

	6.9 · 3554 : BLF South Well Rehabilitation
	6.9.a · Exhibit A - Quote
	6.9.b · Exhibit B - Agreement

	6.10 · 3555 : Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for Ventana
	6.10.a · Exhibit A - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC

	6.11 · 3556 : Recordation of Water Easement with LS-Fontana, LLC for Tract No. 20070 for Narra Hills.
	6.11.a · Exhibit A -Tract Map 20070

	6.12 · 3563 : Joint Community Facilities Agreement and Acquisition and Funding Agreement for the Gardens
	6.12.a · Exhibit A - Joint Community Facilities Agreement
	6.12.b · Exhibit B - Acquisition and Funding Agreement
	6.12.c · Exhibit C - Resolution for Communities Facilities District No. 112

	6.13 · 3564 : Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Kyle Groundwater for $157,315.00 for Professiona
	6.13.a · Exhibit A - Potential Well Site Location
	6.13.b · Exhibit B - Proposal Submitted by KYLE Groundwater Inc

	6.14.a · _Hunt Orman Legal Invoice March 2023 - 98732
	6.15.a · _Hunt Orman Legal Invoice February 2023 - 98234
	6.16.a · _LCW Inv 238550 March 2023
	6.16.b · _LCW Inv 238584 March 2023
	6.16.c · _LCW Inv. 238371 March 2023
	7.17 · 3541 : Communications Consultant




